HARROW
Health and Wellbeing Board Agenda

Date: Thursday 22 June 2023

Time: 3.00 pm

Venue: Meeting Room 3, Fourth Floor - Harrow Council
Hub

Membership (Quorum 5)

Chair: Councillor Paul Osborn
Voting Members:

Members of Council Nominated by the Councillor Ghazanfar Ali

Leader of the Council: Councillor Hitesh Karia
Councillor Pritesh Patel
Councillor Norman Stevenson

Reserve Members: Councillor David Ashton
Councillor Marilyn Ashton
Councillor Chetna Halai
Councillor Anjana Patel
Councillor Simon Brown

Representatives of North West London Dr Radhika Balu (VC)
Integrated Care Board: Isha Coombes
Vacancy

Reserve: Hugh Caslake
Representative of Healthwatch Harrow: Yaa Asamany

Reserve: Marie Pate

Representatives from the NHS: James Benson
Simon Crawford

Reserves: Jackie Allain
James Walters



Non Voting Members:

Director of Public Health

Chief Officer, Voluntary and Community
Sector

Senior Officer of Harrow Police

Chair of the Harrow Safeguarding Children
and Adult Board

Managing Director of Harrow Borough Based
Partnership

Corporate Director People / Director of Adult
Social Services, Harrow Council

Director of Children’s Services, Harrow
Council

Carole Furlong
John Higgins

Inspector Edward Baildon
Chris Miller

Lisa Henschen
Senel Arkut

Peter Tolley

Contact: Alison Atherton, Senior Professional - Democratic Services
Tel: 07825 726493 E-mail: alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk

Scan this code for the electronic agenda:

O30

Health and Wellbeing Board - 22 June 2023



Useful Information

Joining the Meeting virtually

The meeting is open to the public and can be viewed online at London Borough of Harrow
webcasts

Attending the Meeting in person

The venue is accessible to people with special needs. If you have specific requirements,
please contact the officer listed on the front page of this agenda.

You will be admitted on a first-come-first basis and directed to seats.
Please:

(1)  Stay seated.

(2)  Access the meeting agenda online at Browse meetings - Health and Wellbeing
Board — Harrow Council

(3) Put mobile devices on silent.
4) Follow instructions of the Security Officers.
(5)  Advise Security on your arrival if you are a registered speaker.

Filming / recording

This meeting may be recorded or filmed, and if you choose to attend, you will be deemed to
have consented to this. Any recording may be published on the Council website.

Agenda publication date: Wednesday 14 June 2023

Health and Wellbeing Board - 22 June 2023 3


https://harrow.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://harrow.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://moderngov.harrow.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1280&Year=0
https://moderngov.harrow.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1280&Year=0

10.

11.

12.

Agenda - Part |

Attendance by Reserve Members
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members.

Appointment of Vice-Chair
To note the appointment of the Chair of the Harrow Integrated Care Board as Vice-Chair
of the Health and Wellbeing Board for the 2023-24 Municipal Year.

Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising from
business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 12)
That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2023 be taken as read and signed as
a correct record.

Public Questions
To receive any public questions received.

Questions will be asked in the order in which they were received. There will be a time
limit of 15 minutes for the asking and answering of public questions.

[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, Monday 19 June 2023.
Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.qgov.uk

No person may submit more than one question].

Petitions
To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors.

Deputations
To receive deputations (if any).

Better Care Fund 2022/23 Year End and Planning for 2023/24 (To Follow)
Report of Corporate Director, People

Supplementary statement to the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (Pages 13 -
16)
Report of the Director of Public Health

Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Healthy Policy & Practice (Pages 17 - 32)
Report of the Director of Public Health

Integrated Care Board Health and Care Strategy for North West London (Pages 33 -
178)
Report of the Executive Director of Strategy and Population Health

Any Other Business
Which cannot otherwise be dealt with.

Health and Wellbeing Board - 22 June 2023


mailto:publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

Agenda - Part Il - Nil

Data Protection Act Notice
The Council will record the meeting and will place the recording on the Council’s website.

[Note: The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.]

Health and Wellbeing Board - 22 June 2023



This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda ltem 4
Pages 7 to 12

(Hirzz

LONDOMN

Health and Wellbeing Board
Minutes

21 March 2023

Present:
Chair: Councillor Paul Osborn
Board Councillor Ghazanfar Ali Harrow Council
Members: Councillor Hitesh Karia Harrow Council
Councillor Pritesh Patel Harrow Council
Councillor Norman Stevenson Harrow Council
Yaa Asamany Healthwatch Harrow
Isha Coombes North West London Integrated
Care Board
Non Voting Senel Arkut Corporate Director, Harrow Council
Members: People
Carole Furlong Director of Public Harrow Council
Health
Lisa Henschen Harrow Borough
Based Partnership
Chris Miller Chair, Harrow Harrow Council
Safeguarding
Boards
Peter Tolley Director of Harrow Council
Children's Services
In Sebastien Baugh  Consultant in
attendance: Public Health
(Officers) James Biggin- Director of London North West
Lamming Transformation University Healthcare

Laurence Gibson

Piers Milner

Health and Wellbeing Board - 21 March 2023

Consultant in
Public Health

NHS Trust

London North West
University Healthcare
NHS Trust

Page 16



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Apologies Dr Radhika Balu John Higgins
received: Simon Crawford

Absent: Inspector Edward Baildon
James Benson
Attendance by Reserve Members
RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance.
Declarations of Interest

RESOLVED: To note that there were no declarations of interests made by
Members.

Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2023 be
taken as read and signed as a correct record.

Petitions
RESOLVED: To note that no petitions had been received.
Public Questions

RESOLVED: To note that two public questions had been received and
responded to and the recording would be made available on the Council’s
website.

Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that no deputations had been received.

Resolved Items
Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Healthy People Delivery Plan

The Board received a report which summarised how the commitments from
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy would be delivered.

The Board were advised that the Strategy set out plans to report on each of
the three domains of Healthy People, Healthy Policy and Practice and Healthy
Place once a year. The report before the Board presented the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy delivery plan for Healthy People and the Healthy People
domain indicators. It also set out a proposal that a Senior Responsible Officer
(SRO) be identified for each of the strategy domains with the expectation that
these individuals would have overall accountability and responsibility for the
delivery plan to address the strategy’s commitments, responsibility for
coordinating an annual report to, and reporting back to, the Board.

Health and Wellbeing Board - 21 March 2023 8 Page 17



The officer advised that there would be a particular focus on three areas
within the delivery plan over the next one to two years but there would
continue to be updates to the Board on other areas. The first focus would be
on integration around family hubs with children centres converting to family
hubs and neighbourhood resource centres converting to health and wellbeing
hubs. Secondly, there would also be a focus on prevention and around the
conversation café. The third area of focus would be engagement and the
commitment to embed population health management approaches within the
work undertaken and to codesign the interventions with residents in order to
meet their needs.

Members of the Board welcomed the strategy and expressed their support. It
was commented that timeliness and collaboration were critical. Clarification
was sought in relation to the North West London indicators where there
appeared to be no data and the Board was advised that in terms of
benchmarking there was no relevant data. The officer undertook to see if it
were possible to get this data or to compare performance data with statistical
neighbours but noted the Member’'s comment that if there were no relevant
data it should not be included.

With reference to data, a Member asked whether it was possible to receive
health related data at ward level and was advised that health and wellbeing
ward profiles had been provided the previous year. The Chair stated that
some data was four years old which was not helpful but acknowledged that
this may be due in part to the pandemic. He questioned how policy could be
changed if the data before the Board was out of date.

An officer suggested that there needed to be a discussion in terms of violence
against women and girls, youth offending and adolescent safeguarding in
terms of Board ownership and whether this sat with the Safer Harrow Board
or the Safeguarding Children and Adult Board. He requested this be noted for
further discussion.

In response to a question as to why the areas highlighted had been chosen as
a focus, the Board was advised that in terms of the integration agenda,
prevention needed to be embedded throughout the strategy.

A Member questioned how the difficulties for those residents for whom
English was not their first language or were refugees would be engaged with.
He stated that GP practices had previously acted as a form of hub where
people could meet but it was now difficult for residents to get a GP
appointment. In terms of understanding Harrow’s communities, the Board
was advised that there were a number of initiatives underway including the
Conversation Café, Community Champions and around vaccine hesitancy
and that it was important to understand the barriers communities faced.
Harrow had a diverse community that may require different services and there
was work being done around integration and development of services and
steering groups would assist in shaping these. Information sharing was also
important.

In terms of GP access, the representative of the Integrated Care Board

accepted that this remained an issue that was exacerbated by the workforce
crisis, changing demographics and more complex patient needs. The Board

Health and Wellbeing Board - 21 March 2023 9 Page 18



38.

indicated that they would welcome an item for discussion on this topic at a
future meeting.

The Board then discussed the role of SRO and identifying who would take on
those roles. It was suggested that this be discussed outside of the meeting so
that contact could be made with the relevant officers. The Chair requested
that when considering the Healthy Place domain, housing in the private rented
sector be addressed. It was further commented that it was important to have
some representation from Housing colleagues.

RESOLVED: That

(1)  the approach to delivery of the health and wellbeing strategy be
endorsed;

(2)  a Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for each one of the three strategy
domains outlined in the report be endorsed;

(3) the officers identified as SROs following the meeting be reported to the
Board for approval.

Launch of Our Way Forward: Strategy for London North West University
Healthcare NHS Trust

The Board received a report which provided details of London North West
University Healthcare NHS Trust Our Way Forward strategy which set a clear
vision for the future and shape of the Trust’s work for the next five years.

Following a detailed presentation of the strategy, the Board made comments
and asked questions as follows:-

o Midwifery services did not appear to be mentioned within the strategy
and, having previous been dangerous and inadequate, clarification was
sought on the plans to remedy this. The Board was advised that the
Maternity Strategy had been launched at the end of 2022 and was
organised around three domains; leadership and governance, safe and
effective care and women centred care. The service had fluctuated
between adequate and inadequate and in terms of being sustainably
‘good’ this would be progressed through the strategy over the next year
or so. A Maternity Improvement Lead had been appointed the previous
week as a continuation of investment in the department/service.

. Objective 4 of the strategy outlined delivery in the community and
clarity was sought in terms of integration the other strategies the Trust
was looking to adopt to progress community based support. The
Board was advised that pre Covid, London North West had not always
been as outward facing as it should have been but was ready to play
its part working with partners. Some of this would be around
innovation and delivering services in a different way or it might be the
provision of expertise or the use of buildings and assets. An officer
commented that there had been a shift in the culture of the Trust and
cited the example of a paediatrician being available at a Children’s
Health Hub and consultants being more available.

Health and Wellbeing Board - 21 March 2023 10 Page 19



39.

o Northwick Park Hospital had a significant impact on Harrow and placed
pressure on the wider system and the long term vision of the Trust for
the hospital was questioned. The Board was advised that service
changes such as the new ‘front door’ and virtual wards and
enhancements as well as investment in a purpose built critical care unit
for the hospital would address this. The balance between Ealing
Hospital and Northwick Park also required consideration as well as
staffing issues.

o Concern was expressed about the use of annual indicators to measure
performance, particularly when out of date data was being used. The
data was from the staff survey of 2021 and therefore the picture might
now be different. The Board were advised that the staff survey for
2022 had just been published but the point was acknowledged and the
Trust would be introducing pulse surveys.

. Whilst welcoming the comprehensive report and strategy and its
ambitions a Member questioned whether some of the work had been
completed and how feedback from users was obtained. Whilst the
automated texts were welcomed, some residents received 3 or 4
copies of the same letter and this had to be resolved. In response, the
Board were advised that the friends and family test and patient care
participation group provided feedback. It was acknowledged that
support services had not been prioritised but that it was hoped that
investment to save would resolve the duplication of letters.

o In terms of supporting and promoting wellbeing of staff, one example
where working together would be welcomed was cervical screening of
women under 50. The integrated staff forum could be used as a
vehicle for addressing workplace health.

The Board thanked the representatives of the Trust for the presentation.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Any other Urgent Business

The Board were informed that the Council had been advised of a joint

targeted area of inspection of children in need. This was a multiagency

inspection with 9 inspectors on site from 27 to 31 March 2023. Feedback

would be given to the Board.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 10.05 am, closed at 11.20 am).

(Signed) Councillor Paul Osborn
Chair

Health and Wellbeing Board - 21 March 2023 11 Page 20



This page is intentionally left blank



Aaoenda Iltem 9
Pages 13 to 16

Report for: Health and Wellbeing
Board

Date of Meeting: 22" June 2023

Subject: Supplementary statement to the

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment

Responsible Officer: Carole Furlong. Director of Public

Health.
Public: Yes
Wards affected: All wards
Enclosures: None

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

The Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) was approved by the Health
and Wellbeing Board in November 2022. The PNA details if there is
sufficient pharmaceutical provision across Harrow. As Pharmacies change
the PNA needs to be revisited to ensure the scope of supply is still
sufficient. The changes are detailed in a log of changes known as
Supplementary Statements. Since the publication of the PNA in November
2022 there have been two supplementary statements, this is the second
notification to the Board.

Recommendations:

The Board is requested to: Approve the conclusion that the residents of
Harrow will not be negatively impacted by the consolidation of two
community pharmacies at High Road, Harrow Weald HA3 6EL.

13



Section 2 - Report
Date Supplementary Statement issued — February 2023

The Regulations state that Supplementary Statements can provide updates to
the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment only in relation to changes in the
availability of pharmaceutical services. Supplementary Statements cannot
provide updates on pharmaceutical need. This can only be achieved through
a review of the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment.

The following pharmaceutical services currently contained within the
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment have been identified as needing updating.
This updated information supersedes some of the original information within
the PNA and should be read in conjunction with that document.

Closure of pharmacies

Pharmacy ODS | Details Effective
from
Bachu’s Jade FCG50 | Has closed and has been 18/11/2022
Pharmacy removed from the
708 Kenton Road, pharmaceutical list for Harrow
Kenton HA3 9QX Health and Wellbeing Board
area

Consolidation of two pharmacies into one

Pharmacy OoDS Details Effective
from

Closing: Wellcare | GH519 | Has closed and has been 06/02/2023

Pharmacy, 2 removed from the

Weald Lane, pharmaceutical list for Harrow

Harrow Weald Health and Wellbeing Board

HA3 5ES area

Remaining: FKM10 | Updated new opening hours: 06/02/2023

Wellcare Mon-Fri 09:00-19:00;

Pharmacy, 385 Sat 09:00-17:30;

High Road, Harrow Sun Closed

Weald HA3 6EL

It is the opinion of Harrow Health and Wellbeing board that the removal of this
pharmacy from the pharmaceutical list does not create a gap in
pharmaceutical services provision that could be met by a routine application
(a) to meet a current or future need for pharmaceutical services, or (b) to
secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services.

Supplementary Statement prepared by Soar Beyond Ltd and issued by Carole

Furlong, Director of Public Health, on behalf of Harrow Health and Wellbeing
Board.

14



Ward Councillors’ comments N/A

Financial Implications/Comments

The costs of carrying out the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment of £26k
were funded by the ringfenced Public Health Grant in 2021-22.

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications/Comments

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 established health and wellbeing
boards. It also transferred responsibility to develop and update
pharmaceutical needs assessments from primary care trusts to health and
wellbeing boards with effect from 1 April 2013. The relevant regulations
governing the content of the needs assessment are The National Health
Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations
2013.

The terms of reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board include production
a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment and revision every three years

Risk Management Implications

The PNA does not present any risks, or suggest any mitigation
Risks included on corporate or directorate risk register? No
Separate risk register in place? No

The relevant risks contained in the register are attached/summarised below.
n/a

Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality
Duty

Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out? Yes
The EqlA has not identified any potential for unlawful conduct or

disproportionate impact and all opportunities to advance equality of
opportunity are being addressed.

15



Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance
(Council and Joint Reports)

Statutory Officer: Donna Edwards
Signed on behalf of the Chief Financial Officer

Date: 02/06/2023

Statutory Officer: Sharon Clarke
Signed on behalf of the Monitoring Officer

Date: 05/06/2023

Chief Officer: Senel Arkut
Signed by the Corporate Director

Date: 09/06/2023

Mandatory Checks

Ward Councillors notified: NO, as it impacts on all Wards

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background

Papers

Contact: Laurence Gibson, Consultant in Public Health, 07749 602492

Background Papers: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2022

https://www.harrow.gov.uk/health-leisure/pharmaceutical-needs-

assessments

If appropriate, does the report include the following
considerations?

1.  Consultation NO

16


https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.harrow.gov.uk%2Fhealth-leisure%2Fpharmaceutical-needs-assessments&data=05%7C01%7CAlison.Atherton%40harrow.gov.uk%7C57534ec0394d4d8dff6008db6c254371%7Cd2c39953a8db4c3c97f2d2dc76fb3e2c%7C1%7C0%7C638222679518486543%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wUFyVVBGXfSaZ2pxxsIBDG%2BRpygBJbMiS06wvpEUwvY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.harrow.gov.uk%2Fhealth-leisure%2Fpharmaceutical-needs-assessments&data=05%7C01%7CAlison.Atherton%40harrow.gov.uk%7C57534ec0394d4d8dff6008db6c254371%7Cd2c39953a8db4c3c97f2d2dc76fb3e2c%7C1%7C0%7C638222679518486543%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wUFyVVBGXfSaZ2pxxsIBDG%2BRpygBJbMiS06wvpEUwvY%3D&reserved=0

Aaoenda Item 10
Pages 17 to 32

g:--g LONDON BOROUGH OF

" HARROW

Report for: Health and Wellbeing
Board

Date of Meeting: 22" June 2023

Subject: Health and Wellbeing Strategy —

Healthy Policy & Practice

Responsible Officer: Carole Furlong, Director of Public

Health

Public: Yes

Wards affected: All wards

Enclosures: Harrow Health and Wellbeing
Strategy

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

The ‘Healthy Policy & Practice’ domain within the strategy has three key
areas of focus:

e Making every contact count everyone’s business

e Community involvement and engagement

e Creating and embedding Health in All Policies

To support developing a partnership and system-wide delivery plan, the
Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider the following for each of
the ‘Healthy Policy & Practice’ work programme areas:
— What are the strengths and opportunities for the work
programme?
— What are the challenges, threats and risks for the work
programme?
— What will partners commit to delivering?
— How will success be measured?

17



Section 2

Background

Harrow’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy was endorsed at the Health and
Wellbeing Board in November 2022. The strategy set out plans to report on
each of the domains, Healthy People, Healthy Policy & Practice and Healthy
Place, once a year.

Healthy Harrow

o Healthy People

Start well
Giving every child
the best start
in life

o Healthy Policy & Practice

Making every Creating amd .
contact count embedding health ?:::IT:\::‘I:Y
everyone’s in all policies
business

e Healthy Place

Creating

healthy

and safe
communites

This quarter, the board is asked to consider the ‘Healthy Policy & Practice’
domain. In particular, focussing on the three key work programme areas of
the domain and the commitments made within the strategy:

Making every contact count (MECC) everyone’s business

18



MECC enables the opportunistic delivery of consistent and concise healthy
lifestyle information and enables individuals to engage in conversations about
their health at scale across organisations and populations. The point about
MECC interventions is that they don’t need to be undertaken by a health
professional. By developing some simple key communication skills and
communicating evidence based healthy lifestyle messages — everyone can
have a role to play. MECC is about utilising those everyday conversations
with the public to make a difference. Commitments within the strategy include:

¢ Identifying which communities and neighbourhoods within Harrow that
would benefit from the MECC programme through a population health
management approach

e Working with the community and voluntary sector to embed the MECC
approach

e Developing MECC training for the Harrow workforce, as well as
community groups

Community involvement and engagement

Community involvement and engagement is more than consultation.
Involvement and engagement is to systematically highlight the known issues
to the communities that they matter to the most, to explore motivations and
barriers and to create ownership and enable residents to take some control in
their health and wellbeing choices. Health, care, community & voluntary
sector partners will need to initially coordinate this activity, based on the
priorities arising from the JSNA and to initially propose which issues are most
appropriate to approach the community with. Commitments within the strategy
include:

e Produce a systematic basis for engagement topics and corresponding
schedule of involvement and engagement themes with the community

e |dentify who are broad and specific stakeholder groups are and ensure
an appropriate level of engagement

e Access to venues and resources (e.g. Children’s Centres, Family
Hubs, Drop-In Cafes)

e Encouraging volunteering - including micro-volunteering, working as
and with local employers

e Joining up support in the community (e.g. around CAB and debt
support)

e Prioritising and investing long-term in what we have (JOY social
prescribing platform and other digital transformation)

Creating and embedding Health in All Policies

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy outlines a wide range of determinants
(building blocks) of health and wellbeing including education, housing,
transportation and economic productivity. Each of these building blocks of
health will have separate policies directing their activity, and as such, it is
important that these policies all demonstrate an understanding on how they
can positively impact health and wellbeing. This concept is referred to as

19



Health In All Policies (HIAP).

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy crosses many organisational boundaries.
Each Health and Wellbeing member organisation will ensure that the strategy,
aims, and principles are reflected in their own Corporate Objectives.
Commitments within the strategy include:

e Embed a health in all policies approach throughout the system

e Supporting staff to understand how they can influence health and
wellbeing through their policies

e Agree and standardise the approach to Health Impact assessments
throughout the borough

e Support the delivery of Core20PLUS5 programme through primary
care

e Embed Population Health Management as an approach across the
system.

For the board to consider and discuss:

To support developing a partnership and system-wide delivery plan, for each
of the key programme areas, the board is asked to consider and discuss:

What are the strengths and opportunities for the work programme?
What are the challenges, threats and risks for the work programme?
What will partners commit to delivering?

How will success be measured?

Financial Implications/Comments

There are no direct costs associated with delivering the health and wellbeing
strategy.

Whilst there are no additional direct financial implications arising from this
report, the prioritisation of strategy, through the borough-based partnership
and wider system, will need to be contained within existing partner resources,
which includes the annual public health grant.

Legal Implications/Comments

Section 116A of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007, stipulates that it is the responsibility of the local authority and integrated
care boards to prepare a local health and wellbeing strategy.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 provides responsibility to the Health and
Wellbeing Board for the oversight of the local health and wellbeing strategy.

A key responsibility of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to therefore have
oversight and accountability of the proposed strategy.

20



Risk Management Implications

The health and wellbeing strategy does not present any risks, or suggest any
mitigation

Risks included on corporate or directorate risk register? No
Separate risk register in place? No

The relevant risks contained in the register are attached/summarised below.
n/a

Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality
Duty

Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out? No

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance
(Council and Joint Reports)

Statutory Officer: Donna Edwards
Signed on behalf ofthe Chief Financial Officer

Date: 02/06/23

Statutory Officer: Sharon Clarke
Signed on behalf of the Monitoring Officer

Date: 06/06/23

Chief Officer: Senel Arkut
Signed by the Corporate Director

Date: 09/06/23
Mandatory Checks
Ward Councillors notified: NO, as it impacts on

all Wards

21



Section 4 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact: Seb Baugh, Consultant in Public Health,
sebastien.baugh@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers: Harrow Health and Wellbeing Strategy

If appropriate, does the report include the following
considerations?

1.  Consultation NO
2. Periorities NO

22


mailto:sebastien.baugh@harrow.gov.uk

( //ar/‘aéo(_:oumcm )

LONDON

Health and wellbeing board — Health Policy & Practice

ec

Thursday 22" June 2023



Purpose of today’s session ( Harroatounci )

LONDON

e Health and wellbeing board, as a group, to consider the following for each
of the work programme areas:
— What are the strengths and opportunities for the work programme?
— What are the challenges, threats and risks for the work programme?
— What will partners commit to delivering?
~ — How will success be measured?



0 Healthy People

Start well Live well Age well
Giving every child Supporting healthy Promoting
the best start people of healthy ageing
in life all ages

e Healthy Policy & Practice

Making every Creating amd Community
contact count embedding health :
, . ot involvment
everyone’s in all policies
business
e Healthy Place
Creating Creating healthy Developing
healthy environments and and sustaining
and safe addressing a thriving

communites climate change economy




Making Every Contact Count everyone’s business

( ar/‘aacouwcw

LONDON

What is MECC?

A range of free, 60-90 minute
briefings that everyone should
know about. The courses are
delivered by public health with
Invited experts where appropriate.
c“”key opportunity to engage
residents

All sessions start with Core
Training with the second part
focussed on a specific topic

PH looking for a delivery partner
from September 2023.

PART 1:
Core
Training

MECC and
models of
Behaviour

change

PART 2:

Planned delivery at
Selected Topics least x4 sessions per
as below year

From Dec 2022 — March
2023

Winter Wellness

Mental Health From Feb 2023 - ongoing

Healthy Beginnings From Feb 2023 - ongoing

Domestic Violence From Feb 2023 - ongoing

Sexual Health From April 2023 - ongoing

Safer Sleep (Infant From March 2023
mortality)

Hypertension From April 2023



Community involvement and engagement ( arrontouncit )

LONDON

e Engagement is built on the basis of open and supportive dialogue following the
model used during Covid.

e Thursday Community Touchpoint. Weekly open forum for residents and
representatives to discuss topical issues with Public Health and HWB partners.

N
~

e Consultation topics, Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, Carers strategy, CYP
and family hubs

e Community Development. February workshop bringing together NHS, Councill
and CVS support services to share experiences

e Proposal to expand community development workshops, series of sessions
specific to a topic inviting providers and residents to discuss case studies.



Creating and embedding Health in All Policies (Harroatouncil)

e What is Health in All Policies

— Health in all policies is an established approach to improving health and health equity
through cross-sector action on the wider determinants of health: the social,
environmental, economic and commercial conditions in which people live

vne Health and Wellbeing strategy committed to:
— Embed a health in all policies approach throughout the system
— Supporting staff to understand how they can influence health and wellbeing through their
policies
— Agree and standardise the approach to Health Impact assessments throughout the
borough



Healthy Policy & Practice commitments ( #arroat:ounci

LONDON
4' Making Every Contact Count everyone’s business

* [dentifying which communities and neighbourhoods within Harrow that would benefit from the MECC programme
through a population health management approach

» Working with the community and voluntary sector to embed the MECC approach
» Developing MECC training for the Harrow workforce, as well as community groups

[ )

Community involvement and engagement ]

» Produce a systematic basis for engagement topics and corresponding schedule of involvement and engagement
themes with the community

» [dentify who are broad and specific stakeholder groups are and ensure an appropriate level of engagement

» Access to venues and resources (e.g. Children’s Centres, Family Hubs, Drop-In Cafes)

» Encouraging volunteering - including micro-volunteering, working as and with local employers

» Joining up support in the community (e.g. around CAB and debt support)

* Prioritising and investing long-term in what we have (JOY social prescribing platform and other digital transformation)

6¢

f N

Creating and embedding Health in All Policies

' y

* Embed a health in all policies approach throughout the system

 Supporting staff to understand how they can influence health and wellbeing through their policies
» Agree and standardise the approach to Health Impact assessments throughout the borough
 Support the delivery of Core20PLUSS5 programme through primary care

« Embed Population Health Management as an approach across the system.




Discussion activity ( Harroat-ounci )

LONDON

e Split into three groups
e Each group take one programme of work (e.g. MECC, HIAP etc)

e Answer the guestions on the next page, using the flipchart paper and
post-it notes

0 ® 15/20 mins of discussion and 5 minutes to feedback
e Each group will have a facilitator



Questions to consider

What are the strengths and opportunities
for the work programme?

What are the challenges, threats and

ks for the work programme?




This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda ltem 11
Pages 33to 178

745
e T’“ LONDON BOROUGH OF

HARROW

Report for: Health and Wellbeing
Board

Date of Meeting: 22" June 2023

Subject: ICS Health and Care Strategy for

North West London

Responsible Officer: Toby Lambert Executive Director of
Strategy for North West London’s
Integrated Care Board

Public: Yes

Wards affected: All

Health and Care Summary
Draft ICS Health and Care Strategy
for North West London

Enclosures:

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report sets out a draft Health and Care Strategy as is required of the
Integrated Care System of North West London to produce. NHS and local
authorities are required to ‘have regard’ to the strategy and publish a final
version which covers both health and care i.e. health and relevant local
authority services.

Recommendations:

The Board is requested to: Review the initial draft strategy, via one-page
summaries or full draft version as published on the NW London ICB website
and discuss the content. A request for the board to feedback their
evaluation of the draft and suggested changes, and to share content wider
across their borough for greater engagement and insight from residents.

33



Section 2 - Report
N/A Draft discussion document
Ward Councillors’ comments

N/A Draft discussion document
Financial Implications/Comments
N/A Draft discussion document

Legal Implications/Comments
N/A Draft discussion document

Risk Management Implications
N/A Draft discussion document

Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality
Duty

N/A Draft discussion document
Clearance (Council and Joint Reports)

N/A Draft discussion document

34



Mandatory Checks
Ward Councillors notified: Yes, shared at ICP informal
meeting 16" May 2023

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact: Cassandra Dorries, cassandra.dorries@nhs.net, Head of Strategy
for North West London’s Integrated Care Board

Background Papers: www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/

about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strateqy

https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/2916/8474/4102/
Health and care summary.pdf

https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/5116/8474/4360/
230502 DRAFT ICS Health and Care Strateqy for North Wes
t London.pdf

If appropriate, does the report include the following
considerations?

1. Consultation YES
2. Priorities YES

35


mailto:cassandra.dorries@nhs.net
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/2916/8474/4102/Health_and_care_summary.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/2916/8474/4102/Health_and_care_summary.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/2916/8474/4102/Health_and_care_summary.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/5116/8474/4360/230502_DRAFT_ICS_Health_and_Care_Strategy_for_North_West_London.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/5116/8474/4360/230502_DRAFT_ICS_Health_and_Care_Strategy_for_North_West_London.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/5116/8474/4360/230502_DRAFT_ICS_Health_and_Care_Strategy_for_North_West_London.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/5116/8474/4360/230502_DRAFT_ICS_Health_and_Care_Strategy_for_North_West_London.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

North West London

Health and

care strateqgy for
North West

London

Summary document




Contents

« Proactive population health and reducing inequalities
« Mental health, learning disabilities and autism

 Local care, including primary care

« Acute care (Hospitals)

« Cancer care

 Babies, children and young people

« Maternity and neonatal

 Involvement

« Data and digital

« Workforce

o Estates

e« Research and innovation




Introduction

We have published a first draft of our health and care strategy for North West London. The

strategy is intended to set out our plans for healthcare services across our eight boroughes.
This document is a summary of that strategy.

We know:
« that in some areas and communities in NW London people have poorer health than in
others.
 the conditions in which we are born, grow, live, work and age can impact our health and
wellbeing.

« the waiting times and access for some services and specialist doctors are too long and
difficult to get to.

« some conditions, including cancers are being diagnosed too late.

We have plans to improve, but we would like to know what you think of our plans so far and
what is important to you.

Your feedback will help us develop our strategy and shape services over the next five years.

Please do complete our survey about the strategy. All comments will be considered as we
develop the final draft.

Scanthe QR code
or use the link

Complete
our survey
and share



https://form.jotform.com/231352708924356

NHS

Proactive population health North West London
and reducing inequalities 1T

We know that in some areas and communities in NW London
people have poorer health than in others.

The conditions in which we are born, grow, live, work and age can impact our health and wellbeing.
Health inequalities are unfair differences in health across the population, and between different
groups within society. These include how long people are likely to live, the health conditions they may
experience and the care that is available to them.

We are working to improve the health of everyone in NW London, no matter who they are.

This work involves local people, the NHS, and other public services including councils, schools, housing
associations and social services working together. This lets us build services that meet the needs of
people in each area, improve people’s health, prevent illnesses, and make better use of public
resources.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you can read our
regular insight reports online.

Our plans to reduce inequalities over the next five years include:

Making sure we have a clear understanding of the health of our population, including the
differences between population groups and how many people have health conditions.

Improving access to care, experience of care and health outcomes for more vulnerable
people.

Working in partnership to improve access to education, training and employment
opportunities for our most disadvantaged communities.

Working with public health partners to keep our communities healthy to reduce high
blood pressure, reduce smoking rates, increase healthy weight initiatives and support our
youngest residents to have a better start in life.

What are your thoughts?
Are these the right things for us to work on ¢




NHS

Mental health, learning North West London

disabilities and autism

We all have mental health - it's about how you feel on any given day.
If you have a mental health problem, it can impact how you think, feel and behave.

We know that more people, and increasingly younger people, need help and support
from mental health services.

We are working with people who use mental health services and those with learning disabilities
and autism, to develop the right support for people and making sure it is in the right place for

them.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you can read our
regular insight reports online.

Our plans over the next five years to improve the mental health outcomes include:

Putting more mental health support teams in schools.

Creating more local (non-clinical) spaces for people to access help and support, for example
adult community mental health services.

Continuing to integrate community mental health services (adults and children's) into local
‘neighbourhood’ teames.

Continuing to improve community based services for autistic people with learning disabilities
to further reduce the reliance on hospital (inpatient) beds.

Promoting alternatives to A&E for those in crisis, including expanding 24/7 helplines and
linking these to 111.

Providing appropriate therapeutic spaces to support people in crisis.

Improving communication and support for people waiting for assessment and care.

What are your thoughts? ?
Are these the right things for us to work on e




NHS

Local care North West London

(including primary care)

This work looks at care and support provided in the community rather than a
hospital, including support in your own home.

We will improve access to health and social care teams, including your GP, and
develop flexible support that meets the different needs of our diverse communities. @

This work covers residents of all ages and supports better care for people who are
‘'mostly healthy’ and people with complex and long standing health conditions.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you
can read our regular insight reports online, and also targeted engagement updates
for people with complex needs, such as at the end of life.

Our plans to improve local care over the next five years include:

Creating ‘neighbourhood’ teams for local communities of roughly 50,000 people with the
NHS and local councils working in partnership to support residents with their health and
care needs. GP services are at the heart of these ‘neighbourhood’ teams and include
other NHS services such as physio or nursing in patient’'s own homes.

Talking to the public about how and where services are provided, and how they can be
best accessed, when care ‘on the day’ is needed - including digital and remote support
where this works well for individual patients.

Improving the early planning and the support people receive at the end of their life.

ldentifying earlier when people have a long term condition such as diabetes or
hypertension and then making sure the best treatment plan is in place based on what the
individual wants.

When people do need a stay in hospital making sure they return home quickly and
safely (including if their home is a care home) with the ongoing support
they, and their family or carers, need.

What are your thoughts? 7
Are these the right things for us to work on e




NHS

North West London

Acute care

This is care that is provided in a hospital. We know that patients are now waiting
longer for emergency and planned care.

This work looks at improving access to specialist care and improving how we
provide urgent and emergency care such as our A&Es and urgent treatment
centres (UTCs).

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement -
you can read our regular insight reports online.

Our plans to improve acute care over the next five years include:

Making sure residents have timely access to specialist doctor’s
expertise whenever they need it.

Reducing waiting times for surgery.

Making sure residents have convenient and timely access to diagnostic
tests, including x-rays and scans.

Improving urgent and emergency care to reduce delays.

Making sure residents experience the same quality of care regardless
of where they receive it.

What are your thoughts? ?
Are these the right things for us to work on e




NHS

North West London

Cancer is an iliness which affects many people over their lifetime. There are
many different types and it is important that we are able to find out about

it early.
We know that there is inequality in people who go for their free NHS
cancer screening. Waiting times to see a cancer specialist are also longer

than they should be.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community
engagement - you can read our regular insight reports online.

Making sure patients are seen within two weeks of a GP cancer referral.

Finding cancers earlier through education sessions, standardising referrals
and developing new interventions.

Improving health outcomes by improving follow-up care for patients.

Working with our partners and community groups to encourage residents
with possible cancer symptoms to contact their doctor earlier.

Working with our community to better understand the reasons why some
people do not attend free NHS cancer screenings.

44



NHS

Babies, children and North West London

young people

We know that there are differences in how healthy children are in NW London. oo
That can be for many reasons including because of where we are born, live Cl_/\_£>
and grow. Children from more deprived backgrounds will often have poorer S S5

health and we want to change that.

This work looks at providing support for families in NW London and working with communities to
improve the health of our children and young people.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement -
you can read our regular insight reports online.

Our plans to improve care for babies, children and young people over the
next five years include:

Developing child health and family hubs and making sure the core services they provide
are the same across NW London. These local hubs will be part of ‘neighbourhood’ teams
and provide services from the NHS, local authority and voluntary care services.

Working with families, children and young people to design services that meet their
needs, especially in areas where we see the biggest differences in health.

Working with Imperial College London and The School of Public Health to use the latest
innovations to better care for our patients.

Working with families to understand the reasons why some are not up to date with
vaccinations.

Improving the health of children’s teeth.

Making sure that families and children will feel listened to and at the centre of making
decisions for their care.

What are your thoughts?
Are these the right things for us to work on ¢



NHS

North West London

Maternity and neonatal

This work looks at the care you and your baby receive during pregnancy.

We know that there is more we can do to improve the experience, quality and o
safety of care for mothers and partners across our maternity services.

We want to support our midwifery workforce and develop new ways to support
mothers and their families in our care.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement -
you can read our regular insight reports online.

Our plans to improve maternity and neonatal care over the next five years include:

Setting up new pre-term birth clinics to help reduce the number of babies born early.

Supporting staff with improved training opportunities and continuing to recruit new staff
into maternity and neonatal services.

Making maternity and neonatal services more efficient with better use of digital tools for
parents and families, for those who can use them e.g the NW London Mum and Baby app.

Joining services together where it will mean we can better support patients.

Working with Maternity and Neonatal Voice Partnerships to make sure we have maternity
& neonatal champions to be the voice of the patient and support our family.

Integrating maternity services into family hubs to better support families.

Working with our communities to understand how midwifery and neonatal services need
to be different to support the needs of different groups.

Prioritising continuity of care for those who will benefit most - Black, Asian and mixed
ethnicity women, and women from

our most deprived areas of NW What are your thoughts? ?
London. Are these the right things for us to work on ¢




NHS

North West London

Involvement

Hearing from our residents across NW London is so important. We want ‘ :

to have NHS services that work for you and we can’t do that without your
help.

Our communities want to be listened to and involved in the development of
their local health services.

This work looks at how we will work with local people and use their feedback to improve and
develop services.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you can read our
regular insight reports online.

Our plans to involve our local communities over the next five years include:

Regularly asking ‘what matters to you’ as we listen to all our communities across NW
London.

Placing as much importance on what we hear from our residents and populations as we
do with other data.

Working with grassroots voluntary sector organisations and residents to build trusted
relationships with our communities.

Designing future plans in partnership with people and communities.

Empowering people to take control of their own health and increase confidence in
managing long term conditions.

Making sure our residents have a voice in all our work.

What are your thoughts?
Are these the right things for us to work on ¢




NHS

North West London

Data and digital

Using technology is not something that everyone wants to do, or can do.
However, for many people, new technology can support their health - for
example to help keep them out of hospital by monitoring and managing

health from home.

We know we have work to do to update our IT systems to improve efficiency.
This work looks at how we can make better use of technology to support patients and health and care

staff, to improve care.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you can read our regular
insight reports online.

Our plans to further develop our use of digital and data over the next five years include:

Using new and innovative technologies to improve and support clinical decision making.

Creating new ways to provide care using advances in technology, for example virtual wards
and home monitoring.

Developing a single dataset of timely, detailed health and care information, that can help
clinicians provide the right care and support for patients.

Developing systems to provide a NW London wide overview and management of demand,
capacity and patient flows across hospitals and primary care services.

Automating advice and guidance from clinical specialists to support GPs with referrals.

Implementing shared records, so all clinicians supporting the health and care of an individual
can see their information.

Standardising clinical systems across hospitals and care settings, to allow all our hospital
systems to talk to each other.

Reducing the need for patients to
repeat information at What are your thoughts?

each appointment. Are these the right things for us to work on 4




NHS

North West London

We know that recruitment and retention of staff in health,
Is becoming more challenging.

This work looks at how we can better support staff through training and new ways to
provide care with new job roles that benefit both staff and patients.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you can
read our reqgular insight reports online.

Our plans to improve support for our workforce over the next five years include:

Creating flexible career pathways across all the organisations within the
NW London Integrated Care System.

Addressing racism and developing inclusive practices and culture.
Improving staff wellbeing and providing better support.

Doing things differently - looking at hard to recruit roles and redesigning
models of care to make services and roles better for staff and patients.

Working with primary care and social care to develop joined up
workforce plans.

Making sure effective education and training programmes are in place
to deliver future ways of providing care, new roles, and new
apprenticeships through a NW London health and care skills academy.

What are your thoughts?
Are these the right things for us to work on 4




NHS

North West London

Estates

This looks at the building space we have within NW London. It is
everything from hospitals and GP surgeries to local clinics and offices.

We know that some of our buildings are not fit for purpose and that
It is not all being used as effectively as it could be.

This work looks at how we can improve environments and better use our spaces to
provide care.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community engagement - you can
read our reqgular insight reports online.

Our plans to improve our use of buildings over the next five years include:

Working together with clinical programs and stakeholders to develop
proposals to make estate fit for purpose now and for the future.

Progressing the developments of two new hospital builds for Hillingdon
and Imperial hospitals.

Making better use of empty spaces and using space efficiently.
Working together across ICS organisations to use space collectively.

Reviewing all leases in primary care to better serve local communities
through primary care hubs supporting local ‘neighbourhood’ teams.

What are your thoughts?
Are these the right things for us to work on 4




NHS

North West London

Research & innovation

We know that there is more we can learn and there are better ways to
prevent and diagnose disease earlier.

This work looks at how we can improve the health of our patients
by being more ambitious with the research we undertake.

All of our plans have been informed by our ongoing community
engagement — you can read our regular insight reports online.

Our plans for research and innovation over the next five years include:

Concentrating our research effort on fewer areas to support the
adoption and roll out of new methods of prevention and treatment.
These include:

Maximising the experience and outcomes for residents with chronic
disease, by preventing, diagnosing and better treating patient needs.
This work will start by looking at cardiovascular disease.

Minimising the harm suffered by patients being in the wrong care
setting.

Ensuring that children and young adults have the best start in life,
with a particular focus on promoting positive mental health.

Supporting and incentivising how research and innovation works across,
and improves the lives of, all our communities in NW London .

What are your thoughts?
Are these the right things for us to work on 4




If you require this document in another language please contact
nhsnwl.communications.nwl@nhs.net

Translation requested

52



DRAFT

Health and Care Strategy for North West London

How NHS North West London and the eight local authority boroughs will support and
improve the health and care needs of our communities, improve life expectancy,
quality of life and reduce inequalities.

Produced by North West London’s Integrated Care Partnership

2023

NOTE: This is an early draft
shared in the spirt of
transparency for comment
and feedback

Comments please to
nhsnwl.nwlstrategy@nhs.net

53


mailto:nhsnwl.nwlstrategy@nhs.net

Contents

Part 1 — NW London ICS priorities and iNSIght .............ccoovviiiiiiiiee e, 3
EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ...oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiieeb bbbt sennnee 3
Context Of NOrth WeSt LONUON ........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies et e e e e eeenes 10
Challenges facing North West London and the case for change ...............cccece.. 12
What we have heard from local people to date. ... 16
Shared outCOMES fOF @l .........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii b 21

Part 2 — NW ondonL ICS Transformation Programmes ...........ccccooeeeeevevieiiiiiinneeenn, 27
Proactive population health management and reducing inequalities .................... 27
[ Yo Lo 1= 34
F o0 | (- TSRO 45
Mental health, learning disabilities and autiSM ..o, 51

Part 3 — CliINICAI NEIWOIKS.......iiii i e e e e e e e e e 56
Y E= UET € 11 TN 57
Babies, children, and youNng PEOPIE ...........uuuuiiuuuerriieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiea 61
L= o (o7 ST PRPPPPRTRPPPI 71

Part 4 — NW London ICS Enabling Programmes ............cccoevviviiiiiiie e e 76
Communications, resident involvement and community insight....................cooo. 76
Data and digital .............ouuiiiiiii e 85
LAY Lo 4 0 o= 86
1T T 93
] = 1 (<1 J PP 93
Research and INNOVALION .............ouuiiiiiiie e 100
Embedding sustainability .............oouiiiiiii e 105

2

54



Part 1 —

NW London ICS priorities and insight

Executive Summary

Welcome to the integrated care strategy for North West London. North West London
is one of the largest, most diverse, and vibrant integrated care systems in England,
with a population of over 2.1m people speaking over 100 languages.

This strategy builds on the health and well-being strategies of the eight boroughs that
comprise North West London, as well as national and London ambitions. It has been
prepared by North West London’s integrated care partnership, that brings together the
eight local authorities, the NHS, and wider partners. It lays out how we collectively aim
to improve health and care across North West London to improve your health and well-

being.

The population in NW London faces a number of challenges:

While we have made great gains in health status over the last twenty years,
this has largely stalled in the last 5-6 years and appears to have gone into
reverse.

While the population of NW London is generally younger than the population
of England as a whole, we are still seeing the fastest growth in the oldest
cohorts of the population.

Population projections are subject to considerable uncertainty, given Covid-
19, Brexit and patterns of migration, but the ONS central projection still
suggests an increase of over 100,000 in the NW London population by
2040.

People of different backgrounds — ethnicity, deprivation, people with autism
and learning difficulties etc. — continue to experience unacceptable
variations in their health (rates of obesity, rates of heart disease), in access
to care, in their experience of care and their outcomes from care. For
example, people from our more deprived populations, or from ethnic
minorities, wait longer before presenting with symptoms of cancer, and then
wait longer for referral for further investigation; people with autism, learning
disabilities or suffering severe mental ill health die on average 10 years
younger.

While unemployment itself did not rise sharply during COVID, we saw a
sharp increase in those claiming out of work benefits. The numbers have
begun to fall, but remain high;

This is exacerbated by the current cost of living crisis, as rises in prices
outstrip income for most people.

Health inequalities have existed in our communities for a long time and in
many areas have been compounded over the last few years, both by the
COVID-19 pandemic, national and local tragedies such as the fire at
Grenfell Tower. This has put yet more pressure on our communities who

55



are most in need and we must ensure our support is sufficiently targeted to
provide the help they may need.

Amongst other issues, our residents have told us that:

They are concerned about the lack of access to GPs in particular for face to
face appointments;

Services are not joined up and can be confusing to navigate. This disjointed
support from can lead to a sense of disempowerment — the challenge of
accessing services and the feeling of having to explain experience time and
time again is exhausting so people give up’.

Conversely, positive feedback for One Stop Shop health / inequalities
events ‘this event makes me feel like someone is looking after us’.

Some communities told us they don’t feel ‘believed’ when speaking to their
GP or health professional

Disability groups report experiencing behaviours and situations which
exacerbate inequality

Mental health stigma in some communities remains a challenge

Some young people told us their concerns regarding mental health were not
always taken seriously

Further focus on prevention and healthy living would be a positive step.
Make information about healthy eating more readily available and improve
guality and variety of resources available.

Long-term conditions. Residents want to manage their long-term conditions
better but require information to support this

Support for the NHS - amongst the frustrations, we heard many supportive
comments for the NHS, understanding for workload and pressures for
clinicians and saying how valuable the NHS was. Many expressed worry
and concern for the NHS and those that worked in it. “You are already doing
a great job.”

Our health and care system is trying to respond to these challenges, but faces a
number of issues itself:

While the number of people employed within our trusts is at record levels,
we do have high vacancy rates with shortages in some critical roles and
many staff groups have been taking industrial action;

Activity does not appear to have kept pace with the growth in staff and we
have significant challenges in patients are treated as efficiently and
effectively as possible within current resources;

Social care remains challenged. As central government support to local
authorities has reduced, almost all our boroughs cut real terms social care
spending per head of population in the last decade — as our population has

56



aged. While the social care workforce was increasing, it has now begun to
decline, and ensuring high quality care is a constant pressure;

e Health services continue to struggle with ensuring residents can access
services. While North West London generally performs better than most of
the country, residents can still experience long waits for healthcare —
whether for GP services, urgent or planned hospital services, mental health
and community services, etc.

e There remain unacceptable variations in the delivery and quality of
healthcare with some services treating more people with the same level of
resources

e Services available and speed of access can also differ substantially from
place to place across North West London, and between our different
communities.

How the health and care system in North West London proposes to respond
Our strategic priorities are to:

Support health and well being for our population

Address unwarranted health inequalities

Improve access to care

Keep people at home wherever possible and ensure far more integrated/joined

up services, particularly for our older people

5. Support babies, children, and young people will lead happy and healthy lives,
and become happy and healthy adults

6. Ensure our health and care system is as productive and high quality as it can

be

rpwnhPE

All priorities are supported by how we work together with our residents and
communities.

Supporting health and well-being for our population

The health and care system itself is responsible for less than half of any individual’s
overall health and well-being. The bigger contributors are wider social determinants of
health, such as employment, education and housing, and how people behave — while
smoking has fallen greatly in recent years, in remains the single biggest health risk in
North West London. To really improve health and well-being, we will need to act on
the wider determinants, on preventing risky behaviours, as well as improving the
health and care system.

On the wider determinants, members of the ICS can have focused impact on targeted
areas:

e Improving access to employment in the health and care system for our
residents;

e Making NHS land available for housing, and targeted improvements in the
quality of housing/ improving quality of local housing stock;

e Committing that all NHS organisations, and contractors to NHS organisations,
pay at least the London living wage.

57



Increasing digital skills within deprived communities, supporting residents to
better manage their health and find employment

Supporting local businesses through more local procurement, taking into
account social value.

We will support sustainability work, promoting active travel, improving air quality
and improving green spaces for deprived communities in our boroughs.

On healthy behaviours, the biggest risk factors in NW London remain tobacco use,
diet, lack of exercise and high blood pressure.

On tobacco, work with public health colleagues to improve pathways for
smoking cessation in and out of hospital,

Focus on improving diet and increasing exercise, including improving rates of
breastfeeding

Continue the rewind programme to reverse pre-diabetes where possible, in
conjunction with our broader diabetes programme,;

Test how we can both better identify those of our residents at risk of high blood
pressure, and better engage — through community and other routes — those at
risk to help support them to manage their risks

Work across the NHS, public health, the voluntary sector and community
leaders and champions, to increase the uptake of preventative services, such
as immunisation and vaccination and screening services, building on the
lessons learnt from the COVID vaccination programme

Reducing inequalities in outcomes, access, and experience
We will work together with all the partners in the ICS to reduce inequalities in health
and well-being through:

Developing a shared set of services available to residents across North West
London, regardless of where they live

Ensuring that residents experience the same quality of acute care regardless
of where they receive it, by identifying and reducing the causes of varied
experience

Build confidence in our communities to come forward for care and support,
building on the good work over many years with diabetes, and expanding into
cancer and hypertension. For example, tackling why some groups take longer
to come forward when they suspect cancer, and why they attend primary care
more times before they are referred for further investigation

Using our race equality group to explore the barriers to care for Black and other
ethnic minority groups;

Bespoke programmes to support some of our most marginalised groups — for
example, supporting those with special educational needs and disabilities into
employment

Improving early diagnosis of cancer at to 75% by reducing variation in
screening rates, and improving willingness to present through education &
outreach and standardising referrals

58



Tackling stigma in all our communities in regard to mental health issues, and
providing new, less stigmatised ways of accessing care

Focusing resource and differentiating the offer for groups with poor outcomes,
for example Black women and childbirth

Ensuring those of our population with learning disabilities and autism
Supporting babies, children, and young people will lead happy and healthy
lives, and become happy and healthy adults

The fire at Grenfell Tower was a national tragedy. That this tragedy happened
in an area where there were already high levels of inequality means that the
effects were made worse for the local community, this has made the recovery
more challenging. There are lessons to be learnt from Grenfell going forward,
but the impacts of the tragedy will continue to have a massive bearing on the
communities of North Kensington and across our boroughs.

Improving access to care

One of the greatest frustrations expressed by people across North West London is
that they wait too long to access care — whether that be waiting to see their GP, access
mental health services, waiting for an ambulance or other emergency care, or for
planned surgery.

For general practice and broader primary care, rationalise channels for simple
urgent care (across UTCs, general practice, walk in centres, 999 and 111) and
streamline access;

For urgent care, undertake a root and branch review of our emergency care
pathways, to include continuing to build up alternatives to emergency
departments for simpler cases; expanding same day emergency care to reduce
hospital stays for the simpler cases that at the moment require admission;
continuing to streamline hospital processes to reduce length of stay and use
every opportunity to accelerate discharge and virtual wards to get people home
faster

Develop and roll out Integrated neighbourhood teams that bring community,
community mental health, primary care and social care services together locally
to manage long term conditions, improve access to planned care and minimise
the need for referrals from one team to another;

Establish and expand a live Directory of Services that will enable onward
referrals to the right part of the system for those who cannot be treated in their
neighbourhood;

Continue to expand the capacity and use of virtual wards to treat residents in
their own beds under ongoing hospital supervision, rather than remain in
hospital,

For planned surgical care, institute more efficient centres to improve quality and
make better use of existing resources

Throughout, accelerate access to specialist expertise and diagnosis where
required through more integrated teams, use of virtual tools, and expanding
community based diagnostics

59



e For mental health, continue to invest in expanding capacity, including
integrating community mental health services more tightly into primary care,
and developing areas where those experiencing mental health crisis can be
assessed outside our hospital emergency department

e Ensure that our specialist services are readily accessible with effective and
efficient pathways of care.

e Using digital technologies to expand access

Keeping people at home wherever possible

While hospitals and care homes are the safest place to be for those of residents in
greatest need, for many we can provide a better service with less disruption to people’s
lives by bringing expertise and support to people’s homes. This is particularly true for
those of us who are aging, frail or experiencing multiple conditions. For many of these,
a visit to hospital is not the best way to deliver care, and can result in further
deterioration of their physical and/ or mental health. To do this we will:

e Systematically implement joint care planning to capture people’s preferences
and wishes, across every health and care setting including:

o lIdentifying people who have an ongoing health or care need, with a care
plan in place, to ensure they receive continuity of care.

o Personalised care and support planning for people with long-term
conditions, such as diabetes,

o Anticipatory care planning in place to ensure care is coordinated in the
event of a change in someone’s condition.

o Advance Care Planning for people in the last phase of life, supporting
them to live and die well in their chosen place of care.

e Work with social care to develop a new integrated health and care approach to
avoid hospital and care home admissions and support patients moving from
hospital to home care;

e Pull back ambulatory care that currently flows to hospitals, with local integrated
response to urgent demand within GP practices, walk-in centres, and some
urgent care centres;

e Bring in local voluntary providers to operate alongside health and care
providers, in particular to support residents after discharge;

e Expand the range of services and support that can be delivered in people’s
homes and in care homes.

Supporting babies, children, and young people

The children and young people growing up today in North West London will become
the adults of the future. We will invest more in supporting them to be happy health
adults, by:

e Expanding our preventative services for them, in particular tackling obesity and
improve healthy weight in early childhood; ensuring an increase in rates of
breastfeeding, in the uptake of immunisations to protect children protected from
serious infection, and improving oral health through brushing teeth and eating
healthier food

60


mailto:https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/personalised-care-and-support-planning/
mailto:https://www.nwlondonics.nhs.uk/your-health-services/urgent-care-plan-london

e Expanding access to mental health support, in particular through schools,
children’s health hubs and by expanding ways of accessing support digitally
Young people feel more confident managing negative thoughts and feelings,
and moving on from them, and know when and how to access specialist mental
health support.

e Developing consistent, ‘right person first time’ core models of care for CYP
(including NHS/ LA/ VCS services) through child health and family hubs (PC),
bringing in acute specialist expertise, levelling up access to community Child
health services and developing a hospital service that operates as one service
across NW London

Ensuring our health and care system is as productive and high quality as it can be

We all know that the resources available to providers of health and care are limited.
While the NHS has continued to receive increases in funding (albeit below the long
term average and growth in need of the population), funding available for social care
and public health have been more constrained. While the number of health and care
staff have risen, we face difficulties in recruitment and retention. We must therefore
continue to innovate, improve and deliver as effective care as we can within the budget
available to us while valuing and developing our people. We will:

e Continue to develop innovative and cost effective models of care, starting with
cardiovascular care, cancer and children’s mental health;

e Transform outpatient services to make outpatient services more convenient
and reduce unnecessary appointments;

e Ensure seamless pathways from general practice to hospitals and back home
again, ensuring that only those that would benefit from stays in hospital remain
in hospital,

e Use digital tools to identify those residents most at risk of coming to us later
with advanced disease and direct early interventions to them.

e Better manage our capacity by using digital tools that help to predict demand,
support planning and add flexibility to the system, to deliver a more responsive
service. Some services struggle to meet demand, while others are
underutilised; the pattern of demand is dynamic, changing from week to week,
day to day and hour by hour — better digital tools can track and help us to
respond to this.

¢ Rapidly evaluate which services are delivering benefits to which residents — so
professionals can direct people to the services that best meet their needs;

e Ensure that our estate is fit for purpose and that we have the right quality estate
in the right places, in particular delivering on our pledges to rebuild aging
hospitals such as St Mary’s and Hillingdon, bringing diagnostics into the
community, and addressing services where technology has moved on it no
longer makes sense to deliver in the current fashion.

e Use data to understand where resources could be used more effectively

Working together with our residents and communities
The recent pandemic has reinforced for us that our health and care system can only
work for our residents when our residents are fully involved in their care — and fully

9
61



involved in designing how that care is delivered. To do so, we will work with individuals
and communities to shape care. In particular, we will:

e Regularly ask ‘what matters to you’ as we listen, collate and share insights from
all our communities across all members of the integrated care system in North
West London;

e Place at least as much importance on the insights from our residents and
populations as we do with qualitative data: they sit alongside population health
and outcomes data in driving our strategy;

e Work with grassroots voluntary sector organisations and residents to expand
our understanding of our communities, build trusted relationships and shape
our health and care services;

e Co-design our future strategies with people and communities. Community
engagement and co-design will happen mainly at borough and neighbourhood
level, supported by system leaders, local authorities, borough based ICB staff,
provider collaboratives and NHS Trusts.

e Ensure residents have a voice in all our programmes;

e Empower people to take control of their own lives and health and increase
confidence in managing long-term conditions (with an initial focus on a multi-
agency approach to asthma) when appropriate, with support from the health
and care system.

e Do so through working through our borough based partnerships,
neighbourhoods and voluntary and community sector;

e Deliver clear communication that meets the needs of our residents,
communities, stakeholders and staff.

Context

National and regional context

We are developing this strategy against the background of recovery from the recent
coronavirus pandemic, one of the more difficult winters the health and care system
has seen, as much of our population face pressures from rising costs. Nationally, and
across London, this strategy builds on a number of statements of policy, including NHS
England’s Long Term Plan; Our Vision for London, published by NHS England and the
Greater London Authority; and the Mayor of London’s Health Inequalities Strategy.

Our Vision for London sets our ambition for London to be the healthiest global city,
and the best global city in which to receive health and care services and brings
together a number of strategic themes from these documents. Alongside setting out
the aim of developing more holistic support throughout a person’s life and accelerating
joint working at neighbourhoods, in boroughs, through integrated care systems and
across London to improve health for all local populations, the Vision for London sets
ten objectives:

Reducing childhood obesity;

Improving the emotional wellbeing of children and young Londoners;
Improving mental health and progress towards zero suicides;
Improving air quality;

10
62



e Improving tobacco control and reducing smoking;

e Reducing the prevalence and impact of violence;

e Improving the health of homeless people;

e Improving services and prevention for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
and other Sexually Transmitted Infections (STIs);

e Supporting Londoners with dementia to live well;

e Improving care and support at end of life.

These pan-London actions sit alongside, and are complementary to, the strategy and
actions laid out in this North West London health and care strategy.

The London Health Inequalities Strategy focuses on five areas;

e Healthy Children: every London child has a healthy start in life

e Healthy Minds: All Londoners share a city with the best mental health in the
world

e Healthy Places: All Londoners benefit from an environment and economy that
promotes good mental and physical health;

e Healthy Communities: London’s diverse communities are healthy and thriving;

e Healthy Living: the healthy choice is the easy choice for all Londoners.

These are picked up in North West London’ strategic objectives.

Context for North West London

The North West London Integrated Care System (NW London ICS) incorporates the
partnership of NHS North West London and our eight local authorities with providers
of health and care, universities, and the voluntary sector within our boroughs. It is one
of the biggest and most complex Integrated Care Systems nationally. We have a
diverse population of over 2 million people, who come from over 200 different
ethnicities. Our population is generally younger than elsewhere in England and is
projected to be one of the fastest growing. Residents of North West London include
some of the most well-known figures in the country, including the King and the Prime
Minister.

There are also great disparities in health and care outcomes. We are home to the ward
with the highest life expectancy in London and the ward with the second lowest.

The Integrated Care System brings together multiple providers including 350 GP
practices, over 250 care homes, eight local authorities, 45 primary care networks, four
mental health/community acute trusts, four acute trusts, universities and numerous
voluntary organisations.

11
63



Hillingdon

Rovyal Borough of
Kensington &

Hammersmith Chelsea

& Fulham

It covers the area of eight London boroughs — Brent, Ealing, Hammersmith and
Fulham, Harrow, Hillingdon, Hounslow, Kensington and Chelsea, and Westminster. It
includes some of the strongest national academic institutions and networks, including:

e Imperial College London’s White City campus, delivering a major new research
facility to drive advances in life-changing medical technologies and treatments.

e Brunel University London which focuses on research in science, medicine, and
social work training.

e Westminster University which offers nursing and midwifery training.

Our voluntary sector, under the banner of 3ST (Third Sector Together), is similarly
diverse and dynamic.

This strategy outlines how we intend to meet four objectives:

e To improve outcomes in population health and wellbeing
e To prevent ill health and tackle inequalities

e To enhance productivity and value for money

e To support broader economic and social development.

Challenges facing North West London and the case for change

NW London ICS is operating in a very challenging environment. The population
demographics for NW London ICS are varied across the eight boroughs with
significant age distribution, large ethnic variation, income distribution and
pockets of deprivation. All of these are wider health determinants and significant
drivers of health inequalities.

Reducing health inequalities is a matter of fairness and social justice. Health
inequalities result from social inequalities. Health is closely linked to the conditions in

12
64



which people are born, grow, live, work and age and inequities in power, finances, and
resources — the social determinants of health.

Finding effective ways to reduce the resulting health inequalities is a major challenge
for the ICS.

Age distribution

The population of North West London is growing, ageing, and living with more complex
conditions, increasing demands for healthcare. Meeting this rising demand, which is
currently outpacing our ability to fund and our workforce’s capacity, is a major
challenge for the ICS.

The ageing population also means more people are living with long-term conditions.
This in turn increases demand for health and social care services. Some long-term
conditions, for example diabetes, cancer, and mental health problems, have
disproportionate and significant impact on specific communities.

Unpaid carers play a major role in supporting our ageing population and managing
complex and long-term conditions. They are estimated to save the NHS around £132
billion a year. However, the caring role can be stressful and isolating. We face a
challenge to ensure every organisation within the ICS can identify people with caring
responsibilities, so that we can offer support that prioritises carers’ own health and
wellbeing, as well as enabling them to continue their caring role for longer.

NWL ICS Population growth - all ages

. 2250000

S 2200000

S 2150000

< 2100000

L 2050000

S 2000000

T 1950000

2. 1900000

£ 1850000
O N ¥ O 0 O N T O 00 O N ¢ O 0 O N
Y = = = = AN AN N NN MmN T
O O O O ©O © O O O © O o o oo o o o
AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN NN

Year

Ethnic variation

NW London ICS brings together multiple partners across the eight boroughs with
differing cultures, behaviours, and priorities. We are home to people drawn from over
200 ethnicities. People’s health is determined by a complex combination of genetics,
socioeconomic factors, and environmental conditions. Ethnicity is one of the main
social determinants of health in the UK.

There are a variety of challenges involved in working across organisations in this way.
Collaborative working is vital to providing a seamless journey for service users,
improving access to care and delivering the wraparound service needed to improve
health outcomes. Joint working to identify shared local priorities will be key to delivery
of the ICS plan. One of the lessons learned from the COVID-19 pandemic is that
people need services and support to be joined up across the NHS, local authorities,

13
65



and voluntary and community organisations. Embedding this collaboration will be key
to success.

Addressing health inequalities between people from different ethnic groups is a
significant challenge to our ICS. Contributing factors that we need to address include
unequal access to treatment, cultural and language barriers, educational attainment,
and hesitancy of different groups to engage with healthcare services. As NW London
communities are significantly varied in ethnicities the ICS faces the challenge of how
to identify where cohorts are experiencing similar health problems, this would enable
the ICS to develop a strategic approach to disease and health management for those
specific groups.

‘non-white’

population

across NW
¥ . London

Income distribution

Although NW London ICS overall as a system is less deprived than other London
boroughs, and indeed nationally, there are pockets of deprivation within the boroughs
and across the system. Deprivation is one of the main factors influencing overall health
outcomes. The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) comprises seven domains of
deprivation: income, employment, health deprivation and disability, education, skills
training, crime, barriers to housing and services and living environment. It shows the
correlation between poor health outcomes and living the most deprived areas. North
West London has high proportions of Black, Asian, and other minority ethnic (BAME)
people living in more deprived areas. This results in worse health outcomes in these
groups, increasing health inequalities and generating significant challenges for the
ICS.

Areas of deprivation also have significantly higher numbers of overcrowded
households. Overcrowding is associated with worse health outcomes, such as
infectious diseases that spread a lot faster among people living in confined spaces.

Rising costs of living and an inflation rate that is at a 40-year high are having a
significant impact on our population and pose even greater challenges for the ICS.
Long-standing issues already visible in our boroughs, including overcrowding,
deprivation, poor quality of housing and rough sleeping, will be exacerbated, widening
the gap in health outcomes and worsening inequalities.

14
66



Fuel poverty is a concern for the ICS as it can have a significant impact on health, for
example infections resulting from cold, damp housing can trigger a cycle of illness
even after initial treatment. The Opinions and Lifestyle Survey (OPN) shows the steps
people are taking to mitigate the impact of rising costs. Examples include spending
less on food and essentials which would be detrimental to overall health.

Wider health determinants

Investing in more ‘healthy’ places, for example cleaner air, access to green spaces
and improving employment for residents, would have significant benefits to our
population’s health outcomes.

Cuts to social care funding could mean councils have to reduce spending elsewhere
to support adult social services. Areas that could get affected include education
services, upkeep of estates etc. which could lead to further health inequalities. High
maintenance costs of estates across NW London has generated a maintenance
backlog resulting in buildings not properly maintained in time that could result in poor
guality care. The ICS faces significant challenge to reduce the estates maintenance
backlog due to the large amount of resources required in this climate of high inflation
and cost of living crisis.

Another wider determinant for health is health risk behaviours e.g. smoking. Health
risk behaviours are defined as acts that increase the risk of disease or injury which
can subsequently lead to disability, death, or social problems.

Since 1990 we have been making progress by reducing the total burden of disease
attributable to health risk behaviours to half, but progress has stalled in the last
decade. It has stalled at approximately 15000 DALY (Disability adjusted life year) per
100,000 population within London.

Without continuing improvement of health risk behaviours, health pressures will
continue to grow creating further challenges for the ICS, compounded by the rising
population numbers and life expectancy.

How we can respond

Educational attainment has an association with health as evidence shows better-
educated individuals are less likely to suffer from long-term conditions, to report
themselves in poor health, or to suffer from mental health conditions, such as
depression or anxiety. Education provides knowledge and capabilities that contribute
to mental, physical, and social wellbeing. Educational attainment is also a determinant
of an individual’'s future employment prospects, which in turn influences income,
housing and other resources associated with health.

The COVID-19 pandemic has changed the way health and care services are delivered,
triggering the rapid adoption of digital technologies. This shift has helped to manage
flow into critical services, ensuring only the most appropriate referrals were made, to
address backlogs in healthcare and to increase capacity in the NHS. The ICS needs
to rise to the challenge of continuing to embed the latest digital technology across its
organisations to improve the integration and delivery of health and care services.

15
67



In recent years, we have responded to increased demand for services closer to
people’s homes by redesigning services so they can be delivered in community
settings. Moving some health and care services into community settings requires an
increase in the capacity and capability of staff. Retaining and improving the skillsets
of the current workforce and recruiting new staff that can support this change is
another key challenge for the ICS.

Retaining and recruiting a workforce with the skills and experience needed is a
problem across all health and care settings. Our GP workforce is shrinking, there is an
increasing trend of vacant roles particularly in acute settings, critical staff groups have
been undertaking industrial action and social care staffing is a core area of concern.
However, analysis of the NHS workforce in North West London shows that more
people are employed within it than ever before. The workforce has increased by
approximately 12%, when compared to pre-pandemic levels, but activity delivered is,
on average, unchanged. Though this suggests there is scope for increased
productivity in the current workforce, achieving this would be a major challenge for the
ICS.

Utilisation of the established workforce of allied professionals in the community e.g.
community pharmacists to help deliver vaccinations, optometrists to help treat minor
eye conditions etc. would support the ICS in managing the backlog generated by the
pandemic and the rising demand for care in general. However, there are a number of
challenges that would arise with integrating services with workforce including
resources and registration.

There are other potential solutions to these workforce issues. For example, enabling
all healthcare professionals to work at the ‘top end’ of their scope of practice, i.e. using
their graduate level skills to address health issues, while administrative and technical
tasks are delegated appropriately.

Increasing the use of technology, such as blood pressure machines where
professional intervention is not always necessary, could also help. Machines provide
swifter results, are cheaper and remove the risk of human error. Though introducing
changes to clinical practice can pose its own challenges, in terms of staff's attitudes
to a new way of working.

The scale and scope of the challenges facing the NW London ICS are significant.
However, there has never been a better time to develop a clear strategy for health and
care that will meet the needs of our diverse population, offering everyone the best
chance to remain well for longer.

What we have heard from local people to date
If we are to develop services in line with what people need, it is critical that resident
insights are a key part of shaping our approach.

We are looking to build a clear picture of what our communities are telling us. We
recognise that this will change over time and that it will be strengthened as we include
insights from all the sources, we have access to — NHS, local government, the
voluntary sector, Healthwatch and local communities. Our published monthly insight
reports have started this process; we recognise they are a work in progress. We are

16
68



working with the local voluntary sector partnership 3ST and across health and social
care to develop a consistent process for analysing the insight reports and ensuring
they inform our strategy at both borough and North West London level. Insight reports
are shared with the ICS leadership and with each borough and ICS programme for
action. In line with our involvement strategy, a Co-Design Advisory Body drawn from
local residents, experts in public involvement, the NHS, local government and the
voluntary sector is now being put in place to oversee this work.

We have set out below some of the key insights we have heard from local people that
have fed into development of this strategy. Where points made are specific to one
borough, we have referenced this.

There are some recurring themes across most boroughs, such as access to GP
appointments, communication with patients and residents, the cost of living and mental
health. There is also specific feedback from groups we have not always heard from
consistently, such as children and young people, BAME communities and LGBTQ+
residents.

How we heard from local people
In line with our involvement strategy, we use a multi-method approach, building on the
work borough teams, local authorities, the voluntary sector and Healthwatch are doing:

e Community outreach: Work with specific communities and groups and the
general public. Planned and delivered at borough level and carried out by both
NHS and local authority staff

e Collaborative spaces: Open events which anyone can attend — for example,
events have been held or are planned in all boroughs with a ‘What matters to you?’
theme, a co-designed agenda and a primary focus on inequalities.

e Programme-specific engagement: For example, the public consultation on a
proposed elective orthopaedic centre, the palliative care review and the Post Covid
Syndrome programme.

e Social media engagement: Next Door, Twitter, Facebook

e North West London-wide forums: Residents’ Forum and PPG Forum (one of
each held to date)

e Work with specific groups such as our lay partners, local campaigners and
people who regularly attend our meetings.

e Citizens’ Panel: 3,800 people broadly reflecting our communities — used mainly
for quantitative surveys.

e Community funding: Where funding is secured we run an expression of interest
process to identify community groups to undertake work on our behalf and help
reach further into our communities.

Many of the insights reflected here come from through the work of our local
authorities, NHS providers, borough teams and voluntary sector. We plan to
continue to build on insights from our voluntary sector, from resident surveys and other
work from local authority colleagues.

17
69



Respect and good communication goes a long way

An overarching theme, reflected in everything we hear from our communities, is that
what matters most to local residents is how they are treated and respected. We have
been told to communicate with them in a way that supports their understanding of their
health, so that they are able to understand the services and treatment on offer. They
want to know how to access services, the process they will go through and what
happens next.

GP Access

Concern that lack of face to face appointments may mean GPs miss the wider
value of the interaction with the patient to identify other issues such as mental
health and connect them to wider support.

Physical proximity to services and numbers of GP and nurses available.
Telephone appointments: Worry and experience of things going wrong during
phone appointments, for example lack of trust in prescription advice over the
phone. Challenge for residents whose first language is not English having
difficulty describing symptoms. Can be difficult to understand the automated
messages and options.

Same gender GP availability.

Lack of interpreting services (multiple theme) spoken languages and British
Sign Language (BSL) LGBTQ+ residents often felt that those delivering care
did not take account of their needs, for example in using the correct terminology
Some young people told us their concerns regarding mental health were not
always taken seriously

Staff communication and sensitivity was criticised by some patients
Sensory disability — importance of considering, for example, the needs of the
deaf or visually impaired community. Nurse calling a patient name, telephone
appointments or an intercom system are examples of barriers for deaf people.
Video appointments can be difficult for visually impaired patients.

Further focus on prevention and healthy living would be a positive step.
Medications not always properly explained to patients and carers.

Communication

18

What should people expect of different services, for example care at home,
district nurses or palliative care? Some people said they felt done to’ and had
little say in their care.

Communication about nature of health screening: what steps does it involve
and what is its value? There is differing understanding in different communities
and this can be due to a lack of cultural nuance. For example, several women
told us they avoided Cervical Screening due to female genital mutilation (FGM),
fear the screening impacts virginity or lack of assurance they would see a
female practitioner

Services not joined up. Disjointed support from services leading to sense of
disempowerment.

Some communities told us they don’t feel ‘believed’ when speaking to their
GP or health professional

70



Romanian residents told us they faced inequality due to language barriers and
understanding the system.

Positive feedback for One Stop Shop health / inequalities events ‘this event
makes me feel like someone is looking after us’.

Covid-19 vaccinations and flu jabs, still a need for basic information
regarding access, and need for booster jabs. Too many text reminders and GP
appointments made without request, example of enabling access when it meets
the systems need rather thank the patients. Some Afro Caribbean residents felt
services only wanted to talk to them about Covid-19 and vaccinations.

Older residents: Not everyone has internet access or is comfortable using
mobile phones. Services need to think about how to communicate and engage
with them

Carers struggle to look after their own health

Language. There is a need for more culturally accessible education and
awareness sessions on topics such as how to prepare healthy food. This was
particularly a focus among younger generations

Inequality challenges
While we know outcomes, access and experience vary by the ethnicity of our residents
or their deprivation status, residents have also told us about:

Disability

Disability groups report experiencing behaviours and situations which
exacerbate inequality. These include attention to detail in regard to space,
equipment to support their waiting and consultation and continuity of care given
their particular multiple and often complex health issues. One example was
given of a person not being able to access their diabetes check-up as they use
a wheelchair and the premises isn’'t wheelchair accessible.

There is a need for clear information and basic signage for people with learning
disabilities (which should also support those for whom English is not their first
language). Some people with disabilities said they did not feel listened to or
treated with respect.

Other inequality issues

19

Mental health stigma in some communities.

‘Challenge of accessing services and the feeling of having to explain
experience time and time again is exhausting so people give up’.

Digital exclusion was raised, as was the practicality of using digital services, for
example being asked to take a photograph and sending it Some residents also
fed back positively on the use of technology to improve services. Cost of living;
cost of travel to appointments, cost of food to support healthy eating, loss of
shift work for health appointment Impact noted particularly for carers. impacting
what they eat/don’t eat or what they are able to do. Increased debt.

Loneliness and isolation often raised by many groups, including carers. Some
LGBTQ+ residents said they don’t always feel understood or accepted in their
communities leading to loneliness and isolation.

Homeless people said they struggled to find help.

71



* Housing: waiting list to get a home, wait when unwell or no longer able to
manage stairs), loss of community roots when having to move due to ill health,
inadequate housing.

Summary of other key issues raised

* Public safety - fear of knife crime, alcohol, and drug abuse

* Healthy living. Make information about healthy eating more readily available
and improve quality and variety of resources available. Unequal access to
suitable outdoor areas for exercising and growing fruit and vegetables. Concern
about lack of green space for allotments due to housing demand and areas
being redeveloped into flats. Participants would like to see more collaborative
working, giving them opportunities to contribute to town planning and influence
what is available on the high street, i.e. reducing the number of unhealthy fast-
food outlets

* Hospital discharge. Appointment cancellations and long waiting times —
impact on the family to manage the patient and situation.

* Long-term conditions. Residents want to manage their long-term conditions
better but require information to support this

+ Sexual health services. Young people said they found access difficult due to
appointment times during working day/having to travel

« Faith groups - Lack of sensitivity to culture and faith are being experienced
across communities and may be reflected in low referral rates for palliative care.

* Practical challenges — disabled parking bays, join up with the planners and
Transport for London (TfL) regarding bus stops at hospitals. Street lighting
around hospitals.

* Support for the NHS - amongst the frustrations, we heard many supportive
comments for the NHS, understanding for workload and pressures for clinicians
and saying how valuable the NHS was. Many expressed worry and concern for
the NHS and those that worked in it. “You are already doing a great job.”

Plan of action

Insights generated from resident involvement are shared across the system and
specifically shared with boroughs, ICS programmes and the Integrated Care Board
(ICB). They are reported to our Proactive Population Health Management and
Inequalities Board and our Quality Committee and will be considered in depth with
local community representatives at our Co-Design Advisory Body. These insights form
part of our business intelligence.

The next step is to develop a consistent methodology for analysing the insights and
ensuring they play an ongoing role in the development of our strategy and services.
This requires co-design and is a core role of the Co-Design Advisory Body. We will
also continue to publish the insight reports and our responses to them, so that local
residents continue to take part in dialogue and co-design solutions to challenges.

Other immediate tasks are:

+ Widen the insights we capture from all sources, particularly local authorities,
the third sector and Healthwatch.

20
72



 Ensure all parts of the ICS can access the insights as the qualitative
element of our data. They are currently shared with boroughs and programme
teams and published on our website. They should be accessible and familiar to
all stakeholders and partners.

* Produce a regular report setting out how the insights are being used.

« Map and address gaps in our insights (for both communities and ICS
programmes).

* Insome cases, conduct further targeted work with specific communities e.g.
building on insights around barriers to screening, public information campaign
around general practice

Shared outcomes for all

Introduction

We know that the effective delivery of healthcare, whilst important, accounts for less
than a quarter of an individual’s overall health and well-being. The bulk comes from
the wider determinants of health (employment, income, education, and so on) and
from behaviours (smoking, health diet, and so on). It is often differences in these wider
determinants, and in behaviours, that result in the differences in outcomes we see
across our population. Addressing these requires all the partners in North West
London’s integrated care system to work together. This in turn requires us to agree
shared outcomes that we will all work towards.

Purpose

This outcome framework is not an attempt to capture all outcomes that the health and
care system in North West London might work towards. Nor is it intended as a
performance framework for managing the health and care system — each member of
North West London’s Integrated Care System has their own way of managing and
reporting on their performance, It is instead a statement of where partners of the North
West London’s Integrated Care System believe we could go further and faster by
working together, and hence were we should focus our shared work. This outcomes
framework looks to:

1. Identify where we can achieve better outcomes for our residents more swiftly
by working together on the common priorities (whilst giving space for boroughs
to focus on local priorities).

2. Bring a collective focus to tackle not just the causes of ill health, but the lifestyle
and environmental factors which lead to those causes

3. Aid in structuring the planning and development of services to ensure that they
are always closely linked to the outcomes they produce or the impact they have
on people.

As our population differs across North West London, the specific outcomes important
to people also differ. However, while acknowledging similarities and differences across
and within our boroughs, most want similar good outcomes for their own health and
care and for those that they care for and love. The NW London ICS’ Outcomes

21
73



Framework will set the ambitions to provide the best possible outcomes for the health
and wellbeing for residents.

The approach to developing the outcomes framework
There are thousands of outcomes that are important to people. Two approaches have
been taken to develop this initial view.

e To reflect the importance of wider determinants in reducing inequalities, we
reviewed Professor Marmot’s policy objectives, as set out in his seminal 2010
review, Fair Society Healthy Lives!. These are to:

1. Give every child the best start in life
2. Enable all children young people and adults to maximise their
capabilities and have control over their lives

Create fair employment and good work for all

Ensure healthy standard of living for all

Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities

6. Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention

e To what is important to people across North West London, we reviewed all the
borough Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) and Health and
Wellbeing Strategy documents to identify common themes, priorities and
outcomes set by the eight boroughs. This identified the following common
priorities in NW London:

1. Reducing Inequalities

Support for children and young people

Long term condition prevention and management

Live well, independence, old age & end of life

Mental Health

Healthy Places

Integration

ok w

No oM wN

Overall, the main priority of the framework is to reduce health inequalities. We then
came together to agree on those priorities and indicators where we could go further
and faster by working together. While our boroughs and neighbourhoods will of course
wish to add measures that are important locally, this offers a collective focus for North
West London.

Given that reducing inequalities is a golden thread across everything that we do in
North West London, the following framework sets clear shared outcomes for the
NHS, local authorities and wider to drive forward improvement of services for
communities.

12010 Marmot Review — Fair Society, Healthy Lives
22

74



GL

Marmot Marmot Priority Objective

Policy
Objective

A. Give 1.

every child
the best start
in life

B. Enable all | 1.

children,

young 2.

people and
adults to
maximise

23

Reduce inequalities in the early
development of physical and emotional
health and cognitive, linguistic, and
social skills.

. Ensure high quality maternity

services, parenting  programmes,
childcare and early years education to
meet the needs across the social
gradient.

Build the resilience and well-being of
young children across the social
gradient.

Reduce the social gradient in skills and
qgualifications.

Ensure that schools, families, and
communities work in partnership to
reduce the gradient in health, well-

Common interventions that we Shared Outcomes Indicator
will focus on in NW London

1. Pre- and post- natal Identify inequalities by review of ethnic
interventions that reduce breakdown of indicators:
adverse outcomes of ¢ Neonatal mortality and still birth
pregnancy and infancy. rate

2. Link up maternity services Smoking status at time of delivery
with public health achieve the Vaccination uptake
common aim of high-quality Maternal mortality
maternity services including Breastfeeding at six to eight
improved access to mental weeks after birth
health services and aligned o Patients experiencing perinatal
risk assessment approach to mental illness
support targeted post-natal
follow-ups.

3. ldentify and address
workforce issues across
maternity services and public
health commissioned
services (e.g. school nursing,
health visiting)

1. System approach to build e Drug, alcohol, and substance misuse

resilience in Mental Health for those under 18 years of age

2. Explore  Anchor institute e Increased community participation
approach to local rates.
employment



9,

their
capabilities
and have
control over
their lives

C. Create fair
employment
and good
work for all

being and resilience of children and
young people.

Improve the access and use of quality
lifelong learning across the social
gradient.

Improve access to good jobs and
reduce long-term  unemployment
across the social gradient.

. Make it easier for people who are

disadvantaged in the labour market to
obtain and keep work.

Improve quality of jobs across the
social gradient.

D. Ensure 1. Establish a minimum income for

healthy
standard of
living for all

24

healthy living for people of all ages.

. Increase in

. Address

. Initiatives to

. Improve  staff

. Increase in uptake of work

experience/apprenticeships
across the social gradient.
numbers
accessing programmes to
address skill deficits, mental
health, problem drug and
alcohol abuse and anti-social
behaviour and offending

. As a region become an

exemplar in fair employment,
addressing pay gap and
creating wealth.

inequalities  in
employment across Learning
Disabilities, Mental Health
and Long-Term conditions.
support
disadvantaged groups into
work

retention
through provision of decent
wages and good working
conditions

. Acknowledging that majority

of this policy objective is set
at national level, as a system
addressing the basic needs

Reduction in problem drug use,
offending and antisocial behaviour
rates

Reduction in mental health patients
Increasing public health measures of
school readiness for children
Increase rates of joint
communications  published and
reduce variation in messaging to
improve patient experience

Gap in the employment rate between
those with a physical or mental long-
term health condition and the overall
employment rate

Gap in the employment rate between
adults known to mental health
services and the overall adult
population

Adult social care vacancies
(including carers) and retention rates
below or equal to averages for
benchmarking group of councils
Monitoring rates of staff employed
who live in the North West London
region

Gap of NEET (not in education,
employment, or training)

Monitoring numbers of households in
temporary accommodation



Ll

E. Create 1.
and develop
healthy and
sustainable 2.
places and
communities

25

Reduce the social gradient in the
standard of living through progressive
tax and other fiscal policies.

Reduce the cliff edges faced by
people moving between benefits and
work.

Ensure parity of access to health, care,
and community services in an effective,
timely and safe way for all.

Develop common policies to reduce
the scale and impact of climate
change and health inequalities.
Improve community capital and
reduce social isolation across the social
gradient.

of the local population i.e.
shelter & food

. For frequent users of health

and care services, we need
to explore whether living
conditions are contributing to
ill health and provide as much

as holistic  support as
possible.

. Inclusion of Housing
departments as key

stakeholder in wider ICS
discussions

. Strengthen use of digital

enablers in delivery for
health, care, and community
services

Review NW London NHS
contribution to climate by
NHS Sustainability Unit

. Championing

environmentally good
practices for employees
whilst at work

Percentage of households
experiencing food insecurity and
using local authority and third sector
support such as food banks

% of those experiencing fuel poverty
% of those receiving the London
living wage

Comparing gap in health outcomes
between the homeless and non-
homeless population

Increased usage of NHS and local
borough online platforms and apps
Increased use of free school meals
Percentage of patients assessed as
not fit for elective surgery following
referrals

Time spent on triage for individual
patients in hospitals

Readmission rates to hospital
following planned or emergency care

Reduced gradients in ill health
associated with social isolation and
adverse impacts of travel e.g., air
quality levels, accidents, reports of
damp in housing

Energy performance certificate
ratings for NHS estates and local
authority public buildings



8L

F.
Strengthen
the role and
impact of ill
health
prevention

26

2.

Prioritise prevention and early
detection of those conditions most
strongly related to health inequalities.
Increase availability of long-term and
sustainable funding in ill health
prevention across the social gradient.

. Change cultural

. Encourage residents to come

forward for screening and
stay engaged with services

. Early screening opportunities

with  focus on Cancer,
Cardiovascular disease,
Hypertension and Diabetes.
Prevention needs to be built
into the pathways.

. Collate data on screening

uptake by
ethnicity/PCN/Practice

. Renewed focus on dental

health, smoking prevention,
weight management, alcohol
and substance misuse

norm by
asking about physical activity
in consultations and
interactions

% Eligible patients with non-diabetic
hyperglycaemia offered referral to

NHS Diabetes Prevention
Programme
Improve  secondary  prevention

outcomes for patients with diabetes:
9 key care processes (HbAlc; BP;
Cholesterol; serum creatinine; urine
albumin; foot surveillance; BMI,
smoking; retinal screening.)
Increase uptake of NHS Health
Checks

The rate of unplanned
hospitalisations per 100,000 by
neighbourhood by ethnic group
Admissions for alcohol related
condition and smoking prevalence
with patients

Proportion of people with mental
health condition receiving a physical
health check

Density of fast-food outlets

Levels of overweight and obesity in
CYP at Reception and Year 6
Decayed missing or filled teeth in
under 5s

Immunisation uptake by type and
age group with focus on school age
vaccinations



Part 2—NW London ICS Transformation Programmes

Proactive population health management and reducing inequalities

The aim of this programme is to improve health outcomes for all, reducing the gap in
healthy life expectancy between the most and least healthy in our communities.
We use population health management as a technique to reduce unacceptable
variation in outcomes, access and experience, and work with partners to contribute to
wider economic and social improvement.

Data and analysis over many years clearly demonstrates that clinical care is not the
primary determinant of health outcomes — far more important are a wide range of other
factors, including health behaviours, socioeconomic factors, and the built environment.
The most common causes of ill health, years of life lost and premature mortality in our
population are cardiovascular diseases (often linked to diabetes) and cancer. The
highest risk health behaviours remain tobacco use, high body mass index (BMI) and
high blood glucose. There is a significant variation in North West London in health
outcomes and the determinants of those outcomes. For example:

e In Hillingdon, the life expectancy for men is 7.2 years lower in the more deprived
areas compared to the least deprived

e There is significant variation between boroughs for healthy behaviours such as
exercise and substance misuse, for example hospital admissions per 100,000
due to substance misuse vary between 16.9 in Hammersmith and Fulham and
64.9 in Brent.

e Around 900,000 people in NW London have at least one long-term condition,
varying between 24% of the population in Hammersmith and Fulham and 43%
in Hounslow

e There is a high level of overcrowded households in North West London, more
than double the national average, and this is strongly correlated with non-White
British ethnicity

e Kensington and Chelsea has the greatest income inequality in London

e 15.9% of children in Brent live in low income families, compared to 6.1% in
Kensington and Chelsea

e There is afivefold difference between the Income Deprivation affecting Children
Index (a measure of child poverty) between Hammersmith and Fulham’s richest
and poorest wards

Challenges

We understand that reducing health inequalities is iterative and there are gaps in our
understanding of inequalities in our communities, with a historic lack of trust and
entrenched socioeconomic barriers to good health.

Talking to local residents and community groups has built our understanding of the
challenges people face. People have told us about their worries related to the cost of
living, including difficulties keeping warm and maintaining a healthy diet. Structural
racism and lack of trust within some of our communities was a key issue highlighted
during the rollout of COVID-19 vaccines, where we used a very open approach to
improvement method and co-production to try to understand why people from some

27
79



of our most vulnerable communities were less likely to come forward for a vaccine.?
The work — combined with a strong approach to data analytics — unearthed deep
rooted issues around wider issues of equity of access to, experience of and outcomes
from the services we provide. Tackling these equity issues is a major focus of our
mission as an integrated care system.

Actions we will be taking

This programme puts ‘what matters to you’ at the heart, to ensure that we are
listening to and empowering our communities. We will maximise new opportunities to
respond to the challenges we face, including improved data sets, greater connections
with communities that started to be built through the COVID-19 pandemic and greater
opportunities to respond to wider determinants of health through system working with
local authorities and other system partners.

The programme will focus on a small number of priorities to make a big difference
over the short and medium term. It will embed a single methodology that starts with
what matters to local communities, working in partnership across local authorities,
public health, the NHS, Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) and our
local communities. Prevention and equity will be a thread through the ICS’s work, with
this programme providing leadership, expert support, analytical insights and
supporting engagement and co-production with our population. We will take an action-
focussed approach, building on initiatives that are working well and accelerating these
through stories, illustrations and case studies. This will support and accelerate work
at place and neighbourhood level through Borough Based Partnerships and Integrated
Neighbourhood Teams, as well as influencing NHS services at scale — providing a
consistent cross-system offer, with local flexibility to meet community needs.

Delivering against these priorities by taking the following actions should deliver a range
of benefits to our population:
e Reduction in the difference between estimated and recorded prevalence of
disease, particularly for more deprived communities.
e Improvement in the quality of care, particularly for people with long-term
conditions.
e Reduction in the variation in outcomes for different groups, including
healthy life expectancy and maternity outcomes for black women.

Solutions/transformation priorities for the programme
The programme is organised into three pillars:

1. Identify and address inequalities in access, experience and outcomes achieved
by all of our existing health and care services

The work is framed around the Core20Plus5 approach to reducing inequalities, for all
ages:

e Core20: Looking across all ICS programmes and clinical groups with a health

inequalities lens, to understand (and reduce) any differential for the 20% most

2 Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust | Real-world data provides valuable insights into Covid-19
vaccine roll-out; For COVID-19 Vaccine Equity and More, Conversations Matter (ihi.org)

28

80


https://www.imperial.nhs.uk/about-us/news/real-world-data-provides-valuable-insights-into-covid-19-vaccine-roll-out
https://www.imperial.nhs.uk/about-us/news/real-world-data-provides-valuable-insights-into-covid-19-vaccine-roll-out
https://www.ihi.org/communities/blogs/for-covid-19-vaccine-equity-and-more-conversations-matter

deprived in access, experience and outcomes. This includes for people who do
not attend appointments, frequent attenders to A&E and access to diagnostic
services, and children and young people facing multiple disadvantage.

e Plus: Working with our communities to identify groups with poorer outcomes
and co-produce initiatives which address the issues that most matter to them,
embedding the principles of inclusion health.

e 5: Embedding specific improvement work for each of the five clinical priority
measures:

o For adults: continuity of care in maternity; annual health check for those
with severe mental illness; a focus on chronic respiratory disease; early
cancer diagnosis; and hypertension case finding. This is mainly clinically
led within primary care, with the support of local authority, acute, mental
health and local care partners.

o For children: addressing overreliance on asthma medication, access to
diabetes monitoring tools, increasing access to epilepsy nurses,
addressing oral health and improving access to mental health support.

We will start with a specific focus on hypertension, given that:
e |tis the largest cause of premature mortality in deprived areas (30% increase
compared to other areas).
e Treatment works, with reductions in blood pressure resulting in reductions in
conditions including coronary heart disease and stroke.
e There is a low recorded prevalence rate of around 11% in North West London;
around 80,000 additional residents are likely to be undiagnosed.

We will improve early detection via case finding and searches within primary care, by
engaging with those living in the most deprived communities and taking a ‘make every
contact count’ approach to opportunistic blood pressure measurement. We will close
the gap in blood pressure monitoring by working with primary care, public health and
community pharmacies, and particularly with communities, to understand why
disparities exist and to co-produce solutions. We will use the new hypertension
dashboard to help us measure and monitor targets, including detecting 80% of the
expected population with hypertension by 2029.

We will build equity into the existing quality structures across the work of our
partners within the ICS — building a culture of continuous equity improvement, which
leverages our current quality governance mechanisms and our quality improvement
approach and resources.

A Race Steering Group (RSG) has also been set up with community representation.
This will tackle topics such as the cost of living crisis and its impact on different
communities, disparities in health outcomes between ethnic groups for cancer and
disparities in senior leadership positions held between communities. The RSG will
commission local reviews and bring in national support, to ensure that race is a
prominent factor when addressing health inequalities.

There are already considerable resources across the ICS focused on improving health
and reducing inequalities in health, with 10% of ICB core allocations and 15% of
primary medical core allocations already targeted using a health inequalities and
unmet need adjustment. On top of this, the ICS has £7 million to invest in reducing

29
81



inequalities, which will support building the capacity required in the ICB and in Borough
Based Partnerships. This will accelerate delivery of our existing duty to tackle
inequalities and help to ensure the full benefits of wider public spending, including in
public health teams, is realised.

2. Put in place the building blocks of a population health management approach
that improves the health of our population and reduces inequalities in health
across all of our work in the ICS

Population health management is an approach to deliver the most effective
interventions to improve the health of our population, enabling us to achieve the
inequalities ambitions set out above. We have developed a consistent methodology
for this: the FOCUS-ON improvement methodology, as set out in the diagram below,
combining co-creation with our communities with a continuous improvement
approach. We want to embed this approach into core ICS business.

'
j @ =
FIND areas of inequalities conversations with CO-CREATE ideas about UNITE your co-design group STUDY the impact of your
using quantitative data. At a those communities & potential solutions to specific around a small subset of tested ideas. This requires
minimum, exploring cohorts who are problems identified. This ideas that we will prototype. both quantitative & qualitative
disparities in constitutional experiencing those idea generation should be We do not have unlimited methods. This should be
standards based on inequalities. This qualitative done in collaboration with a resources and therefore we proportionate to the testand
deprivation, sex, age & data enhances our mix of stakeholders, both need to select 1-3 ideas that should help decide whether to
ethnicity. If possible, knowledge about the citizens & professionals. we will robustly test. continue or not.
expanding to other aspects. problem(s) & its causes
ONGOING MEASUREMENT
As a learning health care system, we need continuous monitoring of our
interventions and inequalities metrics. This helps create accountability for us
as a system, ensuring that our efforts are continuing to make impact and that
\ we can continue to identify new or exacerbating inequalities.

Figure XX: FOCUS-ON Improvement Methodology

This approach includes analytical tools so that we can focus initiatives on priority
groups and measure the impact. This will build on the existing Whole Systems
Integrated Care (WSIC) tools, and we will work to improve the minimum data set,
including connections with LA data and data on wider determinants of health, based
on NW London residents rather than patient lists. This will incorporate the latest
Census data and create a single version of the truth that will allow us to better
understand our population. These tools will be accessible to Borough Based
Partnerships and Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTS).

In partnership with communications and engagement teams, we will continue to work
closely with communities to understand what matters to them. We will build trust
through listening to and empowering our communities, maximising the existing strong
relationships within Borough partnerships and broadening and deepening the
connections with groups who have been less heard.

30
82



Brent Health Matters is based around:

+ Community engagement / involvement: increase residents’ trust in
services

» Inform and support residents: Equip residents with information on
services and support available

* Improve access to services available

« Build active community partners in addressing barriers in residents’
own health and wellbeing

* Monitor and learn about impact through a performance framework

The programme has co-produced actions with communities, such as
establishing an advice line, community grants, training, outreach, cooking
programmes, mental health awareness sessions

Community health and wellbeing events have included a range of support from
primary care, community services, health educators, voluntary sector, public
health. They have taken health checks into the community

The clinical team support GPs and PCNs in identifying patients, with clinical
information documented on EMIS community module

We will bring together this qualitative data from engaging with our communities with
the quantitative population health data to better understand experiences, priorities and
co-produce solutions.

We will support local teams in each borough and in our INTs to test and implement co-
produced interventions, building a robust evidence base. We will share good
practice through case studies, stories and illustrations to show what is possible and
accelerate interventions that have shown to have the biggest impact.

We will work with academic partners to further build the evidence base in population
health and will build a health economics function to help identify where interventions
will have the biggest impact, taking into account all public funds for health and care.

We will ensure that the system has the skills to deliver on population health objectives
and work to realign system resources to areas which are more deprived.

We will embed reporting of inequalities data within wider system governance, for
example in ICB performance reports and programme governance, with all Board
papers demonstrating how they reduce inequalities. We will also ensure that the VCSE
is fully embedded as an effective partner in system governance, maximising the
opportunities for the VCSE to support people in our communities in different ways.

3. Work together with all the partners in the ICS to improve social, environmental
and healthy living factors that adversely affect health and wellbeing

31
83



Building on the wealth of good practice at the local organisational level, we will work
with our partners in Local Authorities, Provider Trusts and the VCSE to collaborate as
Anchor Institutions to use our assets for social, economic and environmental
benefits and reduce inequalities. We will focus on a range of wider determinants that
affect health outcomes and will deliver an NW London Anchor strategy and plan.

We will have a specific focus on employment, as it is one of the biggest barriers to
effective health outcomes within our communities, exacerbated by COVID-19 and the
current cost of living crisis. As Anchors, we have opportunities to proactively support
people into good work and increase skills in the most deprived communities. We
will work in partnership across local communities, the NHS, local government, the
voluntary sector and local business to improve retention of staff from vaccination
centres, develop a new model for NHS recruitment, develop training and skills
programmes, deliver a volunteering to employment pathway and increase
employment of people with special educational needs and disabilities. The full detalil
is set out in the workforce chapter.

Supporting people with Special Education Needs into work:

Niaz: Enrolled on a supported internship for young people with learning
disabilities and Autism at Charing Cross Hospital gaining a range of work-
related experiences, training, and qualifications. He gained experience in 3
departments, was offered two jobs within the hospital, and chose to accept the
role as a Band 2 Medical Lab Assistant in the Microbiology department. Niaz
has been employed for 3 years, continues to make excellent progress and is
a popular member of the department.

Rohan: Took part in a work experience pilot at Northwick Park Hospital whilst
he was at school in sixth form, spending half a day a week at the hospital for
6 months. His dream job was to work in Pharmacy and the trust were able to
offer him Pharmacy work experience. He excelled in the department and then
spent one year at college completing a preparation for employment course
before coming back to the trust and enrolling onto their supported programme
year where he concentrated on gaining further experience in Pharmacy. Rohan
is now employed in Central Middlesex Pharmacy and loves his job.

We will also be focusing on the impact of the cost of living in year one of the strategy.
This issue has particularly affected our lowest-income residents, in relation to food and
fuel, leading to mental health issues, social isolation and increased attendance at A&E.
We are engaging with communities and our workforce to understand what this means
to them and are building on existing local authority-led initiatives to increase access to
wider NHS resources and patient contacts, enhance relationships with local
businesses and maximise the use of VCSE support. We are sharing best practice and
learning from outside organisations such as the Greater London Authority.

We will work to increase digital skills within deprived communities, supporting

residents to better manage their health and find employment. We will support local
businesses through more local procurement, taking into account social value.

32
84



We will support sustainability work, promoting active travel, improving air quality and
improving green spaces for deprived communities in our boroughs. We will develop,
in partnership with Local Authorities, an approach to improving housing conditions,
developing our understanding and approach to keeping people healthy in their own
home.

We will support healthy behaviours in our communities, working with public health
colleagues to improve pathways for smoking cessation in and out of hospital,
supporting healthy weight for all ages and improving the proactive approach to
vaccination. We will focus on making every contact count — making connections to
wider services when people from our more deprived communities’ access services
and train our staff in how to maximise these opportunities.

PPHMI supporting case studies:

Community Health and Wellbeing Workers in Churchill Gardens: The
team, who are residents, work with a set list of households, listening to and
assisting residents in managing their health and wellbeing in a way that works
for them. The team offer their services directly through visiting residents or
talking to them on the phone about their health, offering support where
appropriate and letting residents know about activities and services available
to them.

Churchill Gardens Changed4lLife Neighbourhood Project: Delivering
evidence based, community led initiatives to address key priorities:

» Healthy eating and cooking skills for young people

» Lack of affordable food /healthy eating options

» Increased physical activity, focusing on women only activities
For example, working in partnership with London Sports and Sports4Health to
activate physical activity targeting women and young people, delivering
cookery sessions for families, healthy weight management service

33
85



Improving vaccine equity through reducing variation in the uptake of Covid-
19 vaccines across our communities in north west London:

* Reflections from members of our communities around vaccine
hesitancy
*  Weekly coproduction and improvement huddles to bring together
people and teams who are working to improve vaccine equity, engage,
listen & share learning, facilitate a weekly, inclusive digital space that
people can join and contribute to co-producing tests of change:
« Starting with stories, data, and insights
* |dentifying problems, gaps, and barriers
» Co-producing ‘tests of change’
+ Finalising actions and process evaluation
» Learning around design principles for health inequalities work and
evaluation of the impact

Local care
Work within the local care programme encompasses a wide range of services:

Those organised locally around communities where people live and work. This
includes integrating general practice, community nursing and therapies,
community mental health services, social care, children’s services, voluntary
sector and wider community assets, dentists and pharmacies.

Those which are specialist, organised at a borough or system level. This includes
specialist palliative care (including hospices), specialist children’s services, and
NHS community rehabilitation beds.

The programme seeks to better join up health and care support for residents. As such,
the programme also focuses on the building blocks that underpin service delivery:
partnerships, pathways, digital and data, and estates.

How residents want to be supported

Our residents want to receive timely and accessible care, close to where they live.
This chapter sets out how we are going to achieve this by 2028. Previously we have
asked residents in North West London what is important to them, which informs our
approach:

My  wellbeing and

happiness is valued and

I mimn mritmimmsdmn Al b A

34

As soon as | am
struggling, appropriate

86



| am seen as a whole person —
professionals  understand the
impact of mv housina situation. mv

My life is important, | am

_ part of my local
My wellbeing and mental . A
health is valued eauallv to

Challenges

The health and care system are currently under significant pressure with longer waits
to access emergency care, elective care, ambulance services, home care and
community outpatient services.

In general practice, patients give very positive feedback about their experience, but
the biggest challenge is being able to access primary care services. In North West
London the number of GPs and practice nurses has declined by 2% and 4%
respectively and we have the highest ratio of patients to GPs in London. We know that
28% of our primary care workforce are over 55 and are likely to retire over the next
five years. Many of these will be senior partners leading their practice. We also know
that about half of newly qualified GPs entering the profession do not wish to become
partners.

Of course, the support people need does not solely come from general practice -
increasingly working as part of an integrated neighbourhood team provides access to
a wider set of skills. For example, community nurses in North West London are critical
to keeping people well in their own homes — and every day they see close to 10,000
patients.

We also have 84 social prescribers supporting people to access services that may not
be traditionally delivered by the NHS, but which are known to keep people well, for
example exercise or support groups for specific conditions like diabetes. With 170,000
people living with diabetes in North West London this is a great example of work to
address inequalities responding to data showing where we have individuals and
communities who may not be able to access the input they need. We need to build
on good work in some areas to ensure that we target support to those most at risk.

35
87



Transformation priorities for local care services
This strategy values our residents’ and patients’ time. Reducing the time, they need to
spend accessing and navigating services is a guiding principle. The local care
programme will meet these challenges by:

e Developing a core common service offer across our eight boroughs, defining
the key elements of services that will be standard across North West London.

e Implementing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams across North West London to
reduce the gaps between services and give greater clarity for residents on how
to get the care they need.

e Supporting borough-based partnerships to thrive as the part of our system that
will best address inequalities given their closeness to the population’s needs.

e Develop responses at borough/North West London-level for services that
cannot be effectively delivered in every neighbourhood. For example, where
small numbers of patients or very specialist staff are needed.

Delivering improved patient care also means we can get best value from the public
pound. Keeping people well and avoiding the escalation of their health and care needs
is better for individuals. It is also cost effective, ensuring only those with the most
complex/critical needs require our most costly specialist services.

The Local and Primary Care delivery model has three ‘geographical’ levels of care to
improve residents’ health and wellbeing:

e Neighbourhood (your community) — local services at neighbourhood level,
designed using local knowledge and understanding of the community’s needs, will
be delivered by Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

e Place (your Local Authority area) - health and care organisations working
together to tackle inequalities and to better integrate with local authorities to offer
joined-up services

o Local care hubs will be developed in each borough, within a common North
West London framework.

e System (across North West London) —reducing inconsistencies in access to and
experience of care, and in population health across our eight boroughs, through
the organisation of specialist services in North West London ICS.

Developing a core common offer

To promote equity across North West London we will develop a core offer of services that are
available to all our residents wherever they live.. This will include:

36
88



e Setting consistent minimum service and care standards
across North West London, such as recent work on
musculoskeletal and wound care

blended
teams

Ingredient
e Developing consistent long-term condition pathways, .
based on the best available evidence of what works, | ~ ==
from prevention, digital support and self-care through
to local monitoring and specialist support outreach to 0
neighbourhood teams.

Working across the ICS to develop a new integrated health and care approach to avoid
hospital and care home admissions and support patients moving from hospital to home
care.

For Long Tern Conditions this will reflect the opportunity to address the ‘diagnosis gap’
as well as ensuring optimum treatment — as we have started with diabetes and a focus
on the 9 Key Care Processes

Primary Care wrap around coordination

Identification and
diagnosis
/supported

education

Holistic care with specialist care and input
I Patient education/supported self care (at all levels) I

Mental health integration (at all levels)

Disease
stratification and
primary pathway

Complex
management

Prevention and wellbeing Palliative care

Implementing integrated neighbourhood teams

The local care programme intends to develop Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
(INTs) at neighbourhood and borough level, that wrap around communities and
general practices.

They will have general practice at their heart, building on primary care networks, to
bring together community services, social care and the voluntary sector to work in a
geography that is meaningful to local residents and allows efficient service delivery.
This new model of delivery ensures that practices, within the integrated neighbourhood
team, have protected capacity to provide planned proactive care and, for patients who
need it, a same day urgent response. Integrated Neighbourhood Teams will also
maximise the contribution to patient care from new roles joining practice teams, such
as pharmacists, physicians associates and paramedics. They will also give a bigger
role to specialists who have previously provided care only in hospital settings, for
example throughout patient centres. They will be run by a single management team,
who will also manage ‘hubs’ targeted at particular groups, such as children and
families, or those with particular diseases or long-term conditions.

37
89



‘...the neighbourhood team are an
extension of my eyes and ears helping

me manage the patients | am most
concerned about’. GP

The three ‘Care’ functions at a local or neighbourhood level are:

Preventive care

Proactive Care

pulation health

Preventative care (whole population)
By 2028, we will demonstrate a reduction in the health inequalities ‘gap’ for all North
West London residents. We will do this by:

e The adoption of a population health management
approach by our Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to

improve health outcomes and reduce health inequalities. insratad Nngourhand
e Robust data sharing across all sectors to support the et

identification of individuals and communities at risk of poor
outcomes.

e Working across the NHS, and with public health, the
voluntary sector and community leaders and champions,
to increase the uptake of preventative services, such as
immunisation and vaccination and screening services.

e Supporting residents with accessible information and
community activities that help them to stay well and healthy.

e Working together to tackle the wider determinants of health and commission
prevention approaches for those at risk of long-term conditions such as diabetes.

Proactive care (at all staged of someone’s life)
By 2028, we will:

38
90



Identify people with undiagnosed conditions, such as cancer and hypertension,

through screening and proactive case finding.

e Reduce the number of people at risk of developing a long-term condition and
improving outcomes for people living with a long-term condition.

e Proactively support people with frailty and complex needs, including children and
those with mental health needs

e Improve equity of access, outcomes and experience for underserved populations,

e.g. homeless people.

We will do this by:

e Designing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams, in
partnership with health and social care, that break
down organisational silos and pull together a
range of staff to work in a common geography, to
improve their residents’ experience of care,
enhance capacity, and create fulfilling roles for
our workforce. This will include staff and teams
that patients may previously have had to attend
hospital to see.

e Providing a proactive case finding and
management model in every neighbourhood, il
using a population health management approach
to proactively target those who may need health
and care support, delivered by the multi-disciplinary team.

e Using shared data and digital tools to identify residents with complex needs who

need proactive support.

e Systematically implementing joint care planning to capture

people’s preferences and wishes, across every health and care

setting including:

o Personalised care and support planning for people with

long-term conditions, such as diabetes,

o Anticipatory care planning in place to ensure care is

coordinated in the event of a change in someone’s condition.

o Advance Care Planning for people in the last phase of life

(1% of population) supporting them to live and die well in their chosen place

of care.

HOUNSLOW

GREAT WEST ROAD

BRENTWORT

Reactive care (providing a same day response consistently across NW London)

By 2028, we will provide an on-the-day, integrated rapid access service that supports
adults and children and is integrated across primary care, community and mental
health, is flexible and operates at the scale of neighbourhoods. We will do this by:

¢ Pulling back ambulatory care that currently flows to hospitals, with local integrated
response to urgent demand within GP practices, walk-in centres, and some urgent
care centres.

39
91


mailto:https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/personalised-care-and-support-planning/
mailto:https://www.nwlondonics.nhs.uk/your-health-services/urgent-care-plan-london

e Bringing in local voluntary providers to operate alongside health and care
providers.

e Establishing and expanding a live Directory of Services that will enable onward
referrals to the right part of the system;

e |dentifying people who have an ongoing health or care need, with a care plan in
place, to ensure they receive continuity of care.

There are also increasing opportunities to use digital technology to support remote
monitoring of patients at home and to improve people’s access to information to
support their understanding of their own care. However not all of our residents have
equal opportunity to access digital models of care. Therefore work on digital inclusion
will be vital to ensure that no one is disadvantaged.

This robust and comprehensive plan will ensure that people who do not
clinically require a hospital emergency response can get the right care in their
own neighbourhood.

Supporting borough-based partnerships to thrive
Place Based Partnerships (PBPs) hold the key responsibility for driving the delivery of
the above strategy.

By 2028, we will have Place Based Partnerships across all eight boroughs that will
include local residents, local authorities (including public health and social care),
primary care, community and mental health services, the voluntary sector and local
hospitals.

Health

PBPs will have a deep understanding of their Visitor Children's Communty
population needs based on the JSNA and real time, \

shared population health management data. This will v N\ /
inform local priorities, the local design of Integrated \\ / e
Teams/ Local Care Networks and the location of = ¢v i W
hubs for service delivery. This will support PBPs to ™" — Famiyhud
achieve the goals of improving health outcomes and S _— // : ~.
reducing inequalities, by reaching into communities family ol lives

support Social

to those who are not accessing support and working Prescriber
on what’s important to them.

Defining and developing the organisational support needed by the PBPs will be a key
function for the Integrated Care Partnership. It could include the development of a
single shared budget, with shared population health information critical to inform how
it is best allocated.

Developing system-wide services

Whilst the ambition is to deliver as much care as appropriate, close to peoples’ homes,
for optimal efficiency some services must be provided once for North West London,
particularly those services that are specialised or where people require admission to
a bed. Not all services can be provided in every neighbourhood, therefore for
specialist services or hospital admission, residents may need to travel elsewhere in

40
92

Dentists/

Oral health
promoters

Early Years
(e.g.
nurseries)

Family

Navigators



North West London These system-wide services ensure value for money and allow
funding to be prioritised for preventative care, as well as reactive and urgent care. We
will therefore:

Complete the North West London Community Specialist Palliative Care Review,
developing and implementing the future North West London model of care, working
closely with our residents, partners and providers.

Develop and deliver Virtual Wards equivalent to 1,080 additional hospital beds,
enabling patients to be cared for at home.

Work with other London partners to support a common framework and digital offer
for all long-term conditions (LTCs) — ensuring the whole pathway from prevention,
to self-care, identification and treatment is supported.

Continue to develop the North West London Community Collaborative; the
partnership of NHS Community Trusts to drive high quality, consistent and better
value services across North West London, through working as one partnership.

Community based Specialist Palliative Care
Working with each Borough Based Partnership we established the baseline of
current delivery and the ‘case for change’ set out in our Issues paper.

* ltis clear we have variation in access and experience across NW London

* We have too many people not able to die in their place of choice

* We also have too many people being admitted to hospital inappropriately

+ And some feedback that services are not set up to meet the needs of all
residents

* In addition with projected population growth we need to plan for future growth
in demand

With a Model of Care group equally made up equally of professionals and residents
we have progressed designing the future model alongside extensive engagement-
with boroughs, but also across NW London with residents with particular needs:
Learning Disabilities, LGBTQI. In parallel we have been able to identify and progress
‘quick wins’ such as standardising access to phone advice and with medication
recording. We publish our papers and updates on engagement regularly and
strongly benefit from partnership with our hospice colleagues.

This example of NW London work which dovetails with borough work on the whole
end of life pathway indicates an approach to a ‘common offer’ for all NW London
residents, that can also be nuanced to specific local borough needs.

41

93


https://www.nwlondonics.nhs.uk/application/files/1616/3724/5470/NW_London_ICS_Community-based_specialist_palliative_care_review.pdf
https://www.nwlondonics.nhs.uk/get-involved/cspc

Primary care access — case studies:

Development of a Digital Access Hub in Central London

Background

A Digital Access Hub in Central London Healthcare (GP federation)
has been developed and works at significant scale by pooling
resources to manage medical and administrative demands on behalf
of all their local general practices.

This approach not only extends access for all, but plays a significant
role in changing patient behaviours and how they will seek to access
healthcare advice in the future.

The Central London Healthcare Digital Access Hub supports all 33
Central London borough practices and their 273,000 patients with the
online consultation requests, which exceed 5,000 per month and

Overview of service model

Through the collaborative working of the four Central London (Westminster)
Primary Care Networks (PCN), the Digital Access Hub was launched in
October 2020, offering the following services:

o providing initial non-clinical and clinical triage support delivered by
Care coordinators for all online consultations received with a KPI of 2
hours initial response;

o signposting patients to self-help and self-care resources and
services;

o reviewing and closing clinical cases by the Digital Access Hub GPs;

o booking appointments with PCN Additional Roles Reimbursement
Scheme (ARRS) clinicians for Musculoskeletal health (MSK);

o medication reviews and prescriptions; mental health support;

o booking appointments with low acuity clinical cases to the Community
Pharmacy Consultation Service;

o closing online consultation requests.

In just a year the Central London Healthcare Digital Access Hub has saved
in excess of 6,000 GP appointments and more than 5,000 hours of practice
administrative time.

Using new PCN contract as an enabler for service transformation and
integrated working.

In addition to extending access for patients this programme if initiated at
scale can further enhance productivity and value for money across the PCN
landscape.

42

94




Extending Access PCN Triage Hub

Background

Focus on delivering an integrated primary care offer by building on the
opportunities that investment in ARRS roles bring and enhancing the
service offer to patients across the locality.

Using new PCN contract as an enabler for service transformation and
integrated working.

Scale is generated through pooling of additional roles across the
member GP practices and also becoming more innovative in the way
non clinical support staff are utilised and enhancing their role within
the patient pathway.

Working in this way enables a more appropriate streaming of clinical
caseload, creating more capacity for GPs to focus on the complex and
high risk and critically increasing access for patients.

Focus on mutual support and accountability.

PCN level contracting has been a key catalyst for transformation and
service development.

Overview of service model

Connectivity is key with a recently recruited Project Manager
coordinating delivery which helps to ensure ongoing participation of the
member practices

Ensuring that ARRs resource is maximised across the PCN landscape
and used as a catalyst for integrated working.

Enhancing efficiency through the use of eHub as demonstrated through
the use of the Patches Module.

Extending access through non face to face alternatives such as the
telephone appointment offer.

In addition to extending access for patients this programme if initiated
at scale can further enhance productivity and value for money across
the PCN landscape.

Priorities moving forward

Resolve some of the identified IT issues such as use of EMIS.
Development of an IT Strategy for PCNs, supporting PCNs to deliver
on the IT requirements of the programme.

Develop a consistent strategy for recruitment to and utilisation of the
ARRS roles across the PCN.

Better manage our capacity by using digital tools that help to predict
demand, support planning, and add flexibility to the system, to deliver a
more responsive service.

43

95




The Connecting Care for Children Programme (CC4C)

Background

The aim of the programme is to increase access for children and
their families to specialist care in the community.

GPs are present in every clinic working alongside the paediatrician.
An integrated MDT approach have been established to oversee the
programme, and healthcare professionals (HCP) across the MDT
can be accessed by patients who receive the benefits of integrated
wholistic care.

In the main clinics take place on a face-to-face basis and this further
strengthens the relationship between the HCP, the patient, and their
familv/carers.

Overview of Service Model

The MDTs and clinics ensure children’s and their family’s needs are
addressed in a wholistic and integrated way, this is demonstrated by
the input of social workers who ensure that the wider needs of the
child and the family are taken into consideration.

The inter-disciplinary partnership working that is encouraged
through this service ensures that a wider range of population health
outcomes are achieved as well as encouraging a change in
behaviour in terms of professional practice and how patients and
their families engage with health and social care moving forward.
To date the CC4C service has shown a 40% reduction in patient
needs which frees up resource to manage general demand across
primary care.

Early indications suggest a positive impact in terms of improving
population health and reducing inequalities

Priorities moving forward

Secure input from all providers across patch

Development of a common offer.

Consider how this approach could be extended to other patient
groups as well as aligning with the future development of Integrated
Neighbourhood Teams

Expanding the preventative approach in priority clinical areas.

44

96




Local Care — Grenfell:

e It has been 6 years since the terrible events on the night of June 14"
2017. The integrated care system (ICS) for North West London, a
partnership of organisations including the NHS and Local Authorities
who come together to plan and deliver health and care, continues to
be committed to supporting the survivors, bereaved and the wider
Grenfell impacted community into the future. The ICS has identified
funding for a five-year-period back in 2019 and this commitment will
continue.

e To date the NHS has planned for and provided healthcare services
based on expected health need; that need has changed over time and
services have changed accordingly. The NHS are committed to
continue to review and adapt services into the future, using advice and
guidance from relevant experts to inform this.

e The ICS are learning from the Grenfell Tower Fire and how to work
differently with communities to aide their recovery and will share this
learning more widely across health and care services. A Health
Partner Forum has been formed that is able to reach into some of the
seldom heard communities providing access to information through
trusted routes.

e We heard from the community that services needed to be more
culturally aware and have worked to improve services, such as
accreditation for cultural competency training with community
representation for primary care. This approach could also be applied
in other areas of NWL across health and care services.

e Working with traumatised communities requires different approaches
and there is significant learning from the approaches taken and the
community feedback that has been received that is transferable.

Acute Care

Residents in North West London have access to a wide range of clinical expertise
delivered by our hospitals, with access routinely coordinated by a patient's own
General Practitioner (GP).

There are 12 acute hospital sites in North West London, organised into four Trusts
(Imperial Hospitals NHS Trust, Chelsea and Westminster NHS Foundation Trust,
London North West University Hospitals NHS Trust and Hillingdon NHS Foundation
Trust).

Combined, each year these sites deliver over 500,000 urgent and emergency
contacts, 152,000 emergency admissions, 2.7m specialist outpatient appointments,
246,000 diagnostic imaging tests and 17,800 elective surgeries (as day cases and as
inpatient cases).

45
97



Although significant progress has been made in addressing the challenges in the acute
hospital system following the pandemic, we know that our residents don’t always have
an optimal experience of care when they need it. They don’t always find it easy to
access timely clinical advice, whether for an urgent or non-urgent need, and waiting
times for elective services remain long. Elective services describe those hospital
services where a referral is made, either by a healthcare professional or yourself.
Significant volumes of patients are waiting over 52 weeks to be seen; this can result
in people suffering a deterioration in their health and quality of life and can place
additional pressure on the primary care system. Residents don’t always feel that their
care is joined up; some hospital visits could be avoided, opportunities for residents to
take control of their own follow-up care are not always available, and integration of
specialist advice into primary care is not always consistent. This leads to variation in
the quality of care and clinical outcomes experienced across our sector.

Our aim is to deliver consistently high-quality care, on a par with the best cities globally,
for residents of North West London and to deliver the best hospital care in the UK by
ensuring that we meet the following key objectives:

e Ensuring that residents have routine access to specialist expertise

e Significantly improving access to surgery (inpatient and day cases) to reduce
waiting lists

e Ensuring that residents have convenient, effective and timely access to
diagnostics

e Significantly improving urgent and emergency care to reduce delays

e Ensuring that residents experience the same quality of care regardless of where
they receive it, by identifying and reducing the causes of any varied experience

e Ensure that our specialist services are readily accessible with effective and
efficient pathways of care.

e Ensuring the appropriate reprovision of acute estate, starting with the four
hospital sites in the national New Hospitals Programme.

We will achieve these objectives in several ways, summarised below.

Routine access to specialist expertise

Traditionally, the first non-emergency contacts a resident has with the hospital is
through an outpatient appointment. The pandemic demonstrated different ways of
delivering these services, whether by telephone, video call or by providing specialist
advice to a GP. We will develop this further, focusing on ensuring rapid access to
specialist advice and support regardless of where this is delivered. This may take the
form of:

e direct GP and patient communication via emalil

e avirtual appointment or

e an in-person appointment which could be delivered in a community setting as
well as in a hospital.

This will significantly shorten the time taken for patients to be seen, reducing waiting
lists and ensuring a much quicker resolution of any condition or ongoing treatment.

46
98



North West London ICS is developing the use of digital tools to support more effective
and efficient delivery of care. In dermatology we are piloting the use of digital image
recognition to support the rapid identification of patients who may have skin cancer
which, if successful, will release clinician time to support treatment. Across all our
outpatient services we are also piloting the use of technology to automate manual
administrative processes which, if successful, should improve our patient-facing
services around booking and rebooking of appointments.

North West London ICS has rolled out an Advice and Guidance system for many of
our hospital services, connecting GPs with specialists directly. There is scope to
significantly expand this to a wider range of specialists and geographies. For some
patients this may mean that a specialist can virtually ‘join’ an appointment with their
GP (for example through a video link), or it may mean the GP and specialist work
together to agree the plan to support a patient.

In other instances, routine specialist care may be delivered away from the traditional
outpatient building in a hospital and make use of local care hubs.

Some services require very specialist equipment or teams, and these are likely to
remain in traditional hospital settings.

We will work with patients to develop new ways of communicating and working with
users. We will do this by developing effective digital tools that support reliable,
accurate and timely communication, whilst ensuring that residents who are unable to
use digital tools are provided with equivalent support.

Improving access to elective surgery — day cases and inpatient cases

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact upon the residents of North
West London and our hospitals, with waiting times remaining significantly increased
since it began.

Across North West London the four acute Trusts are working together to identify where
theatres and staff can be used more effectively e.g. by reducing cancellations on the
day of surgery, by using data and analytics to optimise scheduling, by reducing length
of stay, and by sharing resources and expertise across sites.

As highlighted by the national Getting It Right First Time (GIRFT) programme, there
are three key steps to improve quality and productivity for high volume, low complexity
surgery. These are:

e separating elective and non-elective surgery

e increasing day case surgery rates

e improving the utilisation of asset such as operating theatres, x-ray equipment and
other complex equipment, increasing theatre productivity and creating more
efficient care pathways.

[ ]

Separating elective and emergency work reduces the risk of cancellations and the
risks of infection.

For example, we are developing a proposal for an elective orthopaedic centre, which
will bring together patients and specialists from across North West London in a

47
99



purpose-designed centre with the goal of delivering rapid access and world-class
clinical outcomes.

The proposed elective orthopaedic centre is intended to be part of an improved end-
to-end pathway for musculoskeletal disorders. This draws upon best practice from
other parts of England where the establishment of dedicated elective orthopaedic
centres has led to improved clinical outcomes and has enabled more orthopaedic
activity to be undertaken throughout the year, helping to reduce waiting times for life-
changing joint replacements.

Convenient, effective, and timely access to diagnostics

Timely access to appropriate diagnostic tests is key to ensuring that any treatments
can happen as quickly as possible, or any problems can be excluded. Improvements
can be made in several places:

e Starting in primary care, GPs will be supported with Clinical Decision Support
(CDS) electronic tools that help direct referrals to the most appropriate place and
ensure that results are rapidly available to both GPs and patients.

e Once referred for diagnostics, electronic systems such as Swiftqueue allow
patients to organise and modify their own appointments online at their
convenience. They also support electronic scheduling systems to improve the use
of diagnostic equipment. Again, cross-North West London working in hospitals
allows for patients to receive care as quickly as possible, ensure that there is no
unnecessary duplication of tests and cuts out unnecessary travel for patients.

e We will continue to explore the use Artificial Intelligence (Al) tools to support
diagnostics and ensure that specialist staff capacity is used effectively. To help
achieve this, an Al strategy is being formulated and pilot initiatives rolled out.

In liaison with specialist cancer providers (see below) delivery of the Cancer Faster

Diagnostic Standard (FDS) through improving care pathways will be prioritised.

Community Diagnostics Centres (CDCs) are being established to provide additional
capacity and more accessible diagnostics in Wembley, Willesden, and Ealing (all
areas of high health need).

Improving quality of care and reducing variations in quality across North West London hospitals
We will continue to work together to review and monitor data about access to care
(including waiting times) and quality of care. Our aim is to achieve consistent
standards in quality of and access to care across our population, regardless of where
an individual lives or their background. An example of how we are doing this is set out

48
100



below.

Top 35 TFC cancellations, DNAS & Late not seens by Deprivation (21/22)

tedian days waited by ethnic

Data shows that there is no significant difference

description (admitted patients)
in waiting times for elective care across different
ethnic groups. There is slight disproportionality in
the percentage of patients on the waiting listin

| I I I I I I I | I North West London from deprivation deciles 1-3

‘ compared with the total population accounted for
by this group of patients...

Median days waited by ethnic description (non-admitted patients|

All Patients on waiting list

-]
:
_— b "
» s Pl —
I | ...However, we have identified variation in attendance at

appointments between different ethnicity and deprivation
groups, and we are now seeking to develop interventions
that will better support our population to access elective
services.

Today, we can view a single waiting list for North West London and ensure that
patients are offered equitable treatment, including offering earlier appointments at
other hospitals, where this is clinically appropriate.

We have established clinical networks and communities of professionals to share
information and best practice across North West London, and to develop new, more
collaborative ways of delivering care. We will continue to work with our local
universities and researchers to build upon North West London’s esteemed position in
research and development.

Across our acute system, we will have a consistent and standardised approach to our
digital infrastructure to allow for seamless end-to-end care for our patients and sharing
of information. All our hospitals will have a common electronic patient record by the
end of 2023 providing a solid building block for this. We will look at ways of harnessing
digital and technological developments and innovations to improve systems and
processes within hospitals.

Specialist services

We will prioritise the collaborative transformation of a small number of specialist
services and their associated pathways. These transformations will look to develop
the overall quality of the service (in terms of effectiveness, patient-centeredness,
safety, efficiency and equity) by working with clinicians from across the system.

We will focus on those pathways with the greatest need for transformation, whether it
is due to demand (specialist tertiary referrals) or to links with other key clinical
pathways (for example where specialist services have a measurable impact upon
urgent and emergency care pathways).

Ensuring the appropriate reprovision of acute estate

We will ensure that our estate is fit for purpose and that we have the right quality estate
in the right places, in particular delivering on our pledges to rebuild aging hospitals.
Four of London’s acute hospital sites are part of the national New Hospitals
Programme — Hillingdon Hospital, St Mary’s Hospital near Paddington, and both

49
101



Charing Cross Hospital and the Hammersmith Hospital in Hammersmith & Fulham.
We are in the process of developing and securing approval for the business cases for
each of these sites. We will also bring diagnostics into the community, and addressing
services where technology has moved on it no longer makes sense to deliver in the
current fashion.

Always here for you in an emergency
The current urgent and emergency care system is clearly under pressure with very
long waits for patients in primary care, at urgent care centres and in A&E departments.

Some reasons for this are:

e delays in discharging people from hospital beds who need social care and ongoing
support

¢ internal hospital systems which add to delays e.g. not discharging people until later
in the day, difficulties in patients receiving their drugs to take home, not planning
for discharge early enough

e blockages in A&E due to the above which then lead to delays in ambulances
offloading patients

e people with severe mental health problems being cared for in an A&E department
rather than a dedicated mental health facility

e delays in ambulance staff being able to contact other services who could look after
people at home rather than taking them to hospital

e large numbers of people attending urgent care centres and A&Es due to difficulty
accessing a GP appointment

e lack of sufficient support for older and frail people to be cared for in their own
home/care home rather than taken to hospital

e a plethora of choices for different types of services. This can be confusing to
people who need care but lack the information or time to identify the best place to
go.

We are currently seeking to invest resources to address these challenges, but we also

need to undertake a holistic review to ensure we are making the best use of facilities

and staff, and supporting systems to better respond to urgent and emergency care

needs. Services will have sufficient capacity to meet with demand, along with a

commitment to efficient working and high clinical standards to reduce the time that

patients spend on each stage of their urgent care journey.

Urgent and emergency care services must work closely with other services, such as
primary care, mental health care, community healthcare and social care, to ensure
that urgent care is delivered in the most appropriate way possible.

This could be through A& E, for patients who need specialist services or inpatient
care. For patients who require more extensive investigation and treatment but not
necessarily admission to hospital, same day emergency care departments are able to
carry out a range of diagnostics, bring in specialist support and, if required, review
patients at the same time for multiple conditions. North West London ICS are
extending these services, allowing them to treat more people, take on different
conditions and open for longer hours, taking pressure from hospital emergency
departments.

50
102



Options will be available for patients not in an emergency but requiring prompt support.
This could be through an urgent care centre where GPs and nurses can provide
primary care for minor illnesses and injuries or it could be through a primary care
centre, bringing together GPs and expertise from district nurses, physiotherapists and
pharmacists.

We are working closely with the London Ambulance Service (LAS) to ensure that 999
calls are answered quickly and that patients who require an ambulance receive one
promptly. North West London ICS will work with the LAS to ensure that options are
available to people who require care but don’t need to be taken to A&E.

The 111 service provides advice to people over the phone, making appointments in
primary care and booking patients into an urgent treatment centre. 111 can also make
referrals to other services such as community nursing.

Patients with mental health conditions will receive prompt assistance from specialist
services. Dedicated service models are being developed for babies, children and
young people, older people, and those on end of life care pathways.

North West London ICS is committed to learning from the best examples of care,
nationally and internationally. It will work with all urgent emergency care (UEC)
providers to achieve a consistent and high level of service so patients, wherever they
are, will be met with the care that they need.

Mental health, learning disabilities and autism

The Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Autism (MHLDA) programme brings
together multi-disciplinary stakeholders and lived experience and expertise to improve
access to services, patient experience and outcomes for every resident of North West
London, affected by mental health, learning disabilities and autism.

Mental health disorders are the fourth largest driver of years lost to disability and death
in North West London?®, and therefore present one of our biggest opportunities to
improve the health and wellbeing of our residents.

Our areas of focus for North West London are informed by what our patients, families
and carers tell us is important to them — greater access, more local care and treatment
and prompt response in crisis — as well as the NHS Long Term Plan, locally defined
priorities and our continued learning from COVID-19.

The MHLDA programme is made up of four workstreams:

Community Mental Health

Crisis Care

Children and Young People’s Mental Health
Learning Disabilities and Autism.

PwnhPE

3 PHE’s burden of disease study — fourth driver of DALYs in NWL for seven boroughs (number 3 for
H&F)

51
103



Challenges

In recent years, more and more people are aware of, and are seeking help and support
for, their mental health needs. Demand and complexity are increasing, both
exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting, wider consequences to
society. This is demonstrated by a greater number of people presenting at A&E in
mental health crisis, who are not previously known to services.

Transformation priorities
Across all its workstreams, the mental health, learning disabilities and autism
programme will:

e Deliver an equitable core offer to all residents of North West London.

e Co-produce interventions and delivery models to meet the differing needs and
attitudes of our residents, with a particular focus on groups and communities
that have historically been underserved.

e Build on existing community assets.

Community mental health

With over 80,000 contacts each year, community mental health focuses on three
areas, using psychological (and other) therapies to alleviate anxiety and depression;
to support treatment and recovery for people with serious mental illness; and complex
emotional needs in the community. Also, to improve the care provided to people with
dementia, whether they are in a hospital or their own home.

Community mental health in North West London is now more focused on treatment
and recovery. It is becoming more joined up with primary care and community assets
and will become part of the services on offer through our integrated neighbourhood
teams. This enables people to receive more holistic, individualised care — joining up
physical health, social and mental health interventions closer to their homes that
address underlying issues and problem.

For those with common mental health problems, such as anxiety and depression, we
have improved access to talking therapies. Whilst capacity has expanded rapidly in
recent years, people’s access to care remains relatively low compared with
prevalence. We will reach more people by flexing the approach, particularly tailoring
the service to differing local communities. We must also expand our reach through
other organisations, sectors and industries, to further develop the broader health,
social and economic improvements of North West London.

Community teams will cover more days and longer times and provide more local care
and treatment. This will be achieved by a local system, including the voluntary sector,
that works together to enable residents in North West London to take better care of
their mental and physical health, and building confidence in people to support their
mental wellbeing.

There is also a renewed North West London-wide commitment from our partners to
improving dementia diagnosis rates and post diagnostic support, as well as reducing
variation in service user and carer experience between boroughs.

52
104



Crisis care

We estimate that over 35,000 people present in crisis each year. Mental health crisis
care has significantly expanded with 24/7 community teams, a range of crisis
alternatives to A&E and admission available across the ICS and the expansion of
liaison psychiatry teams that meet Core 24 standards in every A&E department in
North West London.

There is a growing need to further promote and improve public knowledge of
alternative crisis services to better direct people to the most appropriate service and
prevent the need for A&E attendances and admission. Added to this, we will continue
to improve the existing 24/7 open access urgent mental health helplines, including
capacity of telephony systems and follow-up care in the crisis pathway, connecting
these services to NHS 111.

Taking forward actions from the Crisis Care Concordat and developing our estate and
physical spaces to provide dedicated mental health assessment will also ensure that
mental health crisis is treated with the same urgency as a physical health emergency.
Focusing on improving the quality of treatment and care when in crisis will enable
people to be treated with dignity and respect, with a trauma informed approach in a
therapeutic environment.

Children and young people

Children and young people’s mental health services have continued to expand and
diversify over the last four years. This has resulted in over 17,400 children and young
people accessing mental health care and support in the last year. However, the
severity and complexity of issues and needs has also increased. Despite, relative
success in increasing access, there is also a large proportion (approx. 55%) of children
and young people with needs that do not seek and/or access the help and support that
would benefit them, their families and carers.

Within North West London, access to services will continue to expand and join-up,
with an emphasis on delivering preventative and early support and interventions,
digitally where appropriate. Systemic issues and symptoms will be detected earlier,
and with a “no wrong door” approach, children and young people will have a wider
range of their needs supported so that they are able to thrive. Further development of
multi-disciplinary forums and structures, such as Child Health Hubs will enable holistic
care.

Early support and building resilience will be a priority and there will be more resource
and focus on education settings. Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) already
operate in over 40% of schools within North West London, there is both scope and
appetite to offer a comparable level of support to all schools. We will also consider an
appropriate offer for those that do not attend school, to ensure that their needs are
also met.

Learning disabilities and autism

Patients, families and carers, as well as fellow professionals, sometimes struggle to
navigate services that deliver care and support for those with learning disabilities and
autistic people. Waiting times are variable throughout North West London, particularly

53
105



within diagnostic pathways. This is, in part, caused by historical complex
commissioning arrangements which is compounded by workforce shortages, as well
an increase in prevalence rates of autism in schools between 2010 and 20194, It is
estimated that autism affects 1-2% of the population®.

North West London will address this by developing a common, scalable, resilient core
offer that gives more equitable access, support and outcomes, including swifter access
to diagnosis. For patients, families and carers that continue to wait, clear and
constructive communication will be consistent throughout, ensuring more proactive,
timely support for challenges and issues as they arise. An enhanced offer through the
voluntary, community and social enterprise sector and peer led organisations will
mean that an additional, diverse range of needs will be met, and residents will be better
equipped to thrive in the community.

Actions

Taking our priorities forward rests on ensuring multi-year workforce plans, which
include developing and diversifying the types of roles across our providers. We are
committed to establishing sustainable partnerships and building capacity with the
voluntary, community and social enterprise sector and independent providers,
increasing our reach and improving provision, particularly for diverse and underserved
communities and groups.

The workstreams vary in scope, covering different service areas and population
groups with some overlap and interdependencies. There are agreed objectives and
metrics in place which we will continue to evolve, largely focused upon increasing
awareness and access to improve outcomes and quality of life by delivering quality
care with dignity in the least restrictive settings.

Establishing appropriate systems and frameworks that enable Provider Collaboratives
to design, commission and deliver a wide range of pathways and services is key to
driving the transformation and improvement of all mental health, learning disabilities
and autism services across North West London.

Mental health, learning disabilities and autism — case studies:

4 McConkey R. (2020). The rise in the numbers of pupils identified by schools with autism spectrum
Community Mental Health Transformation: Pathways for people with a > 35:

diagnosis of ‘personality disorder’ (Complex Emotional Needs, CEN) in | jyne-
Westminster

One of the key areas that was fed back 1 (061 carrying out engagement events
to support community mental health transformation from both service users,

~rarnrec anAd tha D winrl-farcro \wwine that conicrn 11eare wwith CENI wiares fAallinA




Community Mental Health Transformation: Advancing equality and joint
delivery of provision with the third sector and local authority

The aim of transformation work is to expand the therapeutic offer to those with
serious mental health needs and reduce inequalities in mental health with
more provision by the VCSE. To ensure a collaborative approach West London
NHS Trust leads worked with the local grants programme that already exist
within the local authority boroughs. This included providing culturally
appropriate therapeutic support and holistic approaches to those residents
who have experienced trauma, providing services to support the health and
mental wellbeing of those residents who identify as LGBT+ and working with
ethnic groups across the Trust area.

The services have supported over 600 people collectively direct/indirect across
the six organisations commissioned. This includes medication management,
prevention of escalating crisis, supporting access for marginalised groups into
mental health treatment and raising awareness, wellbeing groups, therapeutic
sessions, signposting and peer support, significant work has also been
delivered on supporting women and families.

55
107




Individual Placement and Support: evidence-based model of supported
employment

Individual Placement and Support (IPS) has been thoroughly trialled and has
outperformed all other tested forms of support for job seekers with serious and
enduring mental health needs. The implementation of IPS has been a key
element of the NHS Long Term Plan and preceding strategies for national
mental health improvement. IPS in NW London is expanding and continuing
to embed into the community mental health transformation model. This service
provides valuable support and job outcomes for service users such as Shaden,
who is now working as a Software Professional and has shared her recovery
story:

“My Care Co-ordinator referred me to the Employment Specialist who is part
of the service / team. Knowing she was based with my care team really
reassured me. | was already applying for jobs and getting interviews. The
hurdle was passing the interview. We had regular mock interview sessions
where | could practice how to best answer potential questions. With support
from my Employment Specialist, | felt positive that | would get a job.

| am now working full-time for a well-known international software company. |
have regular meetings with my Employment Specialist where we discuss how
| am getting on at work and the challenges my role brings. Having in-work
support means that | can pick up the phone, email her or text her whenever |
need support. During my days off, we meet at a local coffee shop and talk
more about work. It’s really helpful to go through the difficulties and positives
that work brings. My ES is very encouraging, listens to me, discusses options
with me and respects my decisions.”

56
108



Part 3 — clinical networks

Maternity

Our vision for the future of maternal and neonatal care provision in North West London
is to provide equity of access, experience and outcome to all people using our
services. We will deliver co-produced and co-delivered services using our multi-
disciplinary expertise to provide holistic and preventative care that extends from pre-
conception to the early years. These services will be delivered close to home and
designed to maximise the health and wellbeing of mothers, babies, and growing
families.

The maternity programme plays a fundamental role in achieving the NW London ICS’s
overall objectives. Maternity and related services have the potential to improve both
the health of people using them now and, through their children, the health of wider
society for generations to come. Growing evidence shows that to maximise health gain
and reduce inequalities in the population, the focus of effort must be on the health of
families before conception, during pregnancy and in the first three years of children’s
lives.

The ICB Maternity programme team is organised in three pillars for delivery of high
guality, safe services tailored to the needs of the population we serve: insight,
infrastructure, and improvement.

Since 2015 maternity services in North West London have been working
collaboratively to configure services for the needs of our population with a focus on
equity and equality. We have been sharing outcomes data to target areas for
improvement, collaborating on innovation to meet national requirements and engaging
with our stakeholders to understand what matters to them. In this way we have
delivered innovative services that are nationally recognised.

Challenges

Workforce
Retaining staff is as important to us as recruitment. Relationships between staff
and patients can be lost if there is a high turnover of staff.
Staffing shortages impose heavier demands on the workforce resulting in staff
reporting that work is emotionally exhausting and that they often feel burnt out
because of work. This in turn adversely affects the continuity and quality of care
delivered to our residents and patients.
This challenge will be addressed in North West London through:
e an ongoing recruitment and retention drive
e improving efficiencies with better use of digital technologies
e investing in and working with local partners and communities to adopt
‘anchor institution’ practices
e tackle demand across North West London by joining up capacity and
resources across the patch to improve productivity and efficiencies.
Suggested initiatives include: North West London Birth Centre, North
West London Home Birth model and North West London Surgical Hub.

57
109



Inequalities
There is a disproportionately high number of still births, neonatal deaths, and
poor outcomes among expectant and new mothers from black, Asian, and
mixed ethnicity groups. This challenge will be addressed in North West London
through midwifery services targeted towards deprived and ethnic minority
population groups, as set out in the NW London maternity equity and equality
action plan and strategy.

Transformation priorities for the maternity programme

We have developed three interlinked principles for delivering maternity improvement:
assurance, systems working and economies of provision.

Principles for delivering maternity improvement:

Economy of
provision

+ICBs are asked to continue to have

*Work with our borough based partners
to deliver preventative care aimed at

ensuring all babies have the best start to
oversight and support providers to life for Ii%e

embed and deliver the 7 IEAs
identified in the interim Ockenden report,
along with learning shared in the second

*Maximise the use of current assets to
need:

*Consolidation of services where

*Every borough to have peer led appropriate — NWL homebirth service,

Ockenden report and East Kent review

+|CBs should oversee quality & safety in
line with implementing a revised
perinatal quality surveillance model

+93 million extra funding to support

Immediate & Essential Actions will now
be built into ICB baseline funding

+Fully implement Saving Babies' Lives

maternity champions to support
expectant and new parents with service
navigation, infant feeding, mental health
& weight management.

*Family hubs with co-located maternity
services

*Empowering & amplifying the
maternity voice through dedicated
maternity engagement activities

*Once the building blocks are in place,

«Anchor institute led recruitment initiatives

+Invest in holistic approaches to workforce

«More preventative action across the

- Smart use of digital systems and data for

review of midwifery led and elective activity

to grow a local workforce

well being & retention

system for reducing and managing acuity

Providers should have a preterm birth
clinic and act so that at least 85% of

women who are expected to give birth at
less than 27 weeks gestation are able to

JILC U | better service planning
prioritising black, Asian and mixed
ethnicity women and women from our
most deprived areas to receive midwifery
continuity of carer.

-Digital value creation via upgraded Mum &
Baby app

do so in a hospital with appropriate on-

site neonatal care

Priority 3: Workforce & Service Design

Assurance

The ICB maternity programme is responsible for assuring the quality and safety of
maternity and neonatal services in North West London. We do this by supporting our
providers to deliver on national recommendations. We have implemented a revised
perinatal quality surveillance model that facilitates clear lines of escalation from ward
to board, championed by staff at every level of the system, ensuring that concerns
raised are acknowledged and acted upon. Extra funding is being invested into
maternity services to increase staffing levels and develop better multi-disciplinary
training. Our North West London maternity dashboard uses data intelligently to monitor
variation in outcomes, enabling early alert and intervention where and when required.
For example: reducing stillbirth, pre-term birth, intrapartum brain injury, maternal
death, and readmissions, increasing infant feeding.

Systems working

Systems working is how we grow stronger and more effective. As the ICS evolves, we
can develop stronger links with our community partners and stakeholders.
Working with primary care networks, our borough-based partners and VCSE we can
identify local need and increase preventative measures that support the best start in
life. We will explore/focus on:

58
110



Empowering and amplifying the maternity voice through dedicated maternity
engagement activities to learn how we can improve the experience of using our
services and together co-produce improvements.

Introducing peer led maternity champions in every borough to support expectant and
new parents with service navigation, infant feeding, mental health & weight
management.

Co-locating maternity services with borough family hubs.

Ensuring the building blocks are in place to prioritise black, Asian and mixed ethnicity
women and women from our most deprived areas to receive midwifery continuity of
carer.

Acute collaborative services working together with primary care partners and
local authorities to develop effective pathways for our population.

Economies of provision

The people who work in our services are key to the quality of care that we
deliver. North West London maternity programme is working with the anchor
institutions to develop innovative projects to get local people into work.

We invest in holistic approaches to workforce wellbeing and retention.

We are developing our capabilities for the smart use of digital systems and
data for better service planning.

We are continuing to create Digital Value via the upgraded Mum & Baby app.
Consolidation of services where appropriate is under review as we co-produce
the design of services to meet changing need and demand.

By focussing on more preventative action across the system we aim to
reduce and manage acuity.

Enablers

We will work with the following partner programmes to deliver specific areas of
improvement:

59

Children and Young People (CYP) — focusing on the first 1000 days from
conception, including the neonatal interface

Acute — focusing on chronic conditions in early pregnancy; the interface
between acute and chronic medical care and maternity services; and ensuring
prevention, efficiency and effectiveness in the care of pregnant people requiring
acute and chronic care.

Mental Health — focusing on expanding the perinatal mental health service
provision

Population health & inequalities — focusing on development of the maternity
and neonatal equity and equalities strategy which is supported by the North
West London race steering group; a vaccination programme for delivery of flu,
COVID-19 and pertussis vaccinations in pregnancy; and workforce
development enabling local population balance.

Digital & data — focusing on a North West London developed and owned
(income generating) maternity app; developing a maternity digital strategy, in
line with the ICS priorities and population and service need; harmonisation of
maternity IT systems and digital tools; improving our application and analysis
of big data to target interventions to reduce acuity; and increasing our analytics

111



capability to support workforce analysis and enable resource being targeted in
the most impactful way.

Workforce — focusing on developing a workforce fit for the future, improving
staff wellbeing and job satisfaction.

Local care — focusing on the interface with GPs in the provision of care to
women and babies, preconception to postnatal; provision of over the counter
medicine for pregnancy, standardisation of medicine policy (eg Vitamin D) and
provision of prescriptions for pregnant population; pre-conception counselling;
diabetes prevention support programme for mothers at high risk of Type 2
following episode of gestational diabetes and Type 1 Continuous Glucose
Monitoring (CGM); and implementation of personalised care plans in maternity,
social prescribing and motivational interviewing.

Safeguarding — Focusing on supporting and caring for families with complex
social needs and identification, treatment and prevention of Female Genital
Mutilation (FGM).

Our plans going forward

What we do:

Why it matters:

Holistic care from pre-conception
to early years for all the family:

* maternity care embedded
within family hubs and
part of neighbourhood
teams in all boroughs.
Maternity champions.

« Working alongside public
health to maximise use of
existing resources

* ensure equitable access
with effective signposting

Having the best possible start in life is critical to the
health of our future population. System level
investment in pre-conception, maternity and
neonatal care will deliver health benefits for
generations to come.

Delivering timely preventative care, close to home
reduces complexity and acuity, improving
outcomes and increasing efficiency. For example
reducing late booking to maternity services,
improving infant feeding, increasing provision and
consistency of smoking cessation support and
improving perinatal mental health.

Developing a  standardised
assurance approach

Understanding what's going well, what the
challenges and issues are, helps us to
collaboratively support all our maternity services to
provide excellent, high quality and safe family
centred maternal and new-born care.

System
from risk

level sharing learning

Open multi-disciplinary meetings explore themes
arising from serious or untoward incidents to learn
and share together how to improve safety and
quality in maternity and neonatal services.

Service and workforce review

and co-design

Creating economies of provision by maximising our
use of assets across the system. Our workforce is
fit for the future.

Addressing inequalities in | Reduce variation so that all birthing people and
access, experience and | their families have the same quality of access,
60

112




outcomes — data driven to target
resource

experience and outcome across North West
London.

Better alignment with Integrated
Care System inequalities and
population health

Work with our borough-based partners to reduce,
actively challenge and remove the causes that lead
to black, Asian and mixed ethnicity people having
poorer outcomes than others.

Develop a workforce that mirrors our population
better.

Integrated Care System
centralised and sustainable
support to enable the programme
to deliver at pace

The national spotlight on maternity demands rapid
transformation, our Integrated Care System is
committed to investing in the infrastructure to
support our services to deliver the changes
required.

Digital strategy fit for the future

Using technologies to share and learn from data.
Enabling information sharing, interaction and
personalised care. Digital tools can improve
confidence and trust during times of change and

uncertainty.

Babies, children, and young people

Children in different parts of NW London do not get an equal start in life. Childhood is
a critical time to get things right for families. Needs and risks change as we grow from
babies, into infants, children, and young people. Rarely can changes be made in
children’s health services without considering the impact on education, social
development, and families. Inequalities in childhood shape our long-term health
outcomes, and our later independence in society. Having a supportive family, and a
good educational are some of the biggest protective factors for health outcomes.

NW London Integrated Care Partnerships can now bring together key players within
our health, education, and care systems with responsibilities across prevention, early
years, education and children’s social services. The NW London ICS programme for
babies, children and young people (BCYP) will tackle childhood inequalities in a
systematic way, and will challenge the status quo where necessary to co-produce
improved services and deliver better health outcome for children and families.

Our principles

Our strategy for babies, children, and young people (BCYP) is underpinned by these
key principles:

e Listen with humility to children and their families; involve them in decisions
about themselves.

e Use local, multi-agency qualitative and quantitative evidence to coproduce
service improvements with families.

e Enable families to have better access to advice, preventative care, and early
help, particularly in the first 1,000 days from conception.

61
113



Consider the childhood and family health inequalities, holistic needs of the
child, their physical, emotional, and mental health, and the wider determinants
of health by working with agencies across health, social care and voluntary
sector. (Detailed child mental health plans are in the chapter on Mental Health,
Learning disabilities, and Autism).

Balance the focus on reactive care with the proactive care to prevent later
development of ill health in adulthood.

Deliver care in the most appropriate setting; locally where possible,
centralised where necessary, and making best use of the health and care
estate.

Improve equity of access, experience and outcomes across all ages,
places, protected characteristics and other vulnerable groups.

Integrate our publicly funded resources in North West London to the benefit
of all children.

Our theory of change
Pyramid of care for improving health outcomes for babies, children, and young people

Fewer children sent outside north west London for specialist hospital care
and mutti-agency complex care placements

Equitable
access to
specialist care

Families offered
alternatives to
hospital care

More families feel
confident proactively (Chid Fiealt b )
managing care for their | “cPneighboueod team
children )

More children get access to M
preventative care and are on track with

for Special Educatio

social, emotional, and physical
development milestones B cmotional welbeing

Families supported to teach healthy habits to their next generation

We will deliver this through:

62

1.

Implementing new ‘models of care’, for example: changing the way
integrated neighbourhood teams of GPs, social workers, and community
paediatric teams work with residents to identify and reach out to families at risk
of missing out on preventative care; acute paediatric hospitals working together
to ensure children receive consistent standards of care

Establishing ‘system enablers’, for example: regularly listening to the ideas,
concerns, and experiences of parents with new babies, infants, adolescents,
and young adults through a range of age-appropriate engagement activities;

114

Fewer children grow up to have preventable disease

starting primary school

Needs and Disabilities and

More ma friendly school, and support in schools for healthy weight, and



using the diversity of communities and number of health and care children’s
services to create more attractive opportunities for professional recruitment,
development, and retention; changing some of the contract arrangements for
child health services to incentivise more preventative care for families at risk of
poor health outcomes.

. Coordinating ‘programmes of work’ across NW London ICS, for example:

reducing waiting times for children with special educational needs and disability
(SEND) to access assessments and care improving access to remote
monitoring equipment for children with diabetes; work with schools and families
to ensure all children with asthma know what to do if they have an asthma
attack, and how to reduce their risks; improve the oral health advice and access
to dental care for children at risk of tooth decay, thereby reducing the number
of children who need tooth extraction in hospital; supporting paediatric hospitals
and community health services to increase their capacity to treat common
childhood diseases, so that children and families get better care locally.

To support all segments of the population in a proactive way, NW London ICS will use
the ‘Whole System Integrated Care’ (WSIC) dataset to share intelligence between
health, education, and social care to proactively identify and prioritise care for children
and families who have the highest level of need, and highest risk of health inequality.

Pyramid of care — key objectives

63

Fewer children sent outside NW London for specialist hospital care or multi-
agency placements — Regular review of BCYP referred to services outside NW
London used to identify opportunities to invest in improving local services,
for example: specialist foster-care; specialist cardiac and respiratory care.
Reduced inequality of access to care when local services are stretched. NW
London hospitals to work together as a centre of excellence in managing
common diseases of childhood, embedding best practice within all NW
London communities and involving all NW London ICS providers, led by the
West London Children’s Healthcare Alliance.

To improve the efficiency and impact of reactive care, NW London ICS will
coordinate an approach to urgent and emergency care for BCYP that goes
beyond immediate care to consider opportunities for relapse prevention; self-
management; and high-quality care in the home, GP practice, and urgent care
settings.

BCYP ‘provider alliances’ will be established, enabling provider collaboratives
and Borough Based Partnerships to level-up children’s services in each
borough and plan for future workforce skill mix and capacity to the be on
par with the best global cities.

Quantify and optimise the use of digital platforms, local resources,
community assets, and neighbourhood expertise to ensure BCYP receive
care within NW London ICS, at home or close to home whenever possible; and
increase the opportunities for NW London children and families to participate in
clinical research.

Co-locating services and coordinating appointments to reduce travel and time
away from school for children, and reducing the number of in-person
appointments needed to deliver clinically appropriate care

115



e Multi-disciplinary teams including schools to support early intervention,
holistic care of long-term conditions and complex needs; including dedicated
focus on reducing health inequalities in mental health, SEND, asthma, diabetes,
and epilepsy

e Improve the work of integrated neighbourhood teams to tackle health
inequality for children growing up in the poorest areas, or in households
with the lowest income.

o Extend the NW London ICS roll-out of ‘Family Hubs’ to all eight
boroughs, so that multiagency support is optimal for pre-school children;
with dedicated workstreams to tackle inequality in outcomes around oral
health, SEND and healthy weight

o Extend the NW London ICS roll-out of ‘Child Health Hubs’ to all 45
Primary Care Networks, so that all BCYP registered with a GP practice
have improved-access to specialist child health resources, earlier
intervention and holistic care; with dedicated workstreams to cover areas
of focus such as asthma, mental health, immunisations and complex
health

e Helping families to be more active, supporting physical activity to benefit
children’s physical development, such as strengthening bones.

Family Hubs Child Health Hubs
Supported
Universal FH «enposting Universal PC
Offer Offer
FH MDT CHH MDT
Prevention & Health Promotion Primary

Financial Advice, Housing Advice Complex Families Complor reatn Care

Mental Heallh and Wellbeing Wutipk hosth conditons MDT
% L@
"E,aq'.l:,. ?.d» 2

<«
%o % (&8 o

Y2
€,
é\‘9/,,7(‘(\ (B
55 oo

SEND

Child Development Service

Socio-Economic “Triage” Medical

Priorities based on Need and Equity Across Population Segments

NW London will develop integrated care for children and young people that moves
beyond pathways and takes a whole population ‘segmentation’ approach. A child will
fit into more than one segment at a time and move dynamically between segments.

Healthy Child: Children growing up in NW London are more likely
to be overweight, less likely to be immunised, more likely to need
hospital admission for extraction of decayed teeth, less likely to
exercise and more likely to have mental health needs than children
growing up in the healthiest parts of England. Our children and young people tell us
that their emotional wellbeing is a key priority and school readiness can impact on and

64
116



improve a child’s life chances. Therefore, the following are priority areas of focus for
generally healthy children North West London:

Oral health: Tooth decay is the number one cause of admission to hospital for 5-9-
year-olds (dental extractions and treatment); 23% of 5-year-olds have experience of
dental decay and there are strong links with ethnicity and levels of deprivation
experienced at home,;

Mental health and emotional wellbeing: BCYP from lower income households are
more likely to have unmet mental health treatment requests compared with the
highest.

Supporting a healthy weight: While tackling the social determinants of poor health
is key, investments in prevention and early intervention services have been shown to
be effective in improving many health outcomes in the short term.

Social development: School readiness (physical skills, listening and speaking skills,
and literacy skills) starts in the first 1,000 days from conception. With the support of
parents and caregivers, young children acquire the social and emotional skills,
knowledge and attitudes necessary for success in school and life. By reducing the
variation in outcomes between boroughs and increasing the number of children that
are school ready at age five, we will have a strong impact on future educational
attainment and life chances.

Childhood Immunisations: NW London childhood immunisation rates are lower than
the UK average. More children are vulnerable to life-changing and life-threatening
infections as a result. We intend to catch-up after the drop in vaccination during the
CoviD lockdown, and then increase immunisation rates with targeted work to increase
uptake and support informed decisions by families who are hesitant. Learning from
our experience during the CoViD-19 pandemic, we will continue to offer vaccination in
a diverse range of locations in the community. These will include GP surgeries,
schools and community venues. NW London ICS will explore ways to use local
community resources to promote vaccination uptake, particularly among seldom-
heard communities, or among groups where there are commonly differences in uptake
associated with ethnicity, socioeconomic status or religious belief.

Child with Social Needs: People living in more deprived
child \iiar| circumstances have less timely access to health and care support
social needs than their peers. Experiencing trauma and adversity in childhood
negatively impacts long-term physical and mental health
outcomes. Knife crime related to gang activity in NW London continues to be a risk
and concern for children and young people. This is why, as a system, we aim to ensure
every contact makes a positive impact for the children and young people, whether it
be a trusted professional or via a peer-to-peer contact.

The following are priority areas of NW London ICS focus for vulnerable children with
social needs:

Looked After Children: Tackling the significant variation in health outcomes for this
group.

65
117



Safeguarding Children: Addressing the significant harm babies, children and young
people continue to suffer through abuse and maltreatment.

Child with a single long-term health condition: Children in NW
ST [er | London with long-term conditions have told us it is difficult to
inleeehilee | navigate the health, education, and care system. Parents carry
enormous pressure. As children grow, their care transitions to adult
services. This occurs at a vulnerable time of their lives. Experience
of transition is often poor. Health education can help maximise self-care and
independence.

The following are priority areas of focus for children with a single long-term condition:

Asthma is significantly more common in black and minority ethnic groups. For children
requiring admission to hospital, there is a widening difference between the least and
most deprived population deciles. Environmental factors such as air pollution, access
to second-hand smoke and poor-quality housing all contribute to poorer outcomes for
children and young people.

Diabetes Type 1 diabetes is affecting rising numbers of children and young people in
the UK. Poor management of the condition in childhood can have severe long-term
health implications. CYP with Type 1 Diabetes from minority ethnic backgrounds and
those in more deprived areas have consistently poorer blood glucose control.

Epilepsy: Optimal management of epilepsy improves health outcomes and can also
help to minimise other impacts on social, educational and employment activity. Poor
management of epilepsy can be life-threatening and may lead to children and young
people requiring unplanned emergency care. Epilepsy is the most common cause of
treatable death in children and young people with a learning disability aged 4-18. 27%
of CYP aged 0-24 diagnosed with epilepsy are in the most deprived quintile, compared
with 17% in the least deprived quintile. Epilepsy affects an estimated 112,000 CYP in
the UK.

Child Wie| Child with Complex Health Needs: Advances in paediatric care
ol aiieliie| mean that more children with complex medical problems (for
needs example, heart disease or neurodevelopmental problems) are
surviving their early years. Given the susceptibility of these children
to poor health outcomes, these advances in medical care have important knock-on
implications for the design and delivery of community healthcare, and the forecasting
of the ‘special school’ places and health workforce needed in schools. Importantly,
their medical needs must also be understood and addressed within the context of the
child and family’s life circumstances. There is growing recognition that many other
factors contribute to a child’s complex health needs for example, family problems,
fragmentation of health, education, and care provision, psychological difficulties or
social issues. Supporting children with complex health needs is a priority area of focus
for NW London ICS. This includes supporting their social development and maximising
their independence and decision-making as they grow older.

66
118



When a child or young person has Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND), we will meet the statutory requirements as a minimum. We will spread best
practice across NW London ICS. NW London ICS BCYP programme will work to co-
produce a framework for speech and language therapy to improve equality of access,
experience, and outcome.

N VAR Child who is acutely mild-to-moderately unwell: If the most
to-moderately deprived children in North West London went to A&E at the same
unwell child rate as the least deprived, there would be 55,000 fewer A&E visits
per year in North West London. Pre-CoViD-19 data for England
showed A&E attendances for the most deprived infants and pre-schoolers were over
50% higher than the least deprived. For the most deprived teenagers they were nearly
70% higher. The health can care system can be confusing to navigate. Parents know
they can get care quickly and reliably from A&E any time of the day or night. As a
result, for many parents have relied on paediatric emergency departments as a trusted
setting to get rapid advice, even if their child has a non-urgent condition. It is a
challenge to help parents trust and use other suitable sources of clinical review due to
their fears and beliefs that it may take more time than they have or may be less
thorough. Our 0-19 services can share knowledge with parents about minor illness
management, particularly to follow-up after a child attends A&E.

Specialist Pathways: Children need to have equal access to high quality surgical
expertise and efficient pathways that limit time waiting for care and spent in hospital
wherever they live in NW London.

Acutely Child who is acutely severely unwell: For trauma, oncology,
SEEVAE (N infection or allergy, variation in care and outcomes across NW
child London ICS needs to be addressed. Improvements in the quality of
care will draw on the specialist and academic expertise in NW
London ICS to level-up outcomes for all BCYP and families. This could be done by
local application of innovation and research, with a focus on treatment and
management of infection, using centres of excellence sector-wide and delivering a
coordinated paediatric intensive care unit (PICU) offer. Whenever clinically
appropriate, children from NW London should be cared for within our boroughs.

Our approach within North West London ICS

67
119



NWLICS Programme Boards

Delivery programmes Enabler programmes
Local care including primary care Workforce
Mental health and care for people with learning disabilitiesand autism Research and innovation
Acute care Digital

« Urgent and emergency

» Elective (high volume/ low complexity, outpatients and diagnostics) Data

* Critical care

= Specialist (low volume/ high complexity care, including maternity) Finance and estates

Improving population health and reducing inequalities in health

There are also a number of clinical networks focused on specific groups of
people/ patients, these include: < Babies, children, and young people

—

Support for Elderly people
Cancer people with long and end of
term conditions life care

With the establishment of NW London ICB in July 2022, NHS England set a
constitutional duty on the ICB to achieve a demonstrable progress on improving the
health of children and young people (https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2022/06/9-nhs-north-west-london-icb-constitution-010722.pdf Para
0.2a). To deliver this new duty, the existing NW London ICS child health arrangements
need additional support. The BCYP programme will require support for analytics, age-
appropriate engagement, project coproduction (with ICB programmes, Borough Based
Partnerships, and residents), and health economics expertise (to shift the balance of
resources towards more targeted prevention activity).

Coordinating Programmes of work across NW London ICS

The ICS has major programmes of work that impact babies, children, and young
people. NW London will organise these to be coordinated and mutually effective, via
an ‘enabler’ Babies, Children, and Young People Programme Board. The BCYP
programme will ensure that babies, children and young people are integral to the all-
age programmes and delivery areas:

e NW London mental health, learning disability, and autism: there will be
nuanced, non-medicalised consideration of support for improved emotional
wellbeing, physical wellbeing, and mental iliness.

e NW London Local Care community provider forum: to ensure statutory
duties for Looked After Children’s healthcare assessments are met and aligned
to work by West London Alliance of Local Authorities to reduce placements
outside NW London.

e NW London primary care programme: support the systematic roll-out of Child
Health Hubs as part of the response to the Fuller Review.

e NW London population health and inequality programme to align
Core20plus5 for children with Core20plus5 for adults and have a single plan for
narrowing the gap in life-expectancy.

e NW London maternity programme to consider the needs of pregnant people
with other children in the home, tackling in utero health inequalities (including

68
120


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/9-nhs-north-west-london-icb-constitution-010722.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/9-nhs-north-west-london-icb-constitution-010722.pdf

neonatal and infant mortality), and developing consistent core service models
for health visiting.

NW London urgent care programme to develop alternative models for
providing families with timely, trusted out-of-hours advice, and aligning
developments of remote monitoring, Same Day Emergency Care, and home
assessment and treatment to be on a par with that of adult services.

NW London elective acute care programme to improve the use of beds, so
children in our boroughs spend less time in hospital, and NW London hospital
beds are available when needed, with fewer occasions when children have to
be sent outside the area for care.

NW London specialist and critical care to support the development of cardiac,
respiratory, and sexual abuse examination services for children to reduce the
reliance on services outside NW London.

In addition, the NW London ICS BCYP programme will work with other NW London
ICS programme teams and with Borough Based Partnerships to establish a strong
multi-agency workplan:

69

NW London will amplify the voices of 490,000 children under 18 across NW
London ICS by pooling the insights from engagement with families and children
at neighbourhood, borough, and provider level. We will also ensure a robust
link to the NW London race steering group, to ensure intersectional identity
issues across generations are adequately reflected.

Young people will provide reverse mentoring support to strategic leaders;
providing inspiration from a young person’s perspective and challenging the
unconscious bias of adults making decisions on behalf of children.

NW London will dedicate time and resources to age-appropriate co-
production to work with our communities on making sense of health and care
data, agreeing local priorities for service improvement, co-producing locally
tailored models of care, making best use of digital platforms and smart
technology, and evaluating the impact of service changes.

Patient and public-facing materials (including digital resources, and ‘hot topic’
social media campaigns) will be co-designed with families and coordinated
across NW London to achieve consistent messaging.

Strong participation with community representatives, voluntary sector
organisations, public health and Local Authority teams will support a focus on
the wider determinants of health, and delivery of preventative care.

NW London ICB anchor institution work will support local work experience,
apprenticeship, and recruitment opportunities integrated with employment
readiness work in schools and colleges.

A detailed workforce strategy will support greater opportunities for staff,
through rotation and critical mass, creating centres of excellence that provide
non-financial incentives to increase retention of existing staff and support local
recruitment.

High quality BCYP data systems will support better coordination and efficiency
of clinical and professional activity. Address current gaps in critical child health
data (such as healthy weight, and immunisation status) by developing links to
the national Child Health Information System (CHIS) and dental health systems.
Data content will be transparent about inclusion or exclusion of certain age-

121



bands; population health systems will encourage pro-active case-finding,
inequality analysis, and impact tracking.

e Oversight of multi-agency packages of complex care for children will
ensure the best health and care outcomes, timely reviews, and care in the least
restrictive settings.

Aligning BCYP work streams with ICS core purposes

NHS England’s four core purposes of Integrated Care
Systems:

a) improve outcomes in population health and healthcare;

b) tackle inequalities in outcomes, experience and access;

c) enhance productivity and value for money; and
d) help the NHS support broader social and economic development.

Top 20 proposed work streams for child health m_-m

NHS-LA linked data & qualitative analysis for BCYP --”'gh edtm

High  High

Medium

Coordinated hospital care
Integrated neighbourhood teams (CHH & FH) " & -Me‘jiurn
Special Educational Needs & Disabilities (statutory) " [ e -

Medium High Medium

Complex care packages

BCYP core community offer "&" --Low

Looked After Children (statutory) &% Medum  fan - Medum
Healthy weight " M8 Hin - Medim

Supported care at home (PATCH) Mem & -Medium
Unscheduled care (SDEC) Y™™ ! -Mecliurn

Oral health e b High  Low

H . . H h d
Emotional wellbeing, social development ™ pedium

Asthma (implement care bundle) & f% e e

High  High High  Medium

Mental iliness (in physical care settings)
Inclusion health groups of children “**™ -Med‘“m o5

Medium Medium Medium

Specialist care outside NWL

Diabetes High High Medium Medium

Epilepsy
Preventable child death """ -Low

Medium High Medium Low

High High Medium Low

Low

Palliative & end-of-life care for babies and children

We will have succeeded when:

e More children receive preventative care (health, education, and social
development), with access to digital and face-to-face support.

¢ More families feel confident managing long-term conditions.

e Children spend less time in hospital.

e Families get better access to timely advice and are less reliant on emergency
care.

70
122



e More children and young people participate in research programmes, and
recognise improvement are driven by local evidence and insights.

e Fewer young people have to travel outside NW London to access specialist
hospital care.

More families and young people experience care that is driven by high quality data
and evidence.

Cancer

Cancer accounts for 3,134 [Table 1: cancer deaths by age group as a percentage
deaths/ year (2020/21) in (deaths (all boroughs) NWL 2021

of all

North West London and is the
leading cause of death in the | CauseofDeath2020/21 | 024 | 25-39 | 40-59 | 60-74 | 75+

Total

H 6
over 40s in every borough® 1o, ~"th o o | 2% | ar | 3m | 2%

27%

(Table 1). Over 62,000 people

are living with or beyond cancer in North West London. Improving cancer outcomes is

a key strategic aim for North West London ICS, and the national priority for cancer is

to increase survival by focusing on early diagnosis, with the ambition to ensure 75%
of patients are diagnosed at stage 1/2.

Figure 1: early diagnosis rates as al
percentage of those staged b

As at 2018, the early diagnosis rate across NW
London stood at 55%. This average masks

% stage 1/2
E:i:tg - - 22; variation inte_rms of both early diagnosis rates by
Hammersmith and Fulham 55% bOfOUgh7 (flgure 1) and by tumour type by
wgiszgiizon zz; borough (figure 2). Tthe National Cancer Patient
Central London (Westminster) s7%| Survey shows the inequitable experience across
:zzr:;'row ii; the cancer pathway for some groups, specifically
Average ss%5] those from our most deprived communities,

those who identify as Black or Asian® or as LGBTQI+.

Figure 2: Variatiqn in.early diagnosis by or approach to improving early
tumour type showing disparity between top diagnosis is to tackle variation in

performing and bottom performing borough screening, time to diagnosis, and
and number of people impacted across NWL/  t-aatment by deploying both universal

et ekt b dagroned evy interventions and targeted
interventions focused on those least
likely to be diagnosed early. We will
harness emergent innovations that
ensure more people get diagnosed
earlier and codesign approaches with

“______ . ison 16 December 2022]

-t T o T Tttt T TrJ oottt

7 National Staging Data 2018
8 Terminology from NCPES survey

71
123



people from groups who are less likely to be diagnosed early (Figure 3).
Seven work programmes have been identified to ensure we achieve this:
Cross-cutting programmes

1. Eliminating variation and inequalities
2. Ensuring services recover from the impact of COVID-19
3. Optimising care through innovation and improvement

Specific programmes

4. Use of novel screening approaches and reducing variation in screening
programmes

5. Working with Communities and primary care to reduce local variation in
early diagnosis

6. Diagnosing people earlier and faster and improving survival

7. Implementing evidence-based personalised care

Figure 3: Impact of improving early diagnosis by

intervention
80%
_____________________________________________________________________ 5.7%
70% 4.5%
2.2%
3.1%
o, 2.9% Research + Innovation Research + Innovation
80% 56.86% E GRAIL Other innovations
Impact=4.5%
Screening (National Targeted Lung Health Blood, I?reathe and
50% Programme) Checks other biomarkers
- Reducing screening Impact=2%
variation; using Impact=4.5%
(OIFTEAD el Novel screening approaches
- Understandi
40% " e.rs a'.q Ml - Risk stratified case finding (Liver, Lynch)
for widening access
B Impact=0.8%
to screening/
screening technology
30% (e.g FIT/HPV) NHSE funded innovations
Impact=1% Impact=0.5%
Place and Primary Care
20% - Supporting timely intervention
- Primary Care Pathways
Impact=2-4%
10% Earlier and Faster diagnosis
- RDC’s and wider pathway improvements
- Impact=2%
0%
Current Position (2018) Reducing variation in Reducing variation in other Reducing variation inrare  Implementing Emergent Future Intervention and
tumours with National common tumours tumours Early Detection Approaches Risk Stratification using
Screening Programmes - GRAIL emergent technology/

* approaches
Estimates on programme impacts by programme from NHSE calculations

72
124



Programme Ambition

Key challenges

Stakeholders

Screening:

Reduced variation
in uptake of the
National Screening
Programme (NSP)
through use of real

Cervical screening:
significant adverse
variation in  uptake
associated with high
deprivation, age under

30 and ethnicities of

NSP,
Screening
hubs (bowel

and breast)
Primary care
and North

time data to Chinese, ‘Other’ White, West London
highlight variation Pakistani and Black primary care
and actionable people. teams
insights to deliver - Bowel screening - (cervical)
targeted adverse variation - WSIC team
improvements. between the lowest and - Place based

- Roll out targeted highest deprivation rate engagement
lung health checks and screening rates. teams to
by 2027 using an - Breast screening: support
inequalities  first services still recovering understanding
approach. from COVID-19 of barriers and

- Continue to backlog. codesign
pioneer  national - Targeted lung health
and local novel checks - at risk
screening population located in
methods for at risk most deprived wards in
populations. North West London.

Place and Primary Care: - Some groups less likely to - Place

- We will improve seek help in less than 3 engagement
population months after onset of teams to support
awareness and symptoms (NCPES 2021). understanding
confidence in - Some groups less likely to of barriers and
seeking  support be referred after 2 visits to codesign of
for concerning their GP. improvements.
symptoms and will - Faecal Immunochemical - Primary care
deliver focused Test (FIT) testing currently networks  and
interventions to at 70% across North West North West
reduce variation London. London primary
around the cancer care teams to
detection rate highlight
Swithin primary variation of
care. detection rate.

- We will improve - GP practices
the standard and with lowest and
quality of referrals highest
around TWW, and detection rate to
FIT testing enhance
compliance. actionable

insights.

Faster diagnosis

Variation in  Faster'®
diagnosis standard by
Trust and Tumour group

Acute Provider
Collaborative
Pathway groups

73

125



- Increase in TWW referrals

(16% up)

Treatment variation Ensuring that access to treatment - Acute Provider
iIs local where possible and, Collaborative
where specialist, easy to access
and resilient.

Key risks and challenges

Key risks

Management and mitigation

Early diagnosis
improvements may be
impacted by delayed
presentation following
COVID19, or failure to
address variation. This
could worsen cancer
inequalities.

The delivery programmes in this strategy aim to
minimise the continuing impact of the pandemic, while
accelerating recovery. We will:
* Focus on addressing variation, and share areas
of variation with our stakeholders.
» Work closely with Trusts to monitor referrals and
capacity and support when needed.
+ Optimise pathways such as ‘straight to test’ to
ensure rapid diagnostic pathways.
+ Focus on recovery of the national screening
programmes.

Significant workforce
shortages in a range of
cancer specialist roles
(e.g nurses, oncologists,
radiologists, AHP) could
affect the capacity and
stability of some cancer
services across North and
South West London.

We will take a proactive role managing and mitigating
workforce risks, including:

* Working with Health Education England and NW
London ICS to develop an effective approach to
supporting the training and development of
specialist staff across RM Partners (Cancer
Alliance for West London).

« Understanding where role variation exists and
developing plans to enable staff to work at the
‘top of their licence’ (for example in straight to test
pathways).

« |dentify those specialities where we expect
demand to increase the most and work with our
partners to develop proactive recruitment and
retention strategies.

The impacts of rising
demand for  cancer
services, alongside
increasing urgent and
emergency care and the
wider demands of elective
recovery, could mean we

We will support our partners to manage and maximise
cancer capacity by:
* Supporting the elective programme in modelling
demand, capacity and workforce requirements
* Sharing performance data and forecasts to
enable system-wide decisions.

° The % of total new cancers treated at GP practice level via the Two week wait pathway/ all new
cancers treated at that GP practice
10 Faster Diagnosis Standard- % of urgent cancer referrals informed of whether they have cancer within

28 days
74

126



don’t have enough cancer
capacity across North
West and South West
London.

Supporting Trusts to manage capacity risks
together through mutual aid.

Plan and implement additional diagnostic
capacity.

Continued focus on optimising cancer pathways.

Changes to
commissioning and
specialist commissioning
arrangements expected
in 2023, could destabilise
specialist cancer
services. Overall system
cost pressures from 2023
could risk the adoption of
innovative  approaches
and treatments.

We will take a lead, with delegated resource to
support North West and South West London, to
understand and plan for the implications of the
devolution of specialist cancer service
commissioning, to assure service, quality and
financial resilience and performance.

We will work with London region, the Pathfinder
programme and our tertiary providers to agree
the best approach to devolution of the £168m
specialist commissioning cancer budget
(excluding drugs).

75

127




Part 4 — NW London ICS Enabling Programmes

Communications, resident involvement and community insight

Our strategy for North West London will not succeed if it is not well communicated and
shaped by the healthcare needs and insights of local people.

Insights and feedback from our residents and communities have helped us develop
our strategy. This includes our approach to working with our residents and
communities.

Over the last three years, we worked with a group of over 200 residents to co-design
a best practice approach to involving local people in our work. We have spoken with
over 300 community groups, held events in each of our eight boroughs and worked
with the voluntary sector and Healthwatch to develop a clear picture of people’s hopes
and concerns for healthcare services. We are now publishing monthly insight reports
setting out what our communities are telling us — and what we will do about it. These
insight reports will be further developed in the months ahead to ensure that they are
capturing feedback from as many sources as possible.

The views and experiences of local people will continue be a key factor in our future
decision-making and feedback from residents will be considered alongside other data,
such as healthcare outcomes and performance, in developing our plans.

This chapter sets out how we will communicate with our residents, how insights from
residents have informed our strategy to date and how we will continue to involve local
people in co-designing the health and care services of the future.

Context

The size and diverse nature of our population necessitates a multi-faceted approach
to how we work with local people. Most, if not all, of this work will need to be delivered
at borough and provider level, by a partnership of NHS and local authorities, working
with Healthwatch and grassroots organisations with good links into local communities.
We will offer a mix of meetings and events that are open to all and targeted
engagement with specific communities and groups. Outreach programmes will be
devised at borough level, taking account of population health data, JSNAs and other
insights from providers, primary care networks and local authorities. We need to
deepen our reach into communities that we have not always successfully engaged in
the past, recognising that only a minority of our residents will want to attend our
meetings.

The diversity of our population is reflected in over 200 languages spoken and a range
of specific communication needs among sections of our population, including people
with disabilities, people with learning difficulties and autism, children and young
people, travellers, and users of mental health services. We also need to recognise the
important role that family carers, parents and agencies such as schools and employers
can play in delivering and responding to healthcare messages. It is important that we
work with our partners to fully understand our populations, including meeting their
specific needs.

76
128



We recognise that only 10% of a person’s wellbeing relates to access to healthcare;
wider determinants of health include income, housing, employment, environment, and
education. The only way to address these challenges is through an ongoing
partnership between health, local government and our residents. This work is
underway through our Proactive Population Health Management and Reducing
Inequalities programme and will be developed further through co-design with residents
and populations.

While there needs to be a substantial focus on outreach and reaching more of our
communities more consistently, we also recognise the value of resident voices sitting
on workstreams and decision-making bodies. We will recruit and work with lay partners
to ensure that there is public representation on key workstreams at both North West
London and borough level.

We recognise that there are a number of residents and patients who already take an
active role in engaging with the NHS and local government. GP practices have patient
participation groups (PPGs), provider Trusts have various patient and service user
groups and, in some cases, lay partners and there are a range of condition-specific
and campaigning groups in North West London. We will work with existing groups
while seeking to broaden our reach into our populations.

The NHS can learn from others working with local communities — e.g. the voluntary
sector and local authorities — as well as from communities themselves. We must work
together: the NHS, local councils, the voluntary sector, Healthwatch, non-executive
directors and governors, local people — to co-design the future of healthcare services
in North West London. Every member of staff and everyone in North West London has
a potential role to play.

We recognise that the unique pressures created by the Covid-19pandemic have
delayed the development and implementation of our new approach to working with
people and communities, but we also recognise that public support and confidence in
our services can only be improved by working with our residents as partners.

Lastly, we need to recognise that we are not starting from scratch. While our approach
is new, the principle and requirement of working with residents is not. It is important
that we build on existing relationships that are held at borough and provider level and
that we work with primary care networks to ensure that they involve residents and
patients effectively at neighbourhood level.

Issues and challenges
f Why this is aproblem for What success would

residents/ communities/ look like for residents/
patients patients
The NHS has often The concerns of patients Ask residents more open
focused on asking the about wider healthcare questions like  ‘what
public for their views on issues are not addressed matters to you?’ Hold

specific proposals, when the debate isframed open meetings which
rather than asking open narrowly around specific anyone can attend and
guestions service change proposals where agendas are co-set

and there is Ilimited with residents. Where
77
129



Residents have
suggested that their
feedback sometimes

goes in to a ‘black hole’
and they are unclear that
iIs has been heard or
used

Public engagement
during the COVID-19
pandemic taught us that
some communities feel
alienated from the NHS
and public services in
general; there are
significant issues of
trust to address.

North West London has
one of the largest ICS
footprints in the country
with eight quite different
boroughs: maintaining
consistent and effective
communication and
consistent resident
involvement across the
sector presents a
significant challenge
Resident insights may
increasingly inform our
strategy, but it is also
important to directly
involve local people in
our programmes so that
the resident voice is
always heard.

Extensive engagement
with the public is taking
place across health and
care. We need to find a
way to bring all of the
insights together in a

78

opportunity for

unprompted feedback

There is no point in talking
to residents and
communities and
recording their views if we
are not clear about what
we will do with the
insights. Residents will not
want to give up their time if
they do not feel their
feedback has any impact.
If residents do not trust
public bodies and public
information, this is likely to

exacerbate unhealthy
behaviours and health
inequalities.

Residents should have the

same  opportunity  to
engage wherever they live
and whatever their
background. If
communication is  not
clear, consistent and
joined up across the
system, residents and
staff will not get the

information they need.
Without direct resident
involvement, the voice of
residents in developing
and co-designing
solutions may be lost.

Without a shared analysis,
the insights and feedback
we receive from the public
are unlikely to drive our
strategy or shape future

130

there are specific
proposals, work with the
public as part of a wider
ongoing dialogue.

Insights from our
communities are central to
development of ICS/ICP
strategy. They are treated
as gualitative data, in the
same way as population
health or performance
data, and used to inform
the shaping of future
strategies and services.
The ICS is in ongoing
dialogue with the
population, including an
outreach programme to
ensure that we are talking
to and hearing from all our
communities. There is a
commitment across all
ICS partners to
significantly reduce health
inequalities.

An  involvement and
communications strategy
developed and assured at
North West London level
in line with national
requirements is delivered
at place by a partnership
of the NHS and local
authority, allowing for
specific local nuance and
variation.

Residents can become
lay partners’ and are
supported to sit as
resident voices on ICS
and borough-based
programmes.

e A published
monthly report
setting out what we
are hearing from
our communities in
each borough



meaningful way so that
there is a shared
analysis of what our
communities are telling
us and how their
insights will be used.

There are substantial
health inequalities
across our
communities, and it is
important that we hear
from all our residents,
including those usually
furthest from decision-
making.

Principles

services to meet the
needs of our population.

If we do not better
understand the lives of
those residents with the
highest health and care
needs, we will be unable
to work with communities
to develop services and
plans that better address
their needs. If we do not
have trusted relationships
with all our communities,

we will not be able to
influence health
behaviours.

across health, local
government, the
voluntary  sector,
Healthwatch  and
elsewhere.

e A co-designed
system for
analysing insights
and shaping
responses at a
system level.

e All insights to be
shared with the
relevant borough or
programme and
with the integrated
care  partnership
leadership.

A joint NHS-local authority
outreach programme in
each borough, working
with the voluntary sector,
Healthwatch and our local
communities, to better
understand the lives of the
people we serve.

* Insights from our residents and populations are qualitative data: they sit
alongside population health and outcomes data in driving our strategy.

« The ICB and its constituent bodies will work in partnership with local
government to reach and gather insights from all our populations. This strategy
sets an overall framework for action, but we recognise that a hyper-local
approach is the best way to work with our residents. Detailed planning and
delivery of public engagement will take place at borough and neighbourhood

level.

« We will co-design our future strategies with people and communities.
Community engagement and co-design will happen mainly at borough and
neighbourhood level, supported by system leaders, local authorities, the
voluntary sector, borough based ICB staff, provider collaboratives and NHS

Trusts.

» Residents will have a voice in our programmes.

79

131



*  We will work closely with Healthwatch and the voluntary sector as key partners
in reaching and working with residents, so we can get a clear picture of what
our communities are saying.

* Meetings of the ICB Board will take place in public and residents are very
welcome to attend. We will consider the best ways of ensuring the resident
voice is heard in these meetings, in the context of the wider involvement
strategy and other statutory meetings, such as Trust boards, that also take
place in public.

» People should be empowered to take control of their own lives and health when
appropriate, with support from the health and care system.

*  We will meet the standards set out in the North West London Involvement
Charter, which was co-designed with residents.

+ We are committed to clear communication that meets the needs of our
residents, communities, stakeholders and staff.

* Our approach will evolve over the next three years, based on insights from our
populations and what is seen to be working.

What we will do

We want to empower local people to take control of their own health and co-design
the healthcare agenda. We will work with our populations to reduce inequalities in
outcomes, access, and quality of care, through active co-production.

Our approach has been co-designed with over 200 local residents, built on through
‘vaccine equity’ workshops with residents in 2021 and via ongoing dialogue with over
300 community groups across North West London. Some of this work is already
underway, some of it is new.

e Working in partnership across the NHS and local councils and with our
voluntary sector, community groups, resident associations, faith groups,
schools, patient groups and more to reach out into the community and hear
their views, in the first year (up until July 2023), we will work with the Proactive
Population Health Management and Reducing Inequalities programme,
Healthwatch and local people to develop clear public health related metrics
for public involvement work, including short term proxy measures (e.g. take up
of screening for diabetes or cervical cancer, impact of winter campaign on
health behaviours and subsequent system pressures) and longer term public
health targets. These targets are to be agreed separately.

e Align our community engagement to the national Core20Plus5! approach to
reducing health inequalities, agreeing parameters with our Proactive Population
Health Management and Reducing Inequalities Board.

11 The Core20Plus5 national approach to reducing health inequalities will inform our
approach. The ‘core 20’ is the most deprived 20% of the national population identified
by the Index of Multiple Deprivation. The ‘Plus’ is population groups the ICS identifies
as experiencing worse than average outcomes who are not identified in the core 20,
with a number of specific ‘inclusion groups’ named in the guidance for us to take

80

132


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019

Support development of ICS strategy and population health and care
inequalities strategy by ensuring public involvement in ICS/ICP decision-
making.

Work with and through local authorities to develop a coordinated programme of
outreach and community research in our population in each borough, using
population health and outcomes data, as well as existing grassroots community
knowledge, to target specific communities as appropriate

Hold quarterly ‘collaborative spaces’ in each borough: open community
conversations where health and care professionals come together with the
public and stakeholders to discuss healthcare issues. The agenda for these
meetings will be co-designed with residents; it is important to recognise that
issues raised unprompted by local people can provide important insights.
(These conversations may be combined with existing arrangements at borough
level where appropriate.)

Work with ICB Business Intelligence teams, who compile public and population
health data, to ensure that all insight from public engagement with residents
and all patient experience feedback is stored in our whole systems integrated
care database to inform strategy.

Publish monthly insight reports setting out what we are hearing from our
residents, pulling on insight from all partners in the ICS;

Put in place our Lay Partner programme, recruiting residents from our
communities to support NW London programmes in shaping their plans. Ensure
that residents are represented and supported to participate equally on key ICS
and borough-based workstreams so that there are always resident/patient
voices in the room. Build on the success of the Imperial lay partner programme
by sharing learning across the system?*.

A Co-Design Advisory Body will be developed from community-based
stakeholders and residents with expertise in public and community
involvement.

Establish a North West London Resident Forum, bringing together lay
partners, patient participation groups and others with an interest in North West
London-wide ‘collaborative spaces’. This group will discuss specific North West
London-wide healthcare issues. We will ensure that the group represents
different communities, age groups and characteristics.

Put in place and support specific resident reference groups where ICS/ICB
programmes require deliberative input — for example, our Post Covid Syndrome
patient group.

Work with public health directors to deliver integrated public health
campaigns on agreed topics.

account of. The 5 sets out five areas of clinical focus: maternity, severe mental iliness,
chronic respiratory disease, early cancer diagnosis and hypertension.

12 Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust has a strategic lay forum made up of lay partners, which
oversees the Trust's involvement strategy. Lay partners often support key workstreams, ensuring the
Trust’s plans and initiatives are shaped by the needs and preferences of patients and communities.

133



82

Specifically target and work with groups with specific needs, including people
with long-term conditions, BAME communities, people with disabilities,
including people with learning difficulties and autism, traveller communities,
children and young people, older people, mental health service users, LGBT
communities, family carers and others. This work will be carried out at borough
level, based on local health data and insights.

Ensure NHS service change programmes, and key ICS and borough-based
workstreams, carry out appropriate public involvement or consultation. This
work can be led at Trust, provider collaborative or ICS level as appropriate.
Work with grassroots voluntary sector organisations and residents to build
trusted relationships with our communities, tested with a ‘before’ and ‘after’
survey via our Citizens’ Panel.

Draw on local expertise in involvement and communities, setting up a dedicated
advisory group to support and develop our approach to working with people
and communities across North West London.

Ensure that our duties under equalities legislation are met and exceeded by
putting in place ICB oversight of equalities impact assessments, conducting
appropriate gap analyses of which communities and groups we talk to and
publishing an annual equalities report.

Recognise digital exclusion by ensuring a good mix of in-person and online
engagement with people and communities.

Use our 3,800-strong, demographically representative Citizens’ Panel to
deliver surveys and focus group research across the ICS and to disseminate
healthcare information.

Develop and maintain a strong focus on hearing from people who are furthest
from decision-making by working with grassroots community organisations,
charities, churches, employers, schools, patient groups, MPs and councillors,
Healthwatch and residents’ associations to maximise our reach in to local
populations.

Support and work with existing resident and patient groups, such as patient
participation groups and patient and lay groups based in provider trusts.
Meetings of the Integrated Care Board and other decision-making meetings
will take place in public and the public will have the right to ask questions at
these meetings.

Ensure clear staff communication across the ICS and ICB, so that the work
delivered at place and North West London level is well communicated,
understood and joined up.

Support and enable staff across North West London to work with residents and
communities.

Coordinate social media activity across the sector, between the different parts
of the ICS, especially on public health campaigns, service change programmes
and promoting public events and involvement opportunities. We will use a multi-
channel approach, including film and infographics, to get information across.
Continue to work proactively and reactively with the media so that we can
communicate important messages to local people and other stakeholders.

134



e Develop our single website housing ICB and ICS content, linking to all partner
organisations’ websites.

This approach will be assured and underpinned via the North West London
Involvement Charter.

Working in partnership is key to success

We know we are stronger when we work collectively together: the NHS, local
authorities, the voluntary sector, Healthwatch and local people. Our approach has
been developed on the understanding that all of these partners and individuals can
play their part in generating the communications and insights that will drive
improvements to healthcare in North West London.

Visual summary of our approach

PATIENT GBOUPS
EGPPG

BOROUGH
INSIGHT
REPORTS

" o

1\

POPULATION
ENGAGEMENT
T HEALTH BOARD

T

LONDON
BOARD (ICB)

LAY PARTHER

INVOLVEMENT \0

NW LONDON
PROGRAMME
TEAMS

Summary of routes to resident involvement

Involvement methods and routes Explanation

Involvement Charter The co-designed Involvement Charter
underpins the ICS’s new engagement
framework.

Community outreach Targeted involvement of groups we have

not successfully involved in the past,
based on health and insight data and
usually planned at borough level.

83
135



Collaborative spaces (quarterly in
each borough)

Borough-based stakeholder and

residents’ meetings

Resident voices and lay partners

Citizens Panel (CP)

The Patient Participation Groups’
Forum (PPGs)

NHS North West London Residents’
Forum

North  West London
advisory body (DAB)

Co-design

84

Open community conversations where
health and care professionals meet with
the public and stakeholders to discuss
healthcare issues. These work differently
in different areas (e.g. Harrow has a
Citizens Forum) but the key principle is
that they are open to all and the agenda
is co-designed with attendees.

Each borough-based partnership is
responsible for organising its own
resident, public and stakeholder
involvement forums, in partnership with
local councils, NHS provider trusts,
Healthwatch and the voluntary sector as
appropriate.

Resident voices and lay partners are
invited to participate in our health and
social care programmes and projects
that require the lay/patient perspective.
We will work with others to offer training
to lay partners, who can then act as
resident voices on programmes and
workstreams.

The CP is a demographically
representative group of 3,800 residents.
It provides NHS information, supports
surveys and focus group research
across the ICS, to a membership of
nearly 4,000 local residents.

All North West London PPGs are invited
to attend this forum to share intelligence,
challenge and develop consistency. The
intention is that this will be a self-
organised, user-led forum.

The North West London Residents’
Forum is open to the public to attend and
will discuss specific North West London
wide issues. This forum does not have
any set dates, but organised when
required.

This body consists of a diverse range of
stakeholders and lay partners. The aim
of DAB wil be to assess the
effectiveness of the North West London
Involvement strategy and the
Involvement charter against our practical
engagement and involvement plans
present and future.

136



Data and digital

North West London’s successful track record of implementing technology includes the
development of a leading population health database (Whole Systems Integrated
Care); and the largest personal health record in the country, with more than 400,000
patient accounts (the North West London Care Information Exchange).

Continuing to invest in and improve our data and digital capabilities will give us the
best chance of meeting our four strategic objectives. For example:

e We can use digital tools to identify those residents most at risk of coming to us
later with advanced disease and direct early interventions to them. WSIC can
support this but needs ongoing investment to keep it up to date.

e We can improve our residents’ experience of care by offering patients digital
and virtual options to access care and support, where appropriate, and by
sharing data between healthcare professionals and teams to reduce the need
for patients to repeat their information at each appointment.

e We can enhance quality of care by:

(@]

o

Delivering swifter access to specialist opinion through schemes like
digital advice and guidance, using tools such as clinical decision support
to enhance the quality and speed of clinical decision-making and
reducing the scope for error, by giving professionals access to shared
digital care records.

We can better manage our capacity byUsing digital tools that help to
predict demand, support planning and add flexibility to the system, to
deliver a more responsive service. Some services struggle to meet
demand, while others are underutilised; the pattern of demand is
dynamic, changing from week to week, day to day and hour by hour —
better digital tools can track and help us to respond to this.

Rapidly evaluating which services are delivering benefits to which
residents — so professionals can direct people to the services that best
meet their needs

e We can support our staff to deliver the best, by:

©)

Improving our digital infrastructure. We need to keep investing in
computers and networks, and improving our back-office processes, to
help our teams to deliver care as efficiently and effectively as possible.
Continuing to protect data, prioritising security, and confidentiality.
Deploying tools that reduce error, such as artificial intelligence on
radiology scans, and support clinicians to make decisions.

e We can implement innovative technology proven elsewhere and test new ideas
across North West London, by:

o

85

Continuing to invest in innovation activity.

137



o Opening data at scale via a world-leading Secure Data Environment for
Research and Innovation.

Programmes already underway will address many of these needs — the single Cerner
system in Acute, the clinical systems in other care settings, the London Care Record,
the Care Information Exchange, Whole Systems Integrated Care. We need to finish
deploying them and transform our services and processes to exploit their potential.

ICS priorities data and digital
Stakeholder feedback identified high priority digital and data objectives:

Support operational management with innovative tools to track activity and
capacity, enabling providers to understand patient demand, plan and track
improvements.

Data_consistency and analytics support for integrated care and population
health management: a single source of truth (WSIC); and Business Intelligence
resources to turn data into intelligence.

Enhanced support for multi-disciplinary teams working across integrated care
pathways: sharing information about patients/service users between care
settings.

Patient empowerment and communication: make information about health and
care accessible to citizens in a consistent way, while addressing the issue of
digital exclusion.

Shared Electronic Patient Records (EPRSs): complete the migration from paper
records to digital and improve the flow of information to support integrated care
pathways.

Infrastructure resilience and standardisation: staff need access to high quality
hardware and systems that are well designed, regularly refreshed, and work
reliably in any location.

Workforce programme

86

Our ambitions for our workforce is that North West London is a great place to
work for all of our staff, in particular for our local population and communities,
and we will transform and enable our workforce to meet future needs. This is
separated into two strategic programmes which align to local, regional and
national requirements:

Under ‘Great Places to Work’ we aim to be an exemplar partnership:

for quality health and wellbeing support reaching all staff,

developing organisational cultures that foster physical and psychological
safety, and

ensuring our organisations reflects and champions the diversity of our
workforce.

Under ‘Transform for the Future’, we will:
conduct strategic workforce planning, informed by modelling and forecasting,

138



e deliver initiatives to grow the current workforce base and ensure the capability
of the registered and non-registered workforce is maximised

e create a culture of collaboration with social care and primary care for multi-
disciplinary initiatives where appropriate.

We will adopt an integrated approach across our NHS Trusts, primary care, social care
and voluntary sector organisations, working closely with finance and performance
teams to ensure workforce plans are realistic, triangulated, and aligned to our digital
and estates strategy. We will work with primary care and social care to develop the
infrastructure that wraps around to staff.

To meet growing demand for services, we will adopt a collaborative approach to
working with all health and care partners. This will enable us to think and act differently,
creating a joint workforce strategy that achieves local ambitions.

Context

Our ICS is made up of 4 Acute Provider Trusts, 2 Mental Health and Community
Trusts, 1 Community Trust, 347 primary care practices, and over 1000 care providers.
Within each type of organisation, we have different types of roles, providing different
types of services to our population, with different baseline of data available. The below
describes the context for each part of our sector, with our Provider Trusts clustered
together as the North West London Provider Trusts.

The North West London Provider Trust workforce shows an ageing workforce (with
30.8% aged over 50), a diverse workforce (with 55.2% Black, Asian and minority ethnic
staff), and a predominately female workforce (with women making up 73.5%). We
have an increasing trend in our rolling 12-month sickness rate, currently 4.9%, and in
our voluntary turnover rate, currently at 14.6%.

Across the North West London Provider Trusts, there are currently more than 52,000
whole time equivalent staff (WTE) in post with the following composition:

87
139



= Admin & Clerical (bands 2/3/4/5/6)

= Allied Health Professional
(Qualified bands 5+)

= Allied Health Professional
(Unqualified bands 2/3/4)
Ancillary

= Doctor (Career Grade)
= Doctor (Consultant)
= Doctor (Training & Trust Grade)

= Nursing & Midwifery (Qualified
bands 5+)

= Nursing & Midwifery (Unqualified
bands 2/3/4)

= Phamacist

= Physician Associate

= Scientific & Technical (Qualified
bands 5+)

= Scientific & Technical (Unqualified
bands 2/3/4)

= Senior Manaqger (non-clinical bands
7/8/9/VSM)
Ambulance paramedics

Ambulance technicians

= Other registered ambulance staff

We therefore have a 11.7% vacancy rate and our strategic ambitions and plan will
need to address this challenge. The highest vacancy levels (above 10%) are in the
following roles:

20.00%
18.00%
16.00%

14.00%
12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%
2.00%
0.00%

Admin & Allied HealthAllied Health  Ancillary Doctor Nursing & Scientific & Senior

Clerical  Professional Professional (career Midwifery  Technical ~ Manager
(bands (qualified (unqualified grade) (qualified  (qualified (non-clinical
2/3/4/5/6) bands 5+) bands bands 5+) bands 5+) bands
2/3/4) 7/8/9/VSM)

B Vacancy levels

There are also significant challenges with an ageing workforce in primary care, , with
30.6% of GPs and 39.1% of GP nurses aged over 55. North West London also has on
average 44 GP WTE per 100,000 patients, the lowest proportion across London.
We’re seeing an increasing trend of fewer GPs becoming salaried or partners. There
is an ongoing decline in the numbers of our nursing workforce, currently at 380 WTE.

88
140



u GP

Nurse

Direct Patient Care 2315

Admin/Non-Clinical

380

460

The social care workforce in North West London records an increasing turnover rate,
currenbtly at 30.5%, resulting in a greater number of vacancies. Again there is an
ageing workforce as 30% of the social care workforce profile are aged over 55.

The inconsistencies and inequalities of pay, terms, and conditions across health and
care organisations is impacting the organisations and sectors people choose to work
in. This is leading to greater competition with private non-health organisations for our
staff, particularly at entry-level.

Given the expected growth in the overall population, and specifically in the number of
people aged 65 and over, our workforce will need to grow to meet demand. It will also
need to transform delivering new skill mixes, new roles, greater mobility of workforce,
multi-disciplinary working models and portfolio careers to address the pending
challenges.

Challenges

Our workforce have gone through, and continue to go through, one of the most
extraordinary times in their career and are facing considerable and increasing
demands. The culture of working in health and care is being negatively impacted as
people are overstretched and exhausted at work, while managing their own personal
responses to COVID-19 and the cost of living crisis. Staff in critical professions have
been taking industrial action. This has resulted in decreased staff engagement, higher
attrition, and higher sickness rates.

Our strategy will address the greatest challenges, which include:

e The health and wellbeing of our workforce, particularly during a cost of living crisis.
We will focus on dealing with high sickness rates and burnout amongst our staff,
as well as issues around financial wellbeing.

e The culture and environment within our ICS. Our staff need good and consistent
approaches to leadership, high quality lifelong learning opportunities and an
employer able to meet the differing wants and expectations of a multi-generational
workforce.

89
141



e Diversity of staff at all grades. We need to tackle the discrimination staff continue
to face from patients and colleagues and ensure diversity at all staff groups,
particularly at senior level, strengthens decision-making.

e Workforce shortages, particularly in critical and hard to recruit roles, that create a
deficit of experiences staff and clinical leadership. We need to tackle a range of
issues here given expected rises in demand including:

e Voluntary turnover

e Hotspots in hard to recruit roles

Fewer people opting to complete health and care qulifications
Oganisations increasingly recruiting from the same pool of staff
No clear talent management and succession planning
Challenges in GP and GP Nurse (GPN) recruitment

e A dependency on agency to fill our gaps.

e Workforce productivity and transformation. Data indicates that we employ more
staff than ever, but we are delivering less activity. Some services are overwhelmed
by demand and others are underutilised. We will need to transform our workforce
to deliver care for residents while achieving an acceptable workload, utilising
approaches such as safe staffing/caseload levels.

e Staff numbers falling and vacancies rising in social care. We will need to tackle
wage constraints linked to social care funding, unclear career paths and
competiton from private sector employers.

Our solutions

Aspiration 1: A great place to work

Our aim is to improve retention rates, focusing on the key issues leading to high
turnover and vacancy rates, and to address recruitment challenges. To achieve this,
we will:

90

Develop the employer value proposition in organisations across North West
London. This includes a focus on staff health and wellbeing, development
opportunities for staff, and creating new ways of working and service delivery,
enabled by digital technologies and improved working conditions.

We will look at pay, terms and conditions in a broader sense across health and
social care, ensuring this is equitable where possible as part of workforce
planning and transformation, influencing discussions at a national level. We will
ensure we pay the London Living Wage, reviewing contracts at renewal points
to ensure we influence this in contracted organisations, and influencing private
providers of health and social care services, developing our role as an anchor
institution.

Create flexible and fluid career pathways across North West London ICS
organisations, building development opportunities up, down and across all
organisations within our system to ensure our staff are deployed against our
most critical priorities and we provide growth opportunities.

Create a strong culture, reflective of the differing wants of the different
generations within our organisations. We will embed our ICS values and

142



behaviours as an employer and a partnership, building strong, inclusive and
collective leadership, committed to purpose and high-quality performance.

e Address racism and inclusive practice and by promoting diversity across the
organisations, especially ethnic diversity at senior and Board level which data
IS suggesting is a big issue, bring greater diversity of thought and decision-
making. We will meet the Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) Model
Employer Goals by 2025 and North West London ICS will be in the upper
guartile of WRES results in London. This ensures employees from Black, Asian
and minority ethnic backgrounds have equal access to career opportunities and
receive fair treatment whilst in the workplace.

e Develop the wellbeing of our staff, providing world-class health and wellbeing
offers through the continued development of the North West London Keeping
Well Service. Given the influence physical and digital environments have on
our staff's health and wellbeing, we will ensure health and wellbeing is
embedded into our estates, digital and I&T strategies.

e Develop and support system organisational development, working in
partnership across health and care organisations. We will support our
organisations and system to align its strategy and enhance our people’s ability
to achieve our shared goals.

Aspiration 2: Transform our workforce to meet future needs

Workforce transformation is critical to deliver the North West London strategy and to
respond to changing service models. The increasing demand for, and on, health and
care services, combined with increasing financial constraints, means the effectiveness
of the existing workforce needs to be maximised and we need to utilise new ways of
working, including the development of new roles, and developing our people in new
skills.

Our vision is drive and enable workforce transformation and redesign, based on
integrated workforce planning and development to meet health and care system needs
of our service users and population now and in future. To achieve this, we will:

e Ensure the workforce agenda is embedded within all service redesign and
transformation, including the upskilling, training and development of the
workforce designated to support the programmes of work

e Conduct transformative workforce redesign planning at North West London
level to support new models of care and to fill hard to recruit roles.

e Develop a workforce planning function with a shared dataset across North West
London, which will provide the evidence base for directing investment into
transformation activity. We will also conduct a review of staff redeployment
across North West London.

e Work with primary care and social care to assist in developing integrated
workforce plans at ICP level, developing this across health and social care will
deliver new ways of working, meeting our population’s health and wellbeing
needs and wrap care and support around the person. This will support the
development of joint roles.

91
143



Ensure effective education and training programmes for our existing and future
workforce are in place to deliver future models of care, new roles, and new
apprenticeships through a North West London health and care skills academy.
We will affiliate with local educational institutions to build apprenticeship
programmes to increase the participation of young people from diverse
backgrounds in health and care careers. This will support our local population
into good work, specifically for our under-represented communities.

Develop our role as anchor institutions, working with our local populations and
communities to develop innovative routes into employment, such as earn and
learn models and collaborative recruitment, and offer opportunities for good
work. We will develop alternative employment models to better support people
to work for our organisations, bring in new and different talent, and reaching out
to non-traditional and under-represented groups which will support and address
health inequalities. This includes strengthening our partnerships across the
ICS, including the voluntary sector and Local Authorities, to develop pathways
for volunteering into employment and supporting our SEND populations.
Strengthen our practice development infrastructure to ensure our workforce
are supported to thrive at every level of practice and at every stage of their
careers.

Build a robust recruitment pipeline, working with Health Education England
(HEE), training and education partners, and our local population, including
effective and equitable utilisation of the education and training tariff to support
placement growth.

Better enable the portability and mobility of our staff across organisations to
support development of our staff and meet service and population needs.

Our success:
We will develop clear and realistic targets that enable us to measure what matters to
deliver our ambitions. We will know we are succeeding as we will see:

92

Improved staff retention rates

A healthier pipeline of local people coming into health and care roles with clear
career pathways available to them

Improved supply and quality of pre-qualifying student placements

Greater numbers of apprentices

Lower nurse, GP, AHP and other vacancies

Reduced sickness rates

Effective e-rostering systems supporting staffing and mobility

Improved CQC ‘Well Led’ ratings across our system

Increased diversity of staff with protected characteristics, particularly ethnic
diversity at senior level

Positive NHS Staff Survey feedback with more staff recommending North West
London is a place to work

Improved support to our North West London Boards to enable informed
decisions across and on behalf of the NW London system using consistent data
and reporting across our system

144



NW London ICS Workforce in practice — case studies:

North West London Health and Care Skills Academy: 14 employers
across NW London and 6 training and education providers are engaged
to support our local population into training, education, and employment
opportunities. There is a particular focus on supporting under-
represented Londoners into employment and apprenticeships across
our health and care organisations.

Since launching in Q4 of 2021/22 and by Q3 of 2022/23, 1,968 people from
NW London have participated in training and education, and 1433 have
entered employment, apprenticeships, or paid work placements with our NHS
employers. The Academy has expanded to also support our population now
into employment with NW London care organisations.

New models of recruitment: Trialling different models of recruitment across
our sector

* Mass recruitment day across our NHS organisations to recruit Health
Care Support Workers

* North West London Health and Care Career Festivals

+  Working with the West London Alliance and job brokerages to mass
recruit our local population into roles to support the vaccination
programme. Subsequently, we have retained 35% of the vaccination
workforce into other roles across our health and care organisations

» Supporting our refugee communities into employment

North West London Health and Care Career Festival: Events have been
run across NW London so that our local population can find out more about a
career in health and social care. Our most recent careers festival took place in
January 2023 and attendees had an opportunity to meet and speak with a
variety of different training and education partners, NHS organisations and
social care organisations.

The event gave an opportunity to show the different ways to start a career,
from volunteering, to starting an apprenticeship, to completing further studies
and completing on the job training. There were a number of speakers taking
about their own experiences, how they started their careers and what is
involved in their day-to-day jobs.

Estates

NW London is the largest of the London ICBs and has over 800 pieces of estate
(including but not limited to over 300 GP practices across 45 Primary Care Networks,
and over 500 pharmacy or optometrist practices), includes four acute hospital trusts

93
145



across at least twelve sites (with an additional four trusts outside of NW London who
own estates in NW London boroughs).

NW London ICS contributes to 20% of London’s GLA projected growth, particularly
across Brent and Ealing which together account for 70% of that growth (HUDU 2023).

In addition to this, our transformational estates ambition is further complicated by the
fact that leases and buildings are often (co)owned and managed by a mix of service
providers including NHS Property Services and CHP/LIFTCo, have a range of in-flight
leases (including long-term Private Finance Initiatives (PFIs)), and fall under multiple
and often complex landlord/tenant structures.

Further to this, the ICB have identified a number of legacy issues requiring urgent
address under the NW London ICB Estates programme, including:

e A history of multiple disjointed local organisation-focused strategies, in the absence
of an overarching ICB strategy, which do not collectively address the changing
needs of our ICS (i.e. vast projected population growth, new service requirements
and rapidly increasing patient list sizes).

e Poor quality estate which has been badly maintained and no longer fit-for-purpose.

e Significant void and avoidable overpayment by the ICB for its estates, especially
on facilities management and for sessional and unused bookable space.

e Incorrectly sized facilities and service delivery from the wrong locations, and

e No overarching plan on how ‘core’, ‘flex’ and ‘tail’ estate will be strategically
managed long-term across the NW London ICS.

To address the above issues, the new Estates strategy and programme will

encompass a variety of projects and ongoing initiatives, such as:

¢ ‘Right Size Right Price’ (RSRP): this approach will assess all space across NW
London estates and encourage boroughs to work together to utilise space more
collaboratively. Leases will be practically and proactively reviewed, helping to
inform decision-making and business case proposals, whilst highlighting
circumstances where it may be more appropriate to surrender leases or close
single GP practices in favour of introducing more transformational solutions (e.g.
multi-service Primary Care ‘hubs’) to meet demand and better serve communities.

e Proactive management of void, sessional and unused bookable space: A
joined up void, sessional and unused bookable space management programme
will be progressed in collaboration with other NHS property companies and other
key stakeholders. This will inform a range of related projects designed to mitigate
unnecessary costs to the ICB, reduce and release vacant space, offer efficiencies
that can be reinvested back into more viable estate initiatives, and ensure a more
appropriate deployment of services to meet patient needs. Whilst the programme
will not directly address the number of LIFT building leases coming to an end over
the next 10 years, it will consider this and apply a holistic approach during planning
and business case approval processes.

e NW London ‘Big Ticket’ projects (e.g. NW London HQ Estate, Alexandra Avenue,
Heart of Hounslow, Parkview, St Charles Hospital, St Mary’s and South
Westminster Centre): These schemes offer significant space e.g. from void and
unused bookable space, provide opportunities for urban expansion, and offer
potential financial savings that can be reinvested across estates and the NHS. This

94
146



includes supporting National Programmes (e.g. the introduction of Community
Diagnostic Centre (CDC) suites across Ealing and Brent boroughs).

Digitisation of records: the programme will support Technology teams with
ongoing digitisation of documentation and records to free up additional space
across NW London ICS estate which can be re-allocated to in-demand services
and other clinical activity.

Business-as-usual (BAU) Schemes: the ICB has already identified a minimum
of 40 BAU schemes in need of address (including small general refurbishments,
ongoing maintenance, mergers and the introduction of additional services at sites).
The programme will implement a system for governance and resource allocation
to prioritise, oversee and support local BAU schemes across the ICS. This ensures
estates remain compliant and fit-for-purpose, improves alignment with
technological and digital offerings and estates principles, and allows services to
continue supporting their respective populations.

In addition, the NW London ICB Estates Programme will:

exercise a rolling review dedicated to ensuring building improvement

explore opportunities to downsize our estate in light of an anticipated increase in
GPs moving into retirement

proactively engage with planning committees for large development schemes
aimed at addressing population growth (e.g. the Oak and Park Royal Development
Corporation (OPDC) which is expected to create approximately 12,500 new homes
across three NW London boroughs by 2040) to explore opportunities for new health
and social care, such as new health centres.

lead on business transformation and the introduction of ‘smarter estates’ ways of
working principles

continue to support the Government’s ‘One Public Estate’ programme to ensure
opportunities for joint working and shared use of land or property is maximised with
other public sector and local authority bodies to boost economic growth, unlock
regeneration, release surplus, under-used land for development, reduce running
costs, and create more integrated, transformative services for our communities.
This includes exploring opportunities for releasing brownfield estate back to local
authorities to support housing needs, or exploit this for NHS staff housing

support NHS property companies with their commitments to providing affordable
housing for key workers, including ensuring these are wider considerations are
factored into business case proposals and improving occupancy levels where
opportunities arise

assess possibilities where it would be cost-effective and appropriate to purchase
and take over ownership of managing sites as part of ‘hand back’ schemes, and
work collaboratively with other NHS bodies (such as LEDU and HUDU) and Local
Authority planning departments from the earliest stages of planning to exploit
opportunities for securing joint funding and shared services.

Whilst the reprovision of the acute hospital sites - four of London’s acute hospital sites
are part of the national New Hospital's Programme — Hillingdon Hospital, St Mary’s
Hospital near Paddington, and both Charing Cross Hospital and the Hammersmith
Hospital in Hammersmith & Fulham is being carried forward by the acute hospitals
rather than by the ICB Estates Programme, we will work closely with DHSC and NHSE
throughout planning and delivery phases to exploit opportunities to modernise and

147



transform estates, improve space utilisation and support ongoing service provision for
these sites.

We remain fully aligned with our Local Authority partners in their ambition to deliver
exemplary social care across our eight boroughs. Where possible, we will ensure close
integration between local authority provided care and spaces, and those services
provided. We anticipate increased development of partnership working in strategically
placed community hubs.

Issues and challenges

The Estates team have identified several legacy issues and challenges requiring
urgent attention under this programme including:

e A history of organisation-focused estates strategies: the absence of an
overarching, NW London ICS-wide strategy in favour of multiple local borough or
organisation-led strategies has meant borough activity is often disjointed and
misaligned. Opportunities for joint ventures (e.g. under One Public Estate), new
buildings or the establishment of integrated community ‘hubs’ have sometimes
been overlooked or underutilised. This means additional work, investment,
resource and time has been required to revisit these schemes in search for more
sustainable opportunities against tighter deadlines and budgets. This has further
meant that the pace of transformation has fallen out of sync with population growth.

e Poor quality estate is badly maintained or no longer fit-for-purpose: this is
typical across Primary Care estate, which is often delivered from non-compliant
and ageing converted residences or poorly maintained purpose built premises.
Estates have not been appropriately invested in due to their long-term need nor
has there been any real prioritised investment or project roadmap that has been
strategically aligned to lease statuses, building condition, fitness-for-purpose, and
compliance with internal and external requirements.

e Overpayment by the ICB for its estates: there are significant amounts of
underutilised or inappropriately used space that is not service-driven across NW
London boroughs and trusts, which the ICB continues to fund. Incurred costs could
be mitigated or covered by other funding sources, allowing for ICB investment into
other interventions across the ICS in order to meet strategic ambitions and service
provision requirements.

e Wrongly sized facilities in the wrong locations: there are multiple ICS estates
with inadequate facilities for their respective list sizes with space that are not
sustainable or compliant with NHS-built requirements. There is also over-provision
of space for some services and estates which are fully occupied by with the wrong
service offerings.

Legacy of organisation-focused estates strategies:

Following the introduction of the NW London ICS, there has not yet been a
comprehensive, mutually-agreed, overarching strategy for addressing and
modernising long-term estate needs across the eight boroughs and its Trusts. NW
London has historically had a number of separate borough, Trust, CCG and Local
Authority strategies, resulting in opportunities for multi-function estate or innovative
schemes being overlooked or inefficiently used (e.g. Willesden Centre for Health &
Care, see below.). Furthermore, these strategies have not always been aligned with

96
148



other organisational roadmaps and ambitions, such as Technology, Digital and
Sustainability.

The ICB Estates Team will work collaboratively with boroughs and Trust to develop
and roll out a well-informed, collectively agreed strategy that will underpin this
programme of work, to ensure that services are delivered effectively and consistently
across the ICS and in line with the national steer.

Wrong size facilities in the wrong locations

The ICB Estates Programme will ensure that estates are service-led and designed to
support the current and existing health and social needs of patients, as well as the
addressing environment considerations and projections in population growth,
inequalities and deprivation.

This has not always been the case across NW London. At Willesden Centre for Health
and Care, an ongoing scheme of work is now coming to a close which introduces a
CLCH ward, a dental provision and a new Community Diagnostic Centre (CDC) to fill
void space. However, the premise initially failed as a Primary Care Hub due to poor
public transport accessibility and infrastructure and limited car parking facilities. Whilst
there is no void space and no financial burden for the ICB, at Parkview in White City,
there remains a significant proportion of underused sessional space which could be
better utilised by relevant services.

There are additional scenarios where NW London estate requires expansion in order
to meet demand. At St Mary’s Hospital, additional capacity is required to make space
on site for a single site neurosurgical service co-located with the major trauma centre,
and across Primary Care, GPs are frequently faced with scenarios where increasing
patient lists are outgrowing the size for which the practice was built. Willesden Green
Surgery based in Cricklewood is a long-standing family run practice catering for a fast
increasing patient list of over 9000 patients, many of which are from a large deprived
refugee community who require Arabic translation and live in the vicinity of the next
door mosque. The surgery is well past its critical capacity, operating out of just three
clinical rooms, and having exhausted the use of all available space, including
corridors. Weekend clinics have had to be set up and cuts in other available services
have had to occur to accommodate demand. The surgery’s only non-clinical space is
a 2/3m kitchen, which serves as their admin team room, practice manager room, staff
room and meeting room. The practice’s list size continues to grow by 200 patients per
month and is further exacerbated by the fact they are located in the Cricklewood
regeneration area with 2000 new homes due to be built within half a mile of the
practice. Primary care services in the Cricklewood area continue to struggle, especially
since the walk-in centre 200m away was shut down in 2020 and the next closest
practice received an ‘inadequate’ CQC rating. Closure of this practice without a viable
solution or failure to act would unfairly impact not only the displaced patients but any
neighbouring Primary Care practices that do not have the capacity, experience or
facilities to support patients’ needs.

Going forward, it is essential that estates decisions are prioritised accordingly from the
centre with consideration to the above factors. The ‘RSRP’ approach will proactively
assess all space across estates and encourage boroughs and practices to work

97
149



together to utilise space more collectively and creatively. Leases will be reviewed more
proactively and practically, helping to inform decision-making and business case
proposals. Improved facilities management (including maintenance and service
charges) will further inform decision-making around estates, especially as these tend
to be notoriously high in NHS Property Services (NHS PS) premises.

ICB projects will ensure that estates are utilised more effectively to agreed standards
including improved clinical utilisation rates (of up to 85% or over), extended operating
hours and weekend hours, increased virtual consultations, reductions in unused void
and bookable space, prioritisation of clinical rooms for face-to-face appointments,
active management of flexible sessional space, and reconfiguration of non-clinical
space where most urgent needs are to create clinical capacity (e.g. reduction in
records stored on-site, ensuring appropriate relocation for non-clinical activity).

Poor quality estate

NW London estate varies considerably in terms of condition. Following recent surveys,
44% of estate was rated either Category C (‘operational but requires major repair or
replacement in the short-medium term’) or Category D (‘inoperable or displays a
serious risk of major failure or breakdown’). Across Primary Care alone, only 34% of
estate is highlighted as being ‘core’ (‘will remain in operation delivering primary care
services for at least 10 years’).

Primary care estate in particular consists of either poorly maintained purpose-built
premises or converted residential houses. Often, refurbishment costs far outweigh any
potential return on investment and would not be fit for modern health and social care
needs. Furthermore, investment in existing estate without a holistic view of the bigger
picture could hinder future plans to exploit opportunities to deliver primary care and
other services at scale or under more community-friendly models. It is more beneficial
for all parties to explore joint solution opportunities with neighbouring practices or
opportunities to develop community Primary Care Hubs which offer improved
integration of spaces (e.g. single reception, single back-office spaces, engagement
with local providers) and with multiple services to a greater population of patients. This
includes demonstrating effective use in the new facility (e.g. virtual consultations, non-
clinical/back office functions).

The programme will consider where we have fabric or structural building risks (e.g. the
current issues being seen with hospitals which historically were built using reinforced
autoclaved aerated concrete (RAAC)) and seek opportunities across our overall estate
that enable tactical solutions to reduce system risk and cost.

The programme will also address significant challenges around capacity and
managing timely delivery of effective medical services (including mental health and
community-based services). These challenges have historically been exacerbated by
poor quality building fabric and ageing building systems (e.g. out of service building
plant, systems, telephony and technology).

98
150



Sustainability

The Estates programme will work with key stakeholders to create and embed
sustainable models of care that reduce health inequalities, ensuring that operations
and estates are as efficient, sustainable and resilient as they can be.

Projects and initiatives will commit as far as possible to reducing carbon and peak
energy demand by investing in energy efficient and low carbon solutions to support
the NHS’ net zero carbon responsibilities, and that all practice have green travel
plans/initiatives. This includes ensuring alignment with the wider ICS Green Plan and
introducing opportunities for operating more sustainably. This includes:

e reviewing the way buildings are assessed

e ensuring procurement requirements include provisions that suppliers use
sustainable materials from sustainable sources, helping to avoid repeated
investment later down the line (e.g. RAAC)

e running schemes that utilise local employment or offer apprenticeships

e introducing green travel options, including bike rakes at sites and building or
maintaining premises which are easily accessible and close to public transport links

e introducing EV charging points or other sustainable measures and renewable
technologies to support other NHS initiatives (such as fleet electrification), and

e considering clinical commissioning intentions and service delivery changes to
create more sustainable solutions (e.g. the reduction in face to outpatients to
reduce the clinical space required, reduce carbon emissions and business travel
via virtual means and via community-based diagnostics).

The programme will ensure provisions are in place around ‘green lease’ agreements
and provide guidance to the ICS community (including landlords and tenants) around
the operation and implementation of energy efficient technologies and retrofits, as part
of the lease management framework piece.

The ICB Estates Programme Team will work with partners to continue exploring
opportunities for available funding sources available to the ICS and its stakeholders to
support our commitment to becoming net zero carbon and cover the costs of
renewable technologies and becoming energy efficiency, including UK government
grants (e.g. the Boiler Upgrade Scheme), The Mayor of London’s Energy Efficiency
Fund, and Community Solar Accelerator grants.

Actions we will be taking

Next steps for the NW London ICB Estates Programme include:

¢ Implementing the ICS wide Estates Strategy for NW London to underpin and inform
decision-making around and utilisation of estates, helping to reduce (and
eventually avoid) doubling up of or lack of service provision.

e Conducting a thorough assessment of our estate in line with ‘core, flex and tail
prioritisation guidance, lease management reviews and the ‘RSRP’ approach. This
will highlight opportunities to release ageing estates and surplus land, move to
multi-service ‘hub’ or community-based models (as part of the Out of Hospital
strategy), and either break, renegotiate or surrender leases which are no longer
cost-effective or appropriate to the ICS’ ambitions.

99
151



e Working in tandem with other programmes, boroughs, internal/external
stakeholders and ICBs to develop and agree a programme of relevant projects
designed to future-proof service provisions and improve long-term fitness-for-
purpose of our estates.

e Ensuring estate decisions are informed by proven initiatives and the overarching
direction of travel, e.g. Mental Health services continuing to move under the
Community model and appropriately repurposing any mental health estate that is
no longer required.

e Proactively build an ICS-wide picture of void, sessional and unused bookable
space management in collaboration with NHS property service companies. This
will underpin programme activity and identify where efficiencies can be made by
the ICB, whilst mitigating vacant space and ensuring the more appropriate
deployment of services.

e Continuing to support the broader NHS initiatives including the rebuild/refurbish
and operational delivery of the four hospitals being introduced under the New
Hospitals Programme and as part of the Community Diagnostic Centre (CDC) roll-
out programme.

e Continuing regular engagement with local authorities and national partners to
maximise mutual opportunities to improve our services to our populations.

Research and Innovation

North West London is in a highly enviable position of being home to internationally
renowned health services and academic institutions, and it is the home of many small,
medium, and large innovators in life sciences and data science. This gives us an
incredibly strong platform to use the public sector investment in research and
innovation (for example through the NIHR) to make a visible and meaningful impact in
addressing the health needs of our local population. It also gives us a prized location
from which to connect with academia and the life sciences industry so that both sectors
make a stronger contribution to improve the NHS.

In this chapter we look at the issues and opportunities in NW London, and explore how
research and innovation support is a necessary condition for our ICS to deliver our
objectives; we unpack what we mean by the terms research and innovation, and
describe some of the barriers to action we face and the changes we are making to
address them; and we look at specific examples of existing innovation and show how

100
152



they can add up to a coherent and deliberate portfolio of projects which will help us
address one of a small number of major missions for health improvement.

Our definition of Research and Innovation

Across the ICS we have different concepts that apply to research and innovation. For
some people the terms infer only early-stage science or clinical trials, for others it is a
much broader set of activities that flows through to adoption and spread and the
processes of continual improvement. This is reinforced by institutional and funding
separations that create a false dichotomy: universities and NIHR-infrastructure focus
on research; operational people do not. To recast some of these concepts we have
set out a simple illustration to define the range of activities and actors. The world is not
as neat as our diagrams, but we find the model in Figure 1 useful to delineate roles
across the domains of ‘invention’, ‘innovation & implementation science’, and
‘improvement’. This reflects the different organisations and skills involved in different
stages, the autonomy of the stakeholders, and the relatively discrete funding of
different activity types.

We think about ‘Innovation’ as the application of an idea, technology, or object that is
new to accepted standards of care and has the potential to offer substantial positive
impact on health-related outcomes. These often disrupt current service delivery
models. Central to successful innovation is that these ideas and technologies be
useful, useable, and used and that they must enable changes to practice in ways that
can be adopted, adapted, and scaled. Likewise, innovation requires disruption to be
proactively managed by creating the conditions for use, both enabling the new model
and challenging the status quo. To those ends, our ways of working must catalyse
access to new innovations, creating disruption by inculcating a sense of new
possibilities, and stabilizing the transition by providing practical transformation
support.

Figure 1 — Our conceptual model of the ecosystem in which innovation happens

2
o8
w
g E [} Enabling
olT & o conditions
e o . Early research ;:t:i”d SEETI to maximise
D o SEE fmprove absorptive
25 capacity,
E no: g ‘\ capability,
[T opportunity,
o - £ . motivation
[E=] Invention Improvement
@
— | e presive
ol &
ol & Ensuring that desired
5 o2 Speed route to license Speed route to use Speed route to scale activities are resourced is
= vital; but - as the recent
ol E :
£ o MHRA, Royal Colleges NHS England, Colleges, NICE, ICSs NHS England & CQC & ICSs King's Fund Review for the
olwm — Fuller Stocktake has shown —
o % G pet puppla Ny are Core contracts and performance levers financial incentives alone are
T o and fame not sufficient and can be
g £ Guidance and tools: national support Instruction and intervention create perverse incentives.
programmes (GIRFT/Model hospital | IST) EEEEEEETEEEETE—
o A key policy challenge is to
o| 2 Biomedical Clinical Research Applied Research AcademicHealth Patient Safety align the incentives and
7 Ressarch Networks Collaboratives Sciencs Networks Collaboratives agendas of these supporting
3| o Centres/ Units organisations. If the aim is to
wnl= Contract FPatient Safety Innovation generate an ecosystem,
5 E University basic Research Transiational Exchanges these parts need to find some
O science Organisations Research Cenires symbiosis and shared
oL habitat, rather than existing in
entirely different forests.

101
153



Current issues
The four aims of the ICS are to:

A - Improve outcomes in population health and health care

B - Prevent ill health and tackle inequalities in outcomes, experience and access
C - Enhance productivity and value for money

D - Support broader economic and social development

Delivering these aims depends upon a transition away from current practices to more
coordinated pathways and services that make more effective use of resources. That
means changing the balance of activities across the local health and care system. Our
aim is to make it easier for people to stay well and help themselves; for people with
health service needs to get the right access at the right time (managing chronic
conditions and preventing acute need where possible); and for people who have acute
need to access services promptly and recover quickly in appropriate settings. And to
make this the case fairly across all parts of the population, levelling up for all, not just
providing excellence for the fortunate few. These sorts of changes would help us make
the most of the talents in the workforce, and make jobs do-able, supporting staff to
focus on the things they can do rather than being overwhelmed by ‘failure demand’
that is created and exacerbated by our current ways of working.

Whether primarily funded through National Institute of Healthcare Research (NIHR) or
NHS England, much of the research and innovation infrastructure has, for
understandable historical reasons, emerged and developed to serve the funder rather
than the needs of the population. This has two major consequences: the great work
that is happening through R&I infrastructure is less well known (and less well applied)
than it should be; and the ICS has relatively fewer mechanisms to orchestrate the R&l
activities in the sector than it needs. As a result, ICS teams tasked with developing
new service models find it difficult to understand and avail themselves of the
capabilities of teams funded through the sector’s research infrastructure.

Our ICS will not be able to impact these things by doing more of the same. Changes
of the sort we require depend upon being able to generate deep insights about what
is happening and why and to use those insights to: invent new interventions, testing
and translating them into real-world practice; innovate and implement ideas, adapting
and adopting at scale practices that are shown to work; and establish methods of
improvement to help spread good practice everywhere.

Whilst health care systems globally struggle to implement innovation at pace and
scale, the pandemic showed that health systems can innovate at pace when there is
a clear mission and aligned support to make change happen. But across the globe
places are at risk of reverting to old habits and failing to learn the lessons of the recent
past: demand signals remain insufficiently clear to properly align the activities and
agencies supporting invention, innovation, and improvement; and we are often not
fully using the levers at our disposal (at all tiers of the system) to create the conditions
for innovation and implementation. This means that the benefits of innovation are not
realised — for residents, health economies, innovators and the wider economy — and

102
154



inequalities of access, experience, and outcomes persist. We recognise the same
challenges in NW London, but recent experience of change, and new opportunities
from system reform, mean we have the chance to do better.

Actions
We recognise that the status quo will not deliver the ICSs objectives and so in order
to change, we have committed to the following actions:

We will unite around an analysis of population need.

We will make significant changes to the way we signal our priorities, setting out a
smaller number of themes with much larger scope and ambition. The priorities
should act as to focus effort and we should use systems engineering approaches!
(systems thinking) to understand what is really happening in those areas and why.
From this we should establish portfolios of projects to explore, test and adopt what
innovations can address the issues faced. A subgroup of the Research and Innovation
Board used a pragmatic process (see appendix) to identify three major priority
missions for the research and innovation work to focus on.

e We will maximise the experience and outcomes for residents with chronic disease,
and improve VfM, by preventing, diagnosing, treating a person’s needs. In the first
instance we will focus on cardiovascular disease, with a view to adopting
generalisable working practices in other areas.

e We will take action to minimise the harm suffered by patients being in the wrong
care setting, with the aim of seeing people in the right place at the right time every
time. We will start first exploring acute pathways and discharges of people who are
medically fit.

e We will take action to ensure that children and young adults have the best start in
life, with a particular focus on promoting positive mental health and enabling an
appropriate range of support to enable early and effective intervention.

We will address split incentives caused by different funding sources .
We will review the major levers available within the ICS to support and incentivise
research and innovation on these themes, looking in detail at opportunities to:

e Use procurement mechanisms to support co-development of technologies
and the adoption of proven innovations (e.g., enabling and building on the existing
requirements of the MedTech Funding Mandate). This should begin with a specific
area of focus around digital, and learn from recent case studies like the successful
development and deployment of technology in the Heart Failure pathway'

e Resource Clinical Effectiveness Group infrastructure to provide practical
support in primary care to increase the ability to absorb new ways of working. This
must develop to operate across the primary-acute boundaries. This should start
first with a focus on CVD and it should use grant funding (e.g., the InHIP funding
secured by ICHP) to augment sector investment

e Use the formal contracting and oversight mechanisms (e.g., the System
Oversight Meetings) to emphasise the importance of progress in these themes,
and to include research and innovation activities as the core business of an ICS
and its borough based partnership

103
155



Use the formal NHS planning round to establish this as a foundation for the year
ahead — the ICB should commit to determine the R&I objectives within each ICS
programme including resourcing and required impact measures for agreement in
March 2023.

We will ensure research and innovation is seen as part of the ‘day job’ of delivery and have
research and innovation at their core.

We will task colleagues in research and innovation teams to map current work
against these missions and share them with the nominated ICS programme leads;
and make visible the ways in which these work areas can access / draw from
funded work going on (for example BRC work on the Core20+5 agenda). Further,
we will proactively look to (re)shape work plans where possible, for instance:
working with ICHP on the use of AHSN funding for 2023/24 so that it maps explicitly
to these priority themes; and exploring the opportunity of the RRDN redesignation
to build a platform of clinical trials support related to these agendas.

We will do more to use the deep analytical capabilities of the local universities and
school of public health to create a shared description of need and explain its
drivers. This is currently left to the ICS BI team and individual programmes, and
they do not have easy access to additional people and skills. This is despite major
thematic overlaps (e.g., the ARC theme on multimorbidity or child population
health, or the BRC and AHSN themes relating to the Core20+5 agenda')

We will do more to build capability and capacity in primary care by including more
roles within the infrastructure grants of the BRC, CRN (now designated as
RRDNsY), ARC, and AHSN. This can help attract and retain clinicians wanting
portfolio careers and their involvement would help to connect the research,
innovation, and clinical delivery agendas. Lack of capacity here makes it difficult to
do that, whereas in other parts of London we see Clinical Effectiveness Group
models achieving this tripartite aim.

We will do more to use the opportunity of the new medical school at Brunel to
rethink what the sector needs from its medical education, and to reimagine what
the sector can offer (e.g., by way of different types of educative experience and
projects/fellowships to students of medical schools in the sector).

We will do more to orient our discretionary grants (e.g., the AHSN funding) towards
a small number of major ICS programmes that support transformation in provider
organisations

We will more deliberately and systematically consider the range of levers that make
innovation happen, including creating the time and support to engage; and
establishing pragmatic but aligned commissioning, regulatory (e.g., area
prescribing committee decisions), and contractual expectations that ensure
resources are put behind stated intent.

Moving from ambition to action

As the chapter on Population Health and Inequalities sets out, cardiovascular disease
is the main cause of ill health for our population and a major driver of health
inequalities. Addressing it is central to improving outcomes, and delivering the
Core20+5 agenda. And research and innovation over decades continues to show that
this is amenable to change: improvements in blood pressure control drive better

104

156



outcomes and avoid adverse events: every 10mmHg reduction in blood pressure
results in 17% reduction in coronary heart disease, 27% reduction in stroke, and 13%
reduction in all-cause mortality. Interventions exist to lower blood pressure, from
smoking cessation and exercise to the use of high intensity statins and novel drugs
such as Inclisiran. Around 470,000 people in NW London are thought to have
hypertension, but only 275,000 people have a recorded diagnosis leaving circa
195,000 people undiagnosed. Of those people with a diagnosis, fewer than half
(120,000 people) have had a blood pressure measurement recorded in the last year.

As the case studies in the appendix illustrate, lots of research and innovation work is
already happening in NW London and we are, in places, seeing that be adopted into
new practice. A missions-based approach will help us to be more deliberate and
purposeful in managing the coordination and cross-fertilisation of these sorts of
initiatives. This starts to give an indication of how we will build a portfolio of work to
tackle the CVD mission and we will do the same for the other missions.

Figure 2 — An illustration of what a Long Term Conditions ‘mission’ would focus on in the first stage

We will maximise the experience and outcomes for residents with chronic disease,
Mission  and improve VfM, by preventing, diagnosing, treating a person’s needs — with an

initial focus on CVD

Acute

Prevention

h 4
R&l Community Early Optimised
Projects Health diagnosis treatment
Workers
Hypertensmn AI enabled Adoptlon of
management stethoscope novel statins &
p alternatives

management

Remote
monitoring

Embedding sustainability

In 1987, the United Nations Brundtland Commission defined sustainability as “meeting
the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs.”®

Sustainable development requires an integrated approach that takes into
consideration environmental concerns along with economic and social development.

13 United Nations

105
157


https://www.un.org/en/academic-impact/sustainability

Building a more sustainable economy will help reduce the greenhouse gas emissions
that cause climate change. Sustainable development and climate action are linked,
and both are vital to the present and future wellbeing of humanity.

Climate change has now been recognised by most governments, businesses and
organisations from all sectors as a global issue that needs to be addressed with
urgency to limit global warming and its associated threats to people, society and the
planet.

In 2019, the UK government was the first government to enshrine a net zero target by
2050 in law, where net zero means that carbon emissions must be eliminated first
where possible or removed to achieve carbon neutrality.

The NHS position on sustainability and the climate emergency

The climate emergency is a health emergency. Climate change threatens the
foundations of good health, with direct and immediate consequences for our patients,
the public and the NHS.

In 2020, NHS England published its “Delivering a Net Zero National Health Service”
report which sets targets of:

e net zero by 2040, with an ambition to reach an 80% reduction by 2028 to 2032 for
greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions we control directly (scope 1&2), and

e net zero by 2045, with an ambition to reach an 80% reduction by 2036 to 2039 for
the emissions we can influence (scope 3).

These are ambitious targets that require immediate action and support from senior
leaders. NHS England’s emissions represent around 4% of Britain’s emissions.

Trusts and ICBs have produced their respective green plans aligned with NHS
England net zero targets. NHS North West London ICB’s green plan was published in
April 2022.

This means sustainability is now a strategic factor that needs to be integrated in all
decision-making processes.

Why?
Embedding sustainability in our strategy ensures a long-term vision and a more
holistic approach, to avoid revisiting decisions taken now in the future. It can:

e Provide cost relief through reductions in energy and utility costs achieved by
deploying energy efficient solutions (e.g. LED lighting).

e Ensure we remain within or ahead of legislation relating to carbon emissions,
energy efficiency, net zero targets. (e.g. Energy Performance Certificate rating of
buildings legislation)

e Support organisations in adapting to climate change, making sure they can remain
operational in all circumstances, as extreme weather events increase in frequency
and strength.

e Send a clear message to all organisations seeking to do business with NHS NW
London about our journey to net zero and our expectations that they match our

106
158


https://www.england.nhs.uk/greenernhs/wp-content/uploads/sites/51/2020/10/delivering-a-net-zero-national-health-service.pdf
https://www.nwlondonics.nhs.uk/about-the-ics/green-plan

ambitions. This in turn encourages other organisations to take action to address
their own impact on climate change.

Decarbonisation road maps are being developed by NHS England that NHS NW
London will need to implement.

Sustainability can also become a key enabler to deliver on NHS NW London’s
priorities, as climate change disproportionally affects the most vulnerable.

How?

Make sustainability a key criterion in all decisions, review decision-making
processes and develop guidance.

Reflect sustainability and net zero in all major strategies: estates, procurement,
patient care, medicines, research and innovation, workforce, data and digital.
Make best use of enablers: train and empower workforce to create change from
within (e.g. scholarship for primary care, move away from high carbon products
such as inhalers and anaesthetic gases), ensure research and innovation
programmes embed sustainability, continue to use digitalisation as a tool to reduce
carbon emissions (e.qg. virtual clinics), be better at using data to identify challenges
and track and monitor progress.

Behaviour change and leadership: change on the scale required to address our
impact on climate change cannot happen without the full support of the leadership
team. Sustainability needs to become a standard Board item.

Bring in sustainability upstream: most emissions come from procurement and
supply chain: tighten procurement rules to reduce imported emissions from
products and services.

Climate risk register: develop a climate risk register for NHS NW London and each
delivery and enabling programme.

Collaborate with anchor institutions: there many areas where collaboration with
other organisations within the region can deliver better and faster, e.g. estates,
transport, waste.

107

159



Annex A - age distribution supporting information

Age distribution 1998 v 2028 Number of people with long-term conditions per
age group
199230
Male
160437
142280
1178% 119675
90426
5138
w o S0
M 15 6L DU BB 5N e G Bk
‘ | : _ Bl Lk
1 o5 ©0 0 05 1
WSIC, NHSE

Percentage of population in abgj%Lgacr?d.
Outline grey line shows 1998.

Source: PHE

Annex B - ethnic variation supporting information
% of people with long-term conditions by ethnic group

100 =
3

iz

20

7

50

a0

20

Entire MWL AllLTCs Cancer Diabetes rH Heart Disease
Population

m vwhite ™ Asian or Asian British m Other Ethnic Groups m Black or black British = Mixed Not recorded

Annex C — income distribution supporting information

108
160



BAME Population . Deprivation

-

Source: isti indices-of-deprivati

F W rrwrmersomithy
& Fulham’s poorest ward

whorn will have mental . .
health needs and they will e S T

e e ey T e of Hillingdon than in the
= : et e
e = ———e e

OC)(P

Wi)”

In Hammersmitkh
and Fulharn, 20
of children in Y,

& are =

of children in In Brent, 332 of
Westrminster ars

Kensington & Chelsea
3 has the r

a Englan negual|

with ower 2,200

admissions per year

Source: PHE, OHID
Income inequality in 2017/18-2019/20

109
161



Difference in weekly income (after housing costs) between top 10% and bottom 10%

£1.246

£1.200

7 £1.000 954

10.6% aifrerence -
T 1

Source: HBAI microdata, DWP

Inflation reached 10.1% in July 2022 and was 9.9% in August 2022
%, onnual change in consumer prices (CPI)

1"
s AUg'22: 9.9%

9

o N

e-rNnwa

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Source: ONS, CPl annual inflation rate, series D7G7 [14 September 2022 update]
Which of the following are you doing because your cost of living has

increased?

I am shopping around more

| am spending less on food shopping and
essentials

I am spending less on non-essentlals

| am cutting back on non-essential
journeys in my vehicle

I am using less fuel such as gas or
electricity in my home

I am using my savings

I am using credit more than usual, for
example, credit cards, loans or overdrafts

Other

None of these

o 20 40 60 80

Source: Office for National Statistics - Opinions and Lifestyle Survey:
Public opinions and social trends, Great Britain: Household finances, 25

May to 5 June 2022

110
162

100



Rough Sleeping Population 2010-
20211
600

400
200

DT AT AT DT AT AT AT AR AR A
e Brent

Ealing

Hammersmith and Fulham

Harrow

@ Hjllingdon
e HoUNSIOW

Annex D - A high-level summary of the process to select priorities to support the
Research and Innovation chapter

In order to identify a smaller number of priorities for the research and innovation work to focus on, we
applied criteria based on the conditions for success

Long list of ICS priorities Top three priorities for R&l to focus on
1. Population Health and chronic di
Population Health Management and Chronic Success criteria = Focus on CVD and in particular hypertension
Disease e.g., CVD + find undiagnosed cases
Py HE o High priority issue that we will be able to align work of + overcome hesitancy in our yan‘ous populations.
research, innovation and ICS ecosystem around to come forward/ comply with treatment

Address urgent system priorities in acute interventions

Energy to make a change, defined by there being an

care e.g. COPD/Resp /Cancer existing ICS programme in that area l : :ggﬁ%gﬂﬁg:&;ﬂgsﬁ ?;;Tm{rpg
Paediatrics/ CYP Ripe forinnovation — known innovations (tech or capacity in primary care

improvements) in the area

Acute pathway inefficiency (e.g. Discharge) 2. Children's and Young People

+ More effective prevention/ early diagnosis,

Unplanned care Route to impact — such as available funding to support particularly for CYP
Primary care/ local care model the project management and implementation
3. Acute pathway inefficiency (e.g. Discharge)
B + Focus on understanding root causes of issues
Mental health in discharge and barriers o change and
innovation in this area
Maternity

" At NASA, “systems engineering” is defined as a methodical, multi-disciplinary approach for the design,
realization, technical management, operations, and retirement of a system. A “system” is the
combination of elements that function together to produce the capability required to meet a need. The
elements include all hardware, software, equipment, facilities, personnel, processes, and procedures
needed for this purpose; that is, all things required to produce system-level results. The results include
system-level qualities, properties, characteristics, functions, behaviour, and performance. The value
added by the system as a whole, beyond that contributed independently by the parts, is primarily
created by the relationship among the parts; that is, how they are interconnected. It is a way of looking
at the “big picture” when making technical decisions. It is a way of achieving stakeholder functional,
physical, and operational performance requirements in the intended use environment over the planned

111

163



life of the system within cost, schedule, and other constraints. It is a methodology that supports the
containment of the life cycle cost of a system. In other words, systems engineering is a logical way of
thinking. 2.0 Fundamentals of Systems Engineering | NASA

i This Heart Failure Pathway Improvement Project won this year's HSJ Award for Digitising Patient Care
Award. It is an end-to-end pathway redesign for heart failure in north west London, drawing support
from clinical and operational teams, the ICB, and ICHP. Working with multiple industry collaborators,
more than 100 interventions were combined to deliver substantial improvements including. These
include: data systems integration between primary, community and secondary care; increased
community HF diagnosis, reduced unplanned hospital costs, greater convenience for patients and the
first remote monitoring app for HF medicine optimisation in the UK. HSJ award judges said this work

displayed an impressive approach to design and the scale and transferability was evident. HSJ Awards
2022: Digitising Patient Care Award | HSJ Awards | Health Service Journal

it The Applied Research Collaboration for NW London has research themes for Child Population Health,
Multi-morbidity and mental health, digital health, innovation and evaluation; and cross-cutting themes
on information and intelligence, patient engagement and involvement, collaborative learning and
capacity building. Research (nihr.ac.uk)

v Core20PLUSS5 is a national NHS England approach to inform action to reduce healthcare inequalities
at both national and system level. The approach defines a target population — the ‘Core20PLUS’ — and

identifies ‘5’ focus clinical areas requiring accelerated improvement. NHS England » Core20PLUSS (adults) —
an approach to reducing healthcare inequalities

v From April 2024, the current NIHR Clinical Research Network will be changing to become the NIHR
Research Delivery Network. The NIHR Research Delivery Network (RDN) will continue to support the
effective and efficient initiation and delivery of funded research across the health and care system in
England for the benefit of patients, the health and care system and the economy, with a name that
better reflects the scope and purpose of the network to support: Clinical Research Network | NIHR

112
164


https://www.nasa.gov/seh/2-fundamentals
https://www.hsj.co.uk/the-hsj-awards/hsj-awards-2022-digitising-patient-care-award/7033628.article
https://www.hsj.co.uk/the-hsj-awards/hsj-awards-2022-digitising-patient-care-award/7033628.article
https://www.arc-nwl.nihr.ac.uk/research
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/support/clinical-research-network.htm

North West London
Integrated Care System
Working together for better he

lth and care

ICS Health and Care Strategy for North West London

Health & Wellbeing Board - Harrow

22" June 2023



Cover note

*In common with all Integrated Care Systems, North West London Integrated Care System is required to produce a strategy
- The strategy must cover both health and care (i.e., health and relevant local authority services)
- The NHS and local authorities are required to ‘have regard’ to the strategy

*The strategy has been prepared for, and must be adopted by, the North West London’s Integrated Care Partnership. The
Partnership brings together local authorities and the NHS across our eight boroughs

*The strategy has taken, as its starting point, the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health and Wellbeing
. Strategies developed for each borough, and incorporated resident insights

8The strategy aims to highlight where boroughs and the NHS can go further, faster for our residents by working together. It
does not attempt to collate everything that each partner in the ICS is doing. For example, the ‘shared outcomes’ reflect the
judgment of the DPHs of the outcomes that could be improved faster by working together

*lt is structured around the ICS’ programmes, which are the delivery vehicles for the strategy. It informs the one year delivery
plans of all the ICS programmes. Priorities for the programmes are then grouped into six cross cutting themes

*The draft strategy was published on 21st May. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to challenge and comment on the
strategy — in particular, what areas members of the HWB believe should be emphasised, amended or removed

*Input from all HWBs, alongside input from our residents, will then be synthesised into the next draft of the strategy.

North West London
Integrated Care System



Strategy engagement — we want to hear from you

Hearing from a wide range of voices throughout communities who will feel the impact of the delivery of
the top priorities in health and care services in North West London helps ensure this strategy fits the
needs of residents. We want to make sure that resident insight is embedded into the heart of this draft
strategy. Insights captured includes the ‘what matters to you’ outreach, borough collaborative spaces
and insight from local authority, Healthwatch and voluntary & community sector colleagues.

91

Joining up NW London

with local .
, Residents .
authority Citizen Panel
Forum, open ) Next Door
engagement t0 all with an with access to insiohts
on Health and 3.8k members &

anticipated
200 attendees

Wellbeing
Strategies

North West London
3 Integrated Care System



Strategy development — why we need a health and care strategy

Four objectives of integrated care systems

As we launch the ICS, we have t
opportunity to set an exciting vi
strategy for North West London
on our achievements to date, a
advantage of our strengthening
across health and care to impro
for our residents and communit
long standing inequalities in acc
experience and outcomes, level
value for money and deliver wid
across North West London.

Improve outcomes in population
health and wellbeing

Prevent ill health and tackle
inequalities in outcomes, I
experience and access

I e Enhance productivity and value for I
|

89T

money

Support broader economic and
social development I

' North West London
Integrated Care System



Strategy development — how we have built on what has gone before using resident insight

i r%

.
&

Joint * Context and needs e @ London Borough
Strategic Of NW London CitY Of Westminster www.ealing.gov.uk 3% of Hounslow

NEELES
Assessment

» Case for change

CBsrent  hsf" (o)

.:!1!\' "THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF
M KENSINGTON
O AND CHELSEA

Involvement
e@d insights

Health and
Wellbeing

. Strategies

. ____----""" Delivery Networks Enablers
. e * Proactive « Cancer * Involvement &
population health * Maternity Community
& inequalities - Children & young  °Data & Digital
Programme * Plans *Local care people « Workforce

and e Actions
Networks

* Mental health,
learning disabilities
& autism

* Acute care
]

%

*Finance & Estates

* Research &
Innovation

North West London
Integrated Care System



Challenges — areas of concern for NW London

Improvement in health status have appeared to stall, we have an almost record number of
people on out of work benefits and the cost of living crisis continues

lllll DALYs per 100,000 population Number on out of work benefits, UK
8
6
i
'_ii 4
0
Inflation Vs i O3 8 &S5 ¥ 2 2 8 N
e ——r
T L L S P i _\,’,,'."‘{,,r-‘\.,,a-.‘.’,,t‘.l.’p,'\‘ g g e _\,’.;-'.'-‘{.‘_-.'-‘{.;-:"\.‘.‘-:‘.l.";-:‘ g n a Ion VS Income O O O O O O O O O O
10% /—NNNNNNNNNNN
8 Prices up 9.9% on last year
6
Salaries up 6% on last year
4
2
B ] L]

Integrated Care System

Source: GBD Compare tool, HBAI Stat-Xplore) - V ; North West London
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022



Challenges — health and care systems struggling to respond

Social care workforce

300,000
1.74m 1.78m 1.79m :
15gm 1.59m 1.63m 1.65m 1.67m 1.70m 1.72m
' goKk 100K 10K 115K .
200,000
150,000
150m 1 53ml1.56m 1 56m 1.57m|{fi1.60m[l1.61m[@l1.63m1.67m 1 62m
= 100,000
~ ,
— |l Filled posts -
Jacances Access rate to
H N
1213 1314 14115 1516 1617 17/18 18/1s mental health care

7.00%

B.00%

—— — ——
4.00% W
3.00%
2.00%
I
0.00%
Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 pr-22 May-22 hun-22

Jul-22

Elective care - Overall Waiting List

A d d -+ Hd Hd N N N N N NN~ N
g g g g g g g o & q g
= W a £ > O £ a6 = £ > & = o Ao
2 5 0o 8 0 9 8 0o &8 2 © 5 2 5 o

L v O 2 o0 - o S < s = < O
|

' North West London
Integrated Care System



Residents - what residents in NW London communities are telling us

Inpatient services Outpatient services 4 . I
P P 12% said they
Top 3 inpatient services* Top 3 Outpatient community services* found it very easy
Hospital planned surgery  [7A% Ophthalmology services [iEA to book an NHS
44% Dental NHS services 0L | e y
Orthopaedic services 42% 53%
Bottom 3 inpatient services* Bottom 3 Outpatient community services* ‘
= ”
'Rl); terms conditions care ¥ Mental health services 51% 4 45% indicated that
Mental health services 45% Long term conditions care [&iFZ they found it very
: difficult to book an
: : 0 A&E outpatients 37% )
81% ind d th g A
o indicated that 19% indi Top 3 % = Very good and good combined ratings
o indicated that : :
Bottom 3 % = Very poor and poor combined ratings
they were treated ‘ they were not =
equally by the treated equally Data from Citizen Panel (3.8k membership) ‘what matters to you'
\_ NHS ) \_ J survey

' North West London
* Respondents were asked to pick their three top/ bottom inpatient and community services 3 Integrated Care System
Source: Citizens panel ‘what matters to you’ survey



Outcomes — how we've developed this draft framework FOR COMMENT

Health and social care services in North West London will focus on the needs of the individual
to promote their health and wellbeing, in particular to enable people to live healthier lives in
their communities.

* Reducing inequalitiesisa Six areas in Fair Society, Healthy Lives
golden thread across everything

that we all do in North West
London.

* The outcomes framework,

A. Give every child the best start in life

5&‘)’;"2 llilrc)aglilhtg?]olljiclrfleec’i(r)\z;r;ted B. Enable all children, young.pe.ople and adults to maximise their capabilities
Care Board, and have control over their lives
i VFV?]ZlﬁgefAZnaTﬁueHasfﬁgrkin g C. Create fair employment and good work for all

}gggrﬁrggl?vgﬂ;;rﬁgfgﬁpd D. Ensure healthy standard of living for all

E%T/igreg’\(/segtihsir?g;)’;?éﬁnp?:r‘?n?r E. Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities

s dolngy F. Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention

- Starts from the Professor
Marmot’s Fair Society, Health

Lives (The Marmot Review)
.

f North West London
Integrated Care System



Framework — suggested outcomes against the health equity framework

FOR COMMENT

A. Give every child the best start
in life
* |dentify inequalities by
reviewing ethnic breakdown
indicators, including:

- Neonatal mortality and still
birth rate

Smoking status at time of
delivery

VLT |

Vaccination uptake

- Maternal mortality

- Breastfeeding at 6-8wks
post birth

B. Enable all children, young people
and adults to maximise their
capabilities and have control over
their lives

* Drug &Alcohol and substance
misuse in under 18

* Increased community participation
rates. Reduction in mental health,
problem drug use, offending and
antisocial behaviour rates

* Levels of overweight and obesity in
CYP at Reception and Year 6

C. Create fair employment and good
work for all

* Gap in the employment rate
between those with a physical or
mental long- term health condition
and the overall employment rate

* Gap in the employment rate for
adults known to MH services v
overall adult population

* Adult social care vacancy and
retention rates below or equal to
averages for benchmarking group of
councils

D. Ensure healthy standard of living
for all

* Households in temporary
accommodation

* Food insecurity - percentage of
households experiencing food
insecurity

E. Create and develop healthy and
sustainable places and communities

* Reduced gradients in ill health
associated with social isolation and
adverse impacts of travel e.g.
Pollution, and accidents

Focuses on those areas where LAs and NHS working together can go further and faster in delivering for our residents
Not intended to cover everything each partner is doing

F. Strengthen the role and impact of

ill health prevention

* Patients are referred to appropriate
health promotion, support and
education services:

* Improve secondary prevention
outcomes for patients with diabetes

* NHS Health Checks

* The rate of unplanned
hospitalisations per 100,000 by
neighbourhood by ethnic group

* Admissions for alcohol related
condition

* Smoking prevalence

* Proportion of people with mental
health condition receiving a physical
health check

* Density of fast food outlets

* Decayed missing or filled teeth in
under 5s

North West London
Integrated Care System



WORK IN PROGRESS

Emerging headlines — with example priorities

* Focus resource and differentiate the offer for groups experiencing
poor outcomes, for example Black women and childbirth

* Build confidence in our communities to come forward for care and
support

* Rationalise channels for simple urgent care and
streamline access

* Develop/ roll out Integrated neighbourhood

teams to bring community mental health,

primary community and social care

* Improve access to employment in the health and
care system for our residents

* Utilise the strength of borough based
partnerships to focus on the wider determinants

and inequalities
|_\

Support \ Address inequalities

health and
well-being

Improve
access

~ Ongoing
(6] .
community
* Identify people who have an ongoing health O and resident _ _ .
care need, with a care plan in place, to ensure involvement * Continue to develop innovative and cost

effective models of care, starting with
cardiovascular, cancer and children’s mental
health

* Develop workforce transformation plans
* Ensure that our estate is fit for purpose

they receive continuity of care and as much
treatment as feasible in their place of residence

* Work with social care to develop the integrated
health and care approach to avoid hospital and
care home admissions and support patients
moving from hospital to home care

* Develop consistent, ‘right person first time’ core models of
care for children and young people

* Expand access to mental health support
. I ——

North West London
11 Integrated Care System



Engagement — the one page summaries capture actions by programme

INHS

North West London

INHS|

Proactive population health North West London
and red H

Acute care

We know that in some areas and communities in KW London
people have paorer heatth than in others,

C I I

This & cana that is providad i & hospital. Wa know that pationts are now wasting
longer for smergency and planned care.

The vonditions in which we are bom, gros. live, work and age can impact cur health and wellbeing. Thi ¥ looks st i . i e ira h

Health inequalities are unfsir diffarances in health scross the population, and between differert " :"‘" m‘ °I_:d"""“"°“"“ ta ‘:“" "':':: rd'"f'“;? :'"w’

groups within sodety. These indude how long people are ikely to live, the health corditions they may uru:- ull:_r:; . e Y i + Bl gt ratmant
cantret ik

experience ard the cane that i available to them.
m Allaf aur plard have besn infarmed by sur angeirg community angagement -

Wie are working to improve the health of everyone in MW London, no matter who they ane.

NHS|

Mental health, learning Morth West London o can meac s pagular indight raperts eaine Local care Morth West London
Thiz work invoives local peaple, the NHS, and ather public services incuding counils, schools, housing
associations and social services working together. This lets us build serices that meet the needs of
pecple in aach ares, improve people’s bealth, prevent dinesses, and make better use of public
FESoUrceL.

disabilities and autism

Our plans to improve stute care over the next five years Include: { |r||:||-|d||'|g primary I:BVE}

W &l hava Martal haafth - iT's abaut how you feel an any given day,
I you have & mantal haalth pealdam, it can impact how you think, fesl and bahave.

Ensuring residents have good access to specialist doctor's expertise, This wark leoks at care and suppart provided in the community rathar tham &

All of cur plans have been infarmed by our engaing community sngagsment - you can read our haspital, including suppart in your own heme.

regular insight reports aniine.

ing weaiting times for su A
Wa know that mare people, and increasingly younger pesple, need help and suppart Reducing 9 TGETy. W il imprenve acsass to hialth and social cars . il yaur GP, ard

Qur plans to reduce inequalities over the next five years include: frem mental health serdces -~ develon fexible support that mests the different needs of aur diverss communities.
Ensuring residents have convenient and timely access to diagnostic

I Making have aclear of the health of cur population, imduding the We are working with peaples wha use memal health services and those with learning disabiities tests, including x-rays and scans. Thin wark cover: residents of all sge: and mpparts better care for peaple wheo sre
\] between icn gr many health Z and autam, 1o develop the night suppart for peaple and making iure it is in the right place far ‘nedtly healthy' ard pecale with cemplio snd leng standing health cenditans.
tham,
= a Improving urgent and emergency care te reduce dela
m g ta care, of cane and health outcomes for more vulnersble me ure net - Al of eur plans have besn informed by our ongeing community engagement = you
people. All of aur plars have baen intarmed by our angeing semmunity engagement - yau an read our : : can read our regular iright reparts anline, and aha targetsd engagement updates
ragular insight reparts cnline. Ensuring residents experience the same guality of care regardless of for people with complex needs, such as ot the end of life.
par ip 1pr training = . = whara they receive it.
Our plans over the next five years to improve the mental health outearmes include:
our mest B s = Our plans to improve local care over the next five years include:
Putting mone mental health suppart teams in schoals. Creating ‘nei hood” tear: far ime of roughly 50,000 pecgle with the

Warking with pulilic health partners to keep our communities heshthy to reduce high
redly increase healthy weight iritistives and suppart our

MHS and local councib warkirg in partnarship 1 aippart rasidents with thalr heaith snd
cane reecli, GF derviced are at the heart of these "neighbiourbocd teams and include
wther MHS senvices such as physio or numsing in patient’s own hores.

Creating more loxal (nan-clinical) spaces for peaple to sccess help and support, for example
adult community mertal health services.

youngest residertts to have & better start in life.
What are yeur theughts ?

Talking to the public sbout how and whers services are provided, snd haw they <an be
st accussed, whar care ‘on the day’ i nesded - including digitsl and remote support
wivars: this works well for individusl patierts,

Cortinuing to integrate commuriity mertal heslth sarvices {adults and children's) into local
‘reighbourbocd’ teams,

- Cartinuirg to impreve community bised serdces For sutistic people with learring disabibties
‘ta further reduce the relisnce on hodpital (inpatient) beds.
| "
.- \ Promoting alternatives 1o AGE for those in crisis, induding expanding 24,7 hbelplines and

liriking thee te 111,

Improving the sasly planning and the wppart pecple receive st the end of ther lifs.

ldentifying sarlisr when pecple have & lang term condition such &l diabated ar
hypertensicn and then making sure the best treatment plan is 1 place baied orwhat the
irvel sl et

Presidng apprepriate therapeutic spaces to suppert people in crisis,

Whn people do nead & stay in hospitsl making swure thay retum home guickly and
aatuly {inclucing if ther hame is a care hame) wilh the angaing wppart
thay, and thair famsly or carers, need. What . i

hat are your thoughts

What are your thoughts
Are these the mﬂﬁg;lnr s fo Wmﬂﬂ, Are thasa the nght things for us to work on e

IS LY Adetalh

Improving communication and support for people waiting for assessmant and care,

These are included in the papers circulated for the meeting, and available on the ICB’s website
at: https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy



Feedback — Where you can read more and let us know your thoughts

Read more and feedback Future Read our strategy

www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/ health and / and share your views
about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy

Contains: / - . £100 voucher
- Intro
= - Link to the summaries T
~ . .
- LI n k to the eaSy read (Comlng Soon) Flease do complete our s:ur\reyr about the strategy. Mot only will you be helping to shape the future of health and care in NW
_ Link to the fu” draft Strateqv London but you could win a £100 voucher!
B Li n k tO a feed baCk fo rm o WWe will be talking to local residents, health and care staff, Healthwateh and the veluntary and community sectors during May

and June to seek feedback, challenge and discussion on the strategy. We appreciate that the draft strategy is wide-ranging,
and so to support engagement we have produced single page summaries for each programme’s strategic objectives. There will
also be a Morth West London Residents Forum (open to everyone), where local people will be invited to discuss and comment
on our plans. We would encourage local people to join this virtual meeting, which will be advertised in due course.

If you have additional comments or guestions about it, please email nhsnwl.communications.nwl@nhs.net. All comments will
be considered as we develop the final draft.

Read the full strategy ) Read the summary ) Complete the survey )

North West London
13 Integrated Care System



http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
http://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/about-us/nw-london-health-and-care-strategy
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/2916/8474/4102/Health_and_care_summary.pdf
https://www.nwlondonicb.nhs.uk/application/files/5116/8474/4360/230502_DRAFT_ICS_Health_and_Care_Strategy_for_North_West_London.pdf
https://form.jotform.com/231352708924356

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	Health and Wellbeing Board  Agenda
	Useful Information
	Joining the Meeting virtually
	Filming / recording
	Agenda - Part I
	Agenda - Part II - Nil




	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes
	21 March 2023



	9 Supplementary statement to the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
	Section 2 – Report
	Financial Implications/Comments
	Legal Implications/Comments
	Risk Management Implications
	Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality Duty

	Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance (Council and Joint Reports)
	Mandatory Checks
	Ward Councillors notified:  NO, as it impacts on all Wards


	Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers

	10 Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Healthy Policy & Practice
	Section 2
	Financial Implications/Comments
	Legal Implications/Comments
	Risk Management Implications
	Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality Duty

	Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance (Council and Joint Reports)
	Mandatory Checks
	Ward Councillors notified:  NO, as it impacts on all Wards

	Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers
	Health and Wellbeing Strategy – Healthy Policy & Practice  - Enclosure

	11 Integrated Care Board Health and Care Strategy for North West London
	Health and care summary
	DRAFT ICS Health and Care Strategy for North West London
	Integrated Care Board Health and Care Strategy  - Presentation


